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PART |

Unless otherwise indicated or the context requaterwise, in this disclosure, references to thertpany,” "Hemisphere," "registrant”,
"we," "us" or "our" refers to Hemisphere Media Gmunc., a Delaware corporation and, where applileghts consolidated subsidiaries;
"Acquired Cable Business" refers to assets of M&daald, LC and its affiliates primarily used in, beld for use in connection with, the
operation or conduct of Media World LLC's Spaniahguage television network business includingPésiones, (ii) Centroamerica TV and
(iii) TV Dominicana; "Azteca" refers to Azteca Adgition Corporation, a Delaware blank check corptioa; "Azteca Merger Sub” refers to
Hemisphere Merger Sub Il, Inc., a Delaware corpamat "Cinelatino" refers to Cine Latino, Inc., a Revare corporation; "Cine Merger Sut
refers to Hemisphere Merger Sub lll, Inc., a Delagvaorporation; "MVS" refers to Grupo MVS, S.A.G& ., a Mexican Sociedad Anonima
Capital Variable (variable capital corporation); "&tworks" refers collectively to WAPA PR, WAPA?2 Deyso WAPA America and Cinelatino,
except in the Section entitled Risk Factors, baégmon page 21, where such term has a differentninga’Transaction" refers to collectively
to the mergers of WAPA and WAPA Merger Sub, AatrdaAzteca Merger Sub, and Cinelatino and Cine Me&ub, resulting in Azteca,
WAPA and Cinelatino becoming indirect wholly-owsebsidiaries of Hemisphere; "WAPA" refers to WARAdHhgs, LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company and, where applicables @onsolidated subsidiaries; "WAPA America" reter$VAPA America, Inc., a Delaware
corporation; "WAPA Merger Sub" refers to Hemisphkterger Sub I, LLC, a Delaware limited liability mgpany; "WAPA PR" refers to
Televicentro of Puerto Rico, LLC, a Delaware lirdit@ability company; "WAPA2 Deportes" refers tofosts television network in Puerto Ri
operated by WAPA PR; "WAPA.TV" refers to a newseantdrtainment website in Puerto Rico operated BPW PR.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT FOR PURPOSES OF THE "SAFE HARB OR" PROVISIONS OF THE PRIVATE SECURITIES
LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995.

Statements in this Annual Report on ForaKlihcluding the exhibits attached hereto, maytaomcertain statements about Hemisphere
Media Group, Inc. (the "Company") and its consdhdiasubsidiaries that do not directly or exclusiwellate to historical facts. The statements
are "forward-looking statements" within the meanafighe U.S. Private Securities Litigation ReforratAf 1995.

These forward-looking statements are necigestimates reflecting the best judgment armderu expectations, plans, assumptions and
beliefs about future events (in each case subjedhange) of our senior management and managerheuat subsidiaries (including target
businesses) and involve a number of risks, uncgitai and other factors, some of which may be beéyam control that could cause actual
results to differ materially from those expresseihwplied in such forward-looking statements. Withémitation, any statements preceded or
followed by or that include the words "targets,ldis,” "believes," "expects,” "intends," "will,"ikely," "may," "anticipates," "estimates,"
"projects,"” "should," "would," "expect,” "positiod¢ "strategy," "future," "potential,” "plan," "fecast," or words, phrases or terms of similar
substance or the negative thereof, are forwarditgptatements. These include, but are not lintitedtatements relating to the synergies and
the benefits that we expect to achieve in the attipm of the Acquired Cable Business, includintufe financial and operating results, the

Company's plans, objectives, expectations andtiotenhand other statements that are not histofécas.

We claim the protection of the safe haflooiforwardiooking statements contained in the Private Seaeasrltitigation Reform Act of 199
for all forward-looking statements.

Forwardeooking statements are not guarantees of performmdhone or more of these factors materializéf any underlying assumptio
prove incorrect, our actual results, performanc@ochievements may vary materially from any futtesults, performance or achievements
expressed or
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implied by these forward-looking statements. Iniidd to the risk factors described in "ltem 1A—RiBactors" in this report, those factors
include:

. the reaction by advertisers, programming providerstegic partners, the Federal Communicationsr@ission (the "FCC") or
other government regulators to (i) our previousiynpleted Transaction and (ii) the consummatiorhefacquisition of the
Acquired Cable Business;

. the potential for viewership of our Networksbgramming to decline;

. the risk that we may fail to secure sufficient ddéional advertising and/or subscription revenue;

. the benefits of the combination of WAPA and Cinielat including the prospects of the combined bussps;

. the risk that the closing conditions to which tleguisition of the Acquired Cable Business is sutjee not satisfied;

. our ability to successfully integrate the Acqui@able Business and achieve the expected synergrestiiat integration at the

expected costs;

. the ability to realize anticipated growth and griowstrategies of the combined company since the t=imp of (i) the
Transaction and (ii) the acquisition of the Acqdi@able Business;

. the ability to realize the anticipated beneditgi) the Transaction and (ii) the acquisitiontbé Acquired Cable Business, in each
case, which may be affected by, among other thicspetition in the industry in which we operate;

. the risk that we may become responsible for celfialnilities of the Acquired Cable Business;

. the costs expected to be incurred in connectioh thi¢ integration of us and the Acquired Cable Bess;

. the risk that integrating our business with thathef Acquired Cable Business may divert our managgmattention;

. our ability to obtain additional financing in thettfire;

. our ability to successfully manage relationshipgwiustomers, distributors and other importantti@iships;

. the loss of key personnel and/or talent or egjiare of a greater amount of resources attractgtgining and motivating key

personnel than in the past;

. changes in technology;

. changes in pricing and availability of products aedvices;

. the deterioration of general economic conditioiithee nationally or in the local markets in whicle wperate; and
. legislative or regulatory changes that may adveraféct our businesses.

The list of factors above is illustratil®t by no means exhaustive. All forward-lookingestiaents should be evaluated with the
understanding of their inherent uncertainty. Albsequent written and oral forward-looking statera@oincerning the matters addressed in thi
Annual Report on Form 10-K and attributable to uamy person acting on our behalf are qualifiedH®se cautionary statements.

The forwardeoking statements are based on current expecsadgibaut future events and are not guaranteeswkfperformance, and
subject to certain risks, uncertainties and assiomgt
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Although we believe that the expectations refledteithe forward-looking statements are reasondbhésse expectations may not be achieved.
We may change our intentions, beliefs or expeatatat any time and without notice, based upon aaypge in our assumptions or otherwise.
We undertake no obligation to publicly update atise any forwardeoking statements, whether as a result of newinésion, future events
otherwise.

Item 1. Business.
OVERVIEW
Our Company

We are a leading U.S. Spanish-languagear@mnpany serving the fast growing and highly etiva U.S. Hispanic and Latin America
markets with the only two independently owned yhdlstributed Hispanic cable networks in the U.& dominant broadcast television
network in Puerto Rico. Headquartered in Miami riela, we own and operate the following leading Sgfatanguage networks and content
platform:

i
I Cinelatino: the leading Spanish-language cable movie netwittkover 13 million subscribers across the U.S.
Latin America and Canada. Cinelatino is programmuid a lineup featuring the best contemporary fiamsl
original television series from Mexico, Latin Ameai the U.S. and Spain. Driven by the strengthsof i
LATINO programming and distribution, Cinelatino is theMiglsen rated Spanish-language cable movie netinattie
=

U.S. and the #Nielsen rated Spani-language cable television network in the U.S. dle

WAPA PR the leading broadcast television network andvtsien content producer in Puerto Rico. WAPA PR
q q‘—_ has been the #1-rated broadcast television netind?kierto Rico for the last five years. WAPA PHPigerto
=== RIiCO'S news leader and the largest local producentertainment programming, producing over 65 haach

week.

the United States. WAPA America's programming idelinews and entertainment offerings produced by

wap WAPA America a cable television network serving primarily RoeRicans and other Caribbean Hispanics in
AMER Il‘.'.‘: A WAPA PR. WAPA America is distributed in the U.S.dwer 5 million subscriber:

professional sporting events from Puerto Rico. WA&R¥eportes is distributed through WAPA PR's multtca

wap WAPAZ2 Deportesa leading sports television network in PuertooRfeaturing Major League Baseball and
DEFORTES signal and on all cable and satellite systems grtewRico.

wapq WAPA.TV: the leading broadband news and entertainmentiteghsPuerto Rico featuring news and content

produced by WAPA PF

Hemisphere was incorporated in Delawardamuary 16, 2013. On April 4, 2013, we completsdrées of mergers pursuant to which
WAPA, Cinelatino and Azteca, each became our ictlidholly-owned subsidiaries, which we refer tatees Transaction. Azteca, a special
purpose acquisition vehicle, delivered the proceddstrust account raised in its 2011 initial paldffering to us in the Transaction. Since the
consummation of the Transaction, Azteca has hagpeoations and was subsequently dissolved on Dezreddh 2013. Shares of our Class A
common stock, par value $0.0001 per share ("Classmmon stock") are publicly traded under the syiHMTV" on the Nasdaqg Global
Market ("NASDAQ"). Our warrants, exercisable foasbs of Class A common stock

4
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("Warrants"), are publicly traded on the Over-thau@ter Bulletin Board under the ticker symbol "HMUW'
Recent Developments

On January 22, 2014, Hemisphere Media HghkliLLC, our indirect wholly owned subsidiary eetinto an Asset Purchase Agreement
(the "Acquisition Agreement"), with Media World, I, a Florida limited liability company ("Seller"pd the other signatories named therein,
pursuant to which we will acquire Seller's Spar@iguage television network business (the "Acgoist). The Acquisition includes the
purchase by Hemisphere Media Holdings, LLC of assEBeller and its affiliates primarily used im,held for use in connection with, the
operation or conduct of Seller's Spanish-languatpyision network business, which we refer to @Ahquired Cable Business. The Acquired
Cable Business includes the following cable netwp(® Pasiones dedicated to showcasing the most-popular teldaewand series,
distributed to approximately 3.8 million subscribén the U.S. and 7.2 million subscribers in La&imerica; (i) Centroamerica TV the
leading network targeting the third largest U.Sspdinic group, featuring the most popular news reitenent and soccer programming from
Central America with over 3.3 million subscribenghie U.S. and (iii)TV Dominicang the leading network targeting Dominicans livinghe
U.S., featuring the most popular news, entertairtrad baseball programming from the Dominican Répulith over 2.2 million subscribe
in the U.S. The Acquisition is expected to closeniadliately following the first quarter of 2014.

Our Strategy

Our strategy is to maintain and improve position as a leading U.S. Spanish-language needigoany by, among other things,
(i) investing in content for our Networks to buildewership, (ii) growing retransmission fees andssuiber revenues in both the U.S. and Latii
America, and (iii) driving advertising sales, indiog launching advertising on Cinelatino's netwdidtributed in the U.S. and Mexico.
Additionally, we continue looking for attractive pgrtunities to acquire assets that we consideetorflervalued or fairly valued with attract
financial or strategic characteristics. We intemditke a long-term view and primarily seek oppadttes which will expand our leadership
position in the fast growing and highly desirablispénic pay TV market. We intend to seek a vardtgcquisition opportunities, including
businesses where we believe a catalyst for vakieation is already present, or where we canzeaynergies with our existing businesses.
We may also seek businesses that are in need dtmpel turnaround through our experienced anasivle management team with the prc
ability to develop and grow acquired assets.

Employees

At December 31, 2013, we and our subsiegliaegimployed 282 persons. In the normal coursesihéss, we use contract personnel to
supplement our employee base to meet business.n¥eds our subsidiaries may hire additional pengbin connection with the closing of
future acquisitions. We believe that employee r@fet are generally satisfactory. Approximately d5@ur employees based in Puerto Rico ar
covered by two collective bargaining agreementsckvixpire on July 23, 2015 and June 27, 2016 ectspely. For more information, see
Note 11, "Retirement Plans" of Notes to Consolidatmancial Statements, included in this Annual &tepn Form 1-K.

Business Segment

We operate our business in one operatiggeat. Our two primary sources of revenue are didirgy and retransmission/subscriber fees.
Advertising revenue is generated from the saledeédising time. The advertising sales successiisahstrated by large and diversified
portfolio of advertising partners, including mangrteane 500 companies across a variety of industibgh is

5
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supplemented by the direct on-air advertising &edsale of air-time. At December 31, 2013, no graglvertiser represented more than 5% of
our consolidated revenue. Our advertising reveandd to reflect seasonal patterns of our advestidemand, which is generally greatest
during the fourth quarter of each year, driventi®y hholiday buying season. In addition, Puerto Ripalitical election cycle occurs every four
years and we benefit from increased advertisingssal an election year. For example, in 2012, weeagnced higher advertising sales i

result of political advertising spending during @12 governmental elections. Cinelatino is cutyectmmercial-free, but in an effort to
further monetize Cinelatino's strong ratings arichative audience, one of our primary objective®imtroduce advertising on Cinelatino in-
U.S. and Mexico.

Retransmission and subscriber fees argyetiao distributors of our television networks litng cable, satellite and telecommunication
service providers. Our television networks areritisted pursuant to multi-year agreements that igdliggorovide for monthly subscriber fees
with annual rate increases and have terms of vguigingth. We recognize retransmission and subsdiéles when it is accrued pursuant to the
agreements we have entered into with respect to mwenue.

OUR NETWORKS
WAPA PR

Headquartered in San Juan, Puerto Rico, WPRR is a full-power independent broadcast televisietwork. WAPA PR was founded in
1954 as the second broadcast television netwdtieilCaribbean and the third in Latin America. WAPR occupies a prime channel position
(channel 4), and together with its full-power refeeatations, WTIN in Ponce and WNJX in Mayagleaches the entire island with the
strongest television signal in Puerto Rico. WAPAlRRches more television households than any obitgpetitors in Puerto Rico. WAPA PR
is also distributed by all cable, satellite an@¢elmmunication service providers in Puerto Ricacdkding to Mediafax (2009) and Nielsen
(2010-2013), WAPA PR has been therdled network in Puerto Rico for five consecutieass, with an average household primetime ratit
15.9 and audience share of 27% in the year endedritmer 31, 2013.

WAPA owns a 65,000 square foot building $ing WAPA's state-of-the-art production faciliti¢slevision studios, and administrative
offices. All of WAPA PR's news and most of its lbpaograms are produced at WAPA's production fagilivhich contains four television
studios, including the largest television studiatia Caribbean, fully equipped control rooms, digiideo, audio, editing, post editing, and
graphic production suites, and a scenery shop wirictiuces all scenery and props for the local prtdns. WAPA also boasts the most
technologically advanced news department in Pugito. WAPA recently upgraded its master contrchécommodate WAPA PR, WAPA
America and WAPA2 Deportes, installed a digitalivily system to streamline programming and pronmstiand upgraded WAPA PR's signal
to high definition.

WAPA PR is Puerto Rico's news leader aeddigest local producer of entertainment programggproducing over 65 hours in the
aggregate each week. In addition to having theréted news programming, WAPA PR's top-rated lokals includeEntre Nosotragthe #1-
rated local talk showRégate al Mediodighe #1-rated midday progranijjsas En Comb(ihe #1-rated local primetime show) and two new
shows launched in 201Bp Se Toddthe #1-rated daily show) artel Tiempo es Orfthe #1-rated game show). WAPA PR also licenses and
televises blockbuster Hollywood movies and topdateS. television series dubbed into Spanish. @hisrse and unique mix of programming
has made WAPA PR the market leader in Puerto Rico.
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WAPA America

WAPA America, launched in 2004, is a Spad@nguage cable television network targeting RuRitans and Caribbean Hispanics in the
U.S. WAPA America is distributed by all major Ucble, satellite and telecommunication operatoradee than 5 million subscribers. WA
America televises over 65 hours per week of therédpd news and entertainment programming prodbogaAPA PR. WAPA America
supplements its programming with acquired telerasigbopular sports programming from Puerto Ricoathdr programming from WAPA
PR's library.

WAPA America is primarily distributed on s$fianic programming packages, which generally con§®0 or more channels, such as
Cinelatino, CNN en Espafiol, Discovery en Espafiddtdfy en Espafiol, ESPN Deportes and Fox Depoéd?A America is also distributed
in more highly penetrated packages in select nmaprkets including, Orlando and Tampa. Hispanic psysubscribers are expected to grow
driven by the rapid growth in Hispanic televisiooulseholds and by increased penetration of paymong Hispanics. WAPA America expe
to capitalize on this strong growth. For more infation, see "—Industry."

WAPA2 Deportes

WAPA PR completed the transition from agato digital broadcast transmission in 2009 makiagdwidth within its signal available to
launch a second channel in Puerto Rico. Manageitientified a need for a local sports televisionwaak and in 2010, launched WAPA2
Deportes a digital multicast channel broadcast BYPA-TV. This network is distributed throughout PteeRico through WAPA PR's over-the-
air signal and is carried by all cable, satellitel &elecommunications distributors in Puerto RW&APA2 Deportes broadcasts various local
U.S. sports programming, includifdajor League Baseballwith exclusive television rights to the World ®asrand the All-Star Game, and
Puerto Rico's men's professional basketball leaBalencesto Superior Nacionaln a short period of time, WAPA2 Deportes hasdoee the
leading local sports network in Puerto Rico andi@my nights, the station out-rates all U.S.-basstdiorks, including ESPN, TNT and TBS.

WAPA.TV

Launched in 2008, WAPA's website, WAPA.Tashquickly grown into one of the largest digitalltimedia platforms in Puerto Rico.
WAPA.TV is the #1-rated television network websitdPuerto Rico and is ranked #6 among Puerto Riggirated sites. WAPA.TV provides
up-to-the-minute news and weather, promotionakaipWAPA's most popular shows, additional videnteat not seen on WAPA PR, and a
platform for viewers to share comments and intei@ting further audience engagement.

Cinelatino

Cinelatino is the leading Spanish-langueajde movie network with over 13 million subscribacross the U.S., Latin America and
Canada. Cinelatino is programmed with a lineupuiéag) what it believes to be the best contempofitms and original television series from
Mexico, Latin America, the U.S. and Spain. Cinglatwas launched in Mexico in 1993, and introduced the U.S. in 1995. Cinelatino is
headquartered in Coral Gables, FL, and the netapékations, as well as satellite and uplinking isexvare provided by MVS in Mexico City.

Cinelatino's programming acquisition stggtés specifically intended to provide the audiendth the broadest selection of the most
popular and highest-quality films across all of flopular genres, from Mexico and all other Latinéian countries which have significant
populations in the U.S., including Puerto Rico, Daican Republic, Colombia and Venezuela. Consisigtit its programming strategy,
Cinelatino has acquired the rights to the majarftthe highest grossing box office films in Mexieach year from 2007 to 2013. Cinelatino ha
an expansive library of over 475 of the best
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Spanish-language titles from suppliers across libleeg Driven by the strength of its programming drsdribution, Cinelatino is the #1-Nielsen
rated Spanish-language cable movie network in tige &hd the #2-Nielsen rated Spanish-language telbldsion network in the U.S. overall.
Cinelatino is currently commercial-free and genesat00% of its revenue through subscriber feesupatdo multi-year distribution
agreements. In an effort to further monetize Citiretés strong ratings and attractive audience,afrair primary objectives is to introduce
advertising on Cinelatino in the U.S. and Mexico.

Cinelatino is distributed by all major Uble, satellite and telecommunications operatorslispanic program packages, and by many
Latin American distributors, generally on basiceddbackages. Hispanic packages distributed in tBe generally consist of 20 or more
Spanish-language channels, such as WAPA Americ&l &MNEspafiol, Discovery en Espafiol, History en Bsh&SPN Deportes and Fox
Deportes. Hispanic pay-TV subscribers are expdotétispanic pay-TV subscribers are expected to giowen by the rapid growth in
Hispanic television households and by increaseeétpation of pay-TV among Hispanics. Cinelatino ectpeo capitalize on this strong growth.
For more information, see "—Industry."

Cinelatino also has more than 9 millioniba&merican subscribers and is distributed in ntben 15 countries throughout Latin America.
Cinelatino is presently distributed to only 22%atfal pay-TV subscribers throughout Latin Amerieadluding Brazil), representing a
significant growth opportunity.

OUR COMPETITION

We compete for the development and acdmiisdf programming, distribution of our Networks|lshg of commercial time on our
Networks, viewership to our networks, anc-air and creative talent. Our Networks compete witier Spanish-language broadcast and cable
television networks, and digital media companiedlie acquisition of programming, viewership, théeof advertising, and creative talent.
ability to produce and acquire popular content iotp@ur viewership and the sale of advertising.

We also compete with both Spanish-langwamgkEnglish-language broadcast and cable televimbmorks for distribution of our
Networks and the fees charged to cable, sateliiiet@lecommunication service providers. Our abilityetain and secure distributi
agreements is necessary to attract viewership whigks advertising sales. Our contractual agreésngith distributors are renewed or
renegotiated from time to time in the ordinary seuof business. The launch of new networks andatioiasion within the cable and satellite
distribution industry, may adversely affect ourligpito obtain and maintain contractual terms toe tistribution of our Networks.

Certain technological advances, includimgincreased deployment of fiber optic cable, apeeted to allow cable and telecommunica
video service providers to continue to expand bloglir channel and broadband distribution capac#ibto increase transmission speeds. In
addition, the ability to deliver content via newtineds and devices is expected to increase sulaltaniihe impact of such added capacities is
hard to predict, but the development of new chanaktontent distribution could lead to increasethpetition for viewers by facilitating the
emergence of additional channels and mobile ardriat platforms through which viewers could viewgmamming that is similar to that
offered by our subsidiaries.

WAPA PR competes with broadcast televisietworks and cable television networks in PuertmRor audience viewership, advertising
sales, and programming. WAPA PR's main competaoggelevision stations owned by Univision and frelado, which rely on their U.S.
parents for programming, which consists primarflyabenovelas produced in Mexico, the U.S. andrLAinerica. There are a few other local
broadcasters, but they tend not to be competitivetd weak
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programming and/or poor signal quality. WAPA PRctess more television households in Puerto Rico #mgnof its competitors. In addition,
while all major English-language U.S. broadcastvoeks have local affiliates, they are, for the mpestt, low power stations with nominal
ratings. Only approximately half of the televisioouseholds in Puerto Rico subscribe to pay-TV atiecchannels are generally not
competitive as they tend to be U.S.-based, Endgisjuage channels with little relevance to the feuRico Spanish speaking market. WAPA
PR has effectively customized its programming e viewing preferences of the Puerto Rican markét more local entertainment and news
programming than its competitors, as well as bloskér Hollywood movies and hit U.S. television esriAs a result, WAPA PR has been the
ratings leader for the past five years. WAPA2 Démcompetes for viewership, advertising salespglogramming with other channels
offering similar sports programming in Puerto Ri€@mmpetitors include U.S.-based cable networkdh siscESPN, TNT, and TBS, and certain
satellite distributors who have acquired sportsimedhts for their owned channels. WAPA.TV competéth other news, weather and
entertainment websites for the distribution ofcibmtent, development and acquisition of conterdjence viewership and advertising sales. To
an extent, WAPA.TV also competes with U.S. seargjfirees and social networks, such as Google, Fakedub Yahoo, for website traffic.

Many of our competitors may possess grdateran and other resources than us, and our fialaigsiources may be relatively limited
when contrasted with many of these competitors.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Our intellectual property assets principaticlude copyrights in television programming, wiées and other content, trademarks in brand
names and logos, domain names and licenses deutitedl property rights of various kinds. The poti@n of our Networks' brands and content
is of primary importance to our success. To protectintellectual property assets, we rely upoomlgination of copyright, trademark, unfair
competition, trade secret and Internet/domain nstaieites, laws and contract provisions. Howevergtltan be no assurance of the degree to
which these measures will be successful in anyrgoase.

INDUSTRY
U.S. Hispanic Market
U.S. Hispanics

Hispanics accounted for more than halhefgrowth in the total population of the Unitedt&sabetween 2000 and 2012. As of the 2012
U.S. American Community Survey 1-Year EstimatessDsnnearly 53 million Hispanics resided in thetbiStates, which represents an
increase of 17.6 million people, or 50% between®&0d 2012. As a result of this growth, the U.Spdhic market now represents the secont
largest Hispanic economy in the world after Mexigbout 64% of the U.S. Hispanic population repottegir origin as Mexican, followed by
Puerto Rican, the second largest Hispanic grou@¥atin addition, the Hispanic population on averagsignificantly younger than the overall
population. The median age of U.S. Hispanics isa28¢h is nearly ten years younger than the ovéfal. median age.

U.S. Puerto Rican and Caribbean Hispanics

Puerto Ricans are the second-largest Hisgammunity in the U.S. behind Mexican Americahisere are 4.9 million Puerto Ricans and
an additional 4.9 million Hispanics from other ®dn@an countries residing in the U.S., and togefPieerto Ricans and other Caribbean
Hispanics represent approximately 18% of the 10t&l. Hispanic population. The Puerto Rican popafain the U.S. grew 36% from 2000 to
2010, while the overall Caribbean Hispanic popalatjrew 50% during the same time period.
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Spanish-language television programmingp&U.S. is typically targeted towards the Mexiéamerican audience. In many major U.S.
markets, however, Puerto Ricans and other Caribbégranics represent the great majority of the HiSpanic population, exceeding
Mexican Americans. These key markets include NewkyY®liami, Orlando, Tampa, Boston, Philadelphia &fadtford. Even in some of the
largest U.S. markets, such as Chicago and Los Aegelhere Mexicans are the largest Hispanic grieuprto Ricans represent a significant
population segment.

Hispanic Television and Pay-TV Landscape
Within the U.S. cable network industry, thes. Hispanic demographic is attractive for a nanmf reasons:

. Growth in Hispanic TV households: U.S. Hispaniet&ion households grew by over 30% during theggkefiiom 2006 to 201«
from 11.2 million households to 14.7 million hous&ts, approximately six times the overall U.S. v&d®n household growth «
only 5%. The continuing rapid growth of Hispanitetésion households creates a significant oppotyuireach an attractive
audience at a time when overall household growthénU.S. is more modest.

. Growth in Hispanic pay-TV subscribers: Hispapéy-TV subscribers are expected to grow signifigadtiven not only by the
rapid growth in Hispanic television households, &igb by the increased penetration of pay-TV antdisganics. Hispanic pay-
TV subscribers increased 57% from 2006 to 2014yig from 7.9 to 12.4 million subscribers, neaiy times the 7% increase
in overall U.S. pay-TV subscribers during the saraeod. This 41% growth also significantly over-éxas the 31% Hispanic
television household growth during the same period.

Television Viewing and Language Preferences

. Hispanics Enjoy Movies: In 2012, Hispanics hadhighest per capita movie attendance, visiting #msabtn average 9.5 times
per year compared to about 6.8 times for the ovpaglulation. Hispanics make up 18% of the moviaggopulation and 25%
of movie ticket sales.

. Hispanics Prefer Television in Spanish: Spangshains the preferred language in the homes of b&tHispanics, and this
powerfully influences television viewing habits. deding to Nielsen, approximately 56% of Hispardaged 18 and over prefer
to speak Spanish in their homes. Spanish-domindnitiogual homes comprise about 65% of U.S. Hispaouseholds, and
these homes exhibit a strong preference to watekiséon in their native language. Spanish-domifemiseholds view 78% of
television in Spanish and bilingual homes view al&il%6 of television in Spanish. In the 2012-201&dnicast season, while
viewing to the four largest English-language br@aticietworks declined overall, Spanish-languagadwast networks
Univision and Telemundo both grew their audience.

Hispanic Advertising Market

Hispanic households represent approximdtédp of the total U.S. population and approxima8y of the total U.S. discretionary
consumption, but only 5% of the aggregate mediadgpa&rgets U.S. Hispanics. As a result, advertisav®e been allocating a higher proportion
of marketing dollars to the Hispanic market.

U.S. Hispanic cable advertising growth sigmificantly outpaced overall U.S. cable adventsgrowth as well as Hispanic broadcast
advertising growth. U.S. Hispanic cable advertigiegenue grew at a 17% CAGR from 2006 to 2013,Ipnéapling from $119 million to
$356 million. Going forward, U.S. Hispanic cablevadising is expected to grow to at an 11% CAGR2013 to 2015, far outpacing
forecasted growth for all U.S. cable advertisin@#f, and U.S Hispanic broadcast advertising of 5%.
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Similar to the under-indexing of U.S. gealenarket cable advertising relative to viewingreh2b years ago, U.S. Hispanic cable
advertising today significantly under-indexes riekato its share of the Spanish-language televiaimience. In 2013, U.S. Hispanic cable
networks are expected to have garnered only 118talfU.S. Hispanic television advertising.

Latin American market (excluding Brazil)

Latin America remains an attractive regie to its large population, shared language, gtemonomic growth and growing discretionary
spend. Pay-TV subscribers in Latin America arequtgid to grow from 42 million in 2013 to 56 millidny 2018, representing a CAGR of 6%,
and pay-TV penetration of television householdsxigected to increase to 56%. This growth is expetctdoe driven by a sizeable and growing
population, as well as a strong macroeconomic rapkdnd rising disposable income across geograplniesidition, investments in network
infrastructure have improved service and perforreateading to increased penetration for pay-TV afues.

Puerto Rico Overview

Puerto Rico is a U.S. territory and has.8.dollar-based economy, U.S. rule of law andwsgfrgovernmental ties to the United States. Th
broadcast television industry in Puerto Rico isutated by the U.S. Federal Communications Commissiod the banking system is regulated
under the U.S. system (Federal Deposit InsurancpdZation). Puerto Rico has a population of apprately 3.7 million, with an additional
5.0 million Puerto Ricans living in the mainland3JAIl Puerto Ricans are U.S. citizens.

Economy

The Gross Domestic Product ("GDP") of Pu®ico was $101 billion in 2012, an increase of®&ver 2011, ranking Puerto Rico ahead
of 15 U.S. states. While the Puerto Rico econonggrizngly influenced by the U.S. business cyclerRuRico's economy has declined each
year since 2006, except for the modest growth shiov®12. This prolonged recession is due to the-term decline in the dominant
manufacturing sector, decreased competitiveneasesult of expired federal tax benefits, and t@ghrgy costs. The economic hardship has
been exacerbated by years of budgetary imbalaatéés been funded through increased governmemtaivioings. The increased
governmental borrowings coupled with the weak econted to the downgrading of the bonds issued byGbmmonwealth of Puerto Rico to
non-investment grade status by the credit ratirepeigs in early 2014.

A new administration entered office in 2G81 has taken what we believe to be strong anckagige actions to control spending, reform
the pension systems, and raised the corporatatextrom 30% to 39%. Through these actions, thgéudeficit will be reduced to a projected
$650 million as of June 30, 2014, down from $318dsi on June 30, 2009. The administration has anned plans to introduce a balanced
budget for fiscal 2015. Additionally, the admingion has taken measures to promote economic dawelat and job creation. In March 2014,
the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico issued $3.5 billiohonds which is expected to ease the teran-liquidity pressures. The outlook thoug
expected to remain negative until the measuresithikehe administration show evidence of promotingwth and economic revival.

Puerto Rico Broadcast Television Marl

Puerto Rico has 1.4 million television heluslds, comparable to that of a top 20 U.S. telewimarket. Puerto Rico is the third largest
U.S. Hispanic market behind Los Angeles and NewkYor

Puerto Rican television broadcasters ceghe dominant share of viewership, which is uniglative to the U.S. The three primary
broadcasters in Puerto Rico—WAPA PR, Univision and
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Telemundo—collectively garner approximately 70%albtelevision household viewership, distinguishiigerto Rico from the U.S. television
market, where the four major national broadcastogts (ABC, CBS, NBC and Fox) garner a collectivenetime audience share of less than
40%. In fact, WAPA PR's ratings are more than thirees higher than the most highly-rated broadoestork in the U.S., CBS.

GOVERNMENT REGULATION

Our broadcast and cable network operamasubject to regulation by governmental authesitn the United States, Puerto Rico and
other countries where they operate. The rules Jaggus, policies and procedures affecting our ibess are constantly subject to change. This
section contains a summary of certain governmentlations that may affect our operations. Thisiinfation is summary in nature and does
not purport to describe all present and proposed &nd regulations affecting our business.

Introduction

Our Networks are subject to regulation iy ECC under the Communications Act of 1934, asdee (“Communications Act"). Under
authority of the Communications Act, the FCC, amotiter things, assigns frequency bands for broadtassons, including the WAPA PR
station, and other uses; determines the locatiequéncy and operating power of stations; gramsip&and licenses to construct and operate
television stations on particular frequencies; éssuevokes, modifies and renews television braaditation licenses; regulates equipment use
by stations; determines whether to approve chamgesnership or control of station licenses; andd and implements regulations and
policies which directly or indirectly affect the aership, operations and profitability of broadaagtstations.

The FCC has also adopted various rulesrégatiate the content of programming broadcasel®yision stations, including the WAPA PR
stations, and carried by cable networks, includPA America and Cinelatino. These rules regulatepng other things, children's
programming, sponsorship identification disclosuoéssed captioning of certain television programgniand obscene, indecent and profane
content. Additionally, the FCC's rules require lohoast stations to implement equal employment oppdst outreach programs and maintain
records relating to these programs and make filmitjs the FCC evidencing such efforts. The FCC dalso adopt other regulations that af
cable networks, such as the requirement that thie gmogramming services be on an "a la carte'shagiich could affect their business
operations.

The following is a brief summary of cert@irovisions of the Communications Act, and spedHC rules and policies and certain other
statutes and regulations. The summaries are retdetl to describe all present and proposed stanteECC rules and regulations that impac
broadcast television and cable network operatiBasure to observe the provisions of the Commuracat Act and the FCC's rules and polic
can result in the imposition of various sanctiansluding monetary forfeitures, the grant of "shiatm" (less than the maximum term)
broadcast license renewals or, for particularlyegus violations, the denial of a broadcast lieemmiewal application, the revocation of a
broadcast license, or the withholding of approwaldcquisition of additional broadcast properties.

FCC Licenses and Renew

The Communications Act permits the operatiba broadcast station only in accordance witbemse issued by the FCC upon a finding
that the grant of a license would serve the pubtierest, convenience and necessity. The FCC gbaoggicast licenses for specified periods of
time and, upon application, may renew the liceiseadditional terms (ordinarily for the full terof eight years). Generally, the FCC renews
broadcast license upon a finding that (i) the bcaatistation has served
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the public interest, convenience and necessilyth@re have been no serious violations by thesee of the Communications Act or the FCC"
rules; and (iii) there have been no other violatiby the licensee of the Communications Act or I0E@C rules which, taken together, indicate
a pattern of abuse. After considering these factbesFCC may renew a broadcast station's licesider with conditions or without, or it may
designate the renewal application for hearing.db3, the FCC renewed our television licenses flbefght year terms expiring in 2021.

Media Ownership Restrictions and FCC Proceedi

The FCC's broadcast ownership rules affechumber, type and location of broadcast and papesr properties that we are allowed to
hold or acquire. The rules now in effect limit t@mmon ownership, directly or by way attributiopeoation or control of: (i) television
stations serving the same area,; (ii) televisioticsta and daily newspapers serving the same aneg(jig television stations and radio stations
serving the same area. The rules also limit theeggdge national audience reach of television statimder common ownership, directly or by
way of attribution. The FCC's rules also definetiypes of positions and interests that are consdlattributable for purposes of the ownership
limits. In general, officers, directors and stockieos holding 5% or more of the voting interestslemisphere are deemed to have attributable
interests. The FCC's ownership limits thereforeyafipour principals and certain investors in oun@any.

The FCC is required by statute to revieMohits broadcast ownership rules every four yeardetermine if such rules remain necessary i
the public interest. In 2007, the FCC adopted aoRegnd Order fulfilling the FCC's obligation toview its media ownership rules every four
years. The rules currently in effect are summartzeldw. Currently pending at the FCC is a Notic®adposed Rulemaking issued in 201
which the FCC proposed to eliminate the radio/isien cross-ownership rule and relax the newspbpmaticast cross-ownership ban in the 2(
largest television markets. The FCC also requestetments on whether local news service agreemadtsrashared services agreements
should be considered attributable for purposepplying the media ownership restrictions.

Local Television Ownership RL

Under the local television ownership raee party may own, operate, or control up to twevision stations in a market, so long as the
market would have at least eight independently alfo#t power television stations after the combioatand at least one of the stations is not
one of the top-four-rated stations (based on awdishare) in the television market. The rule aksonits the ownership, operation or control of
two television stations in a market as long asstagons' Noise Limited Service contours do notraye In 2011 the FCC sought comments on
its proposal to eliminate the contour overlap exioepthat permits common ownership of two televisiations in the same market. At that
time, the FCC proposed to grandfather existing comownership of stations that would not be perrdititer the elimination of this
exception. The matter remains pending. Broadcatibes designated by the FCC as "satellite" statame exempt from the local television
ownership rule. WNJX-TV and WTIN-TV have been desitgd by the FCC as "satellite" stations of WAPA; B\ivision of WAPA PR. The
FCC may also waive its local television ownershile to permit ownership, operation or control obttelevision stations in a market that
would not otherwise be permissible if one of thaiens is in involuntary bankruptcy, is a "failestation, or is "failing" (i.e., stations with
negative cash flow and less than a four shareaglledidience rating). Under the rule, the licendeetelevision station that provides more than
15% of another in-market station's weekly prograngwill be deemed to have an attributable inteirethie other station.
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Radic-Television Cross-Ownership Rule

The radio-television crossvnership rule generally allows common ownershiproé or two television stations and up to six rasfagions
or, in certain circumstances, one television stadind seven radio stations, in any market wheleaat 20 independent voices would remain
after the combination; two television stations apdo four radio stations in a market where attlé8sndependent voices would remain after
the combination; and one television and one ra@itios notwithstanding the number of independeite®in the market. A "voice" generally
includes independently owned, same-market commemdnoncommercial broadcast television and ratlitions, newspapers of certain
minimum circulation, and one cable system per ntarke

Newspape-Broadcast Cross-Ownership Rule

Under the currently effective newspaperaoligast cross-ownership rule, unless grandfatharsdigect to waiver, no party can have an
attributable interest in both a daily newspapebl(jshed at least 4 days a week, in the dominamjuage of the market, and with a circulation
exceeding 5% of the households in the designatelleharea) and either a television station or orathtion in the same market if specified
signal contours of the television station or th#ioastation encompass the entire community in wkiiehnewspaper is published.

Attribution of Ownershij

Pursuant to FCC rules, the following relaships and interests are generally considerefutible for purposes of broadcast ownership
restrictions: (i) all officers and directors of arporate licensee and its direct or indirect pgednfii) voting stock interests of at least five
percent; (iii) voting stock interests of at leaBtg®rcent, if the holder is a passive institutidnakstor (such as an investment company, bar
insurance company); (iv) any equity interest iimaited partnership or limited liability company, less properly "insulated” from management
activities; (v) equity and/or debt interests thathie aggregate exceed 33 percent of a licensdalsassets, if the interest holder supplies more
than 15 percent of the station's total weekly paiogning or is a same-market broadcast company by mkaivspaper publisher; (vi) time
brokerage of a broadcast station by a same-markatlbast company; and (vii) same-market radio jgé@teés agreements. Because we are
controlled by a single stockholder holding a mayooif the voting power of our capital stock, the@€ current rules do not treat other five
percent or greater voting stockholders as attriidataand those ownership interests are not requirée reported to the FCC. Pending before
the FCC is a proposal to eliminate the single nigjehareholder exception. The FCC is also considex proposal to require the disclosure in
biennial ownership reports of information abouefiwercent or greater voting shareholders, eveurcti interests are not attributable under the
FCC's ownership rules.

Management services agreements and othes tyf shared services arrangements between sarketrs@tions that do not include
attributable time brokerage or joint sales compdémgenerally are not deemed attributable undeF@@'s current ownership rules, but as
indicated above, the FCC is considering a propmsethange this rule.

Commission Approval of Transfer of Control of FCiCelnses

The FCC's prior approval is required fa ttansfer of control or assignment of FCC licen¥és are currently controlled by InterMedia
Partners VII, L.P. and its affiliates ("InterMedjatvhich owns approximately 80% of our Class B camrStock, par value $0.0001 per share
("Class B common stock"). The FCC's prior consentil be required prior to any transaction that waelsult in a change in control of
Hemisphere or InterMedia. An application for cortdera transfer of control or assignment of licena®uld be subject to a formal public
notice and comment period during which petitiondeay the applications would be accepted by the.FCC
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A person or entity requesting the FCC'ssenih to acquire or obtain control of our televisapation licenses must demonstrate that the
acquisition complies with the FCC's ownership ruleghat a waiver of the rules is in the publieist. As discussed above, we own two
television stations, WNJX-TV and WTIN-TV, which aoperated as "satellite" stations of WAPA-TV. Siati granted satellite status are
exempt from the FCC's local television ownership.riihus, this status permits the common ownershthe three WAPA PR broadcast
stations that would not otherwise be permitted. WY and WTIN-TV were first accorded satellite statin 2001 due to the unique
circumstances of the Puerto Rico market, includisi¢gopography and economic conditions, and the R&€Erenewed this grant in subsequent
transactions. We anticipate the FCC would contbougrant satellite status to WNJX-TV and WTIN-TVfirture change-in-control
transactions.

Alien Ownership Restrictior

Under the Communications Act, a broaddashke may not be granted to or held by any cotjporséhat has more than 20% of its capital
stock owned or voted by non-U.S. citizens or ezgitivhom the FCC refers to as "aliens," or thgiregentatives, by foreign governments or
their representatives, or by non-U.S. corporations.

Furthermore, the Communications Act prositteat no FCC broadcast license may be grantedheld by any corporation directly or
indirectly controlled by any other corporation dfieh more than 25% of the capital stock is ownedated by non-U.S. citizens or entities or
their representatives, by foreign governments eir tiepresentatives, or by non-U.S. corporatidithe FCC finds the public interest will be
served by the refusal or revocation of such licefbese restrictions apply in modified form to atf@ms of business organizations, including
partnerships and limited liability companies. TH&G~has interpreted this provision of the Commuimeest Act to require an affirmative public
interest finding before a broadcast license magrbated to or held by any such entity. In the ph&t,FCC has made such an affirmative
finding with respect to broadcast licenses onlighly limited circumstances. In 2013, however, B@&C issued a declaratory ruling that
notwithstanding its past practices, it will conside a case-by-case basis requests for approeaqfisitions by aliens of in excess of 25% of
the capital stock of the parent of a broadcashéee. In acting upon such a request, the FCC aaltdinate with Executive Branch agencies or
national security, law enforcement, foreign polaayd trade policy issues. Therefore, the FCC coaldke the licenses for WAPA PR's
television stations if more than 25% of our outdiag capital stock is issued to or for the benaffihon-U.S. citizens, unless the FCC has rule
in advance that such investments by foreignersnaiee public interest.

To the extent necessary to comply withGeenmunications Act and FCC rules and policies,mard of directors may (i) take any action
it believes necessary to prohibit the ownershigating of more than 25% of our outstanding cagstatk by or for the account of aliens or tl
representatives or by a foreign government or ssprtive thereof or by any entity organized uridedaws of a foreign country (collectively,
"Aliens"), or by any other entity (a) that is sutijéo or deemed to be subject to control by Aliensade jureor de factobasis or (b) owned by,
or held for the benefit of Aliens in a manner thatuld cause us to be in violation of the Commundret Act or FCC rules and policies;

(ii) prohibit any transfer of our stock which weliege could cause more than 25% of our outstandapital stock to be owned or voted by or
for any person or entity identified in the foregpiciause (i); (iii) prohibit the ownership, votilog transfer of any portion of its outstanding
capital stock to the extent the ownership, votingransfer of such portion would cause us to vt would otherwise result in violation of
any provision of the Communications Act or FCC sudad policies; (iv) convert shares of our ClagBimon stock into shares of our Clas
common stock to the extent necessary to bringtaescompliance with the Communications Act or FC@swand policies; and (v) redeem
capital stock to the extent necessary to bringqitcséompliance with the
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Communications Act or FCC rules and policies gprevent the loss or impairment of any of our FGrlises.
Digital Television

As of June 12, 2009, all full-power broastc®levision stations were required to cease lmastthg analog programming and convert to a
digital broadcasts. Digital broadcasting allowdistes to offer digital channels for a wide varietiyservices such as high definition video
programming, multiple channels of standard definitvideo programming, such as WAPA2 Deportes, d@atd,other types of communicatio
Each station is required to provide at least oaee @ver-the-air video program signal.

To the extent a station has "excess" dig@pacity (i.e., digital capacity not used to swnit free, over-the-air video programming), it may
elect to use that capacity in any manner consistéhtFCC technical requirements, including foralaansmission, interactive or subscription
video services, or paging and information servitfes station uses its digital capacity to provat®ey such "ancillary or supplementary” services
on a subscription or otherwise "feeable" basisiust pay the FCC an annual fee equal to 5% of thesgevenues realized from such services

MVPD Retransmission of Local Television Sigr

A number of provisions of the Communicasigkct and FCC rules govern aspects of the relatiprisetween broadcast television stations
and distributors of multiple channels of video pmgming such as cable, satellite and telecommuait@tompanies (referred to as MVPDs).
The rules generally provide certain protectionddoal broadcast stations, for which MPVDs arerapartant means of distribution and a
provider of competing program channels.

To ensure that every local television stattan be received in its local market without iBgg a cable subscriber to switch between cabl
and off-air signals, the FCC allows every full-pawalevision broadcast station to require thatcadhl cable systems and direct broadcast
satellite transmit that station's primary digitahanel to their subscribers within the station'skeia(the so-called "must-carry” rule).
Alternatively, a station may elect to forego itsstaarry rights and seek a negotiated agreemesstédlish the terms of its carriage by a local
MVPD—referred to as "retransmission consent.” Aigtaelecting retransmission consent assumes skehat it will not be able to strike a
deal with the MPVD and will not be carried. A statihas the opportunity to elect must-carry or rednaission consent every three years.
Elections were made in October 2011 for the 201P4268ree year period. WAPA PR elected retransmissimsent and has entered into
retransmission consent contracts with virtuallyMWPD systems serving Puerto Rico.

MVPDs are not required to carry any prograng streams other than a station's primary videgramming channel. Consequently,
WAPA PR's multicast channel WAPA2 Deportes is miitked to mandatory carriage under the FCC's noasty rules. However, we are free
negotiate with MVPDs for the carriage of additiopabgramming streams.

In March 2011, the FCC issued a NoticeropBsed Rulemaking ("NPRM") reviewing the retrarssion consent rules. The NPRM
requests comment on proposals to strengthen the fg@h negotiation requirements and to requireaade notice of the potential that a
television station could be dropped from an MVPR@D@gramming lineup. In a separate proceeding, @€ Ras requested comment on whe
the definition of MVPD should be expanded to indwhtities that make available multiple channelgidéo programming to subscribers
through Internet connections. Both proceedinggaraling, and we cannot predict what impact, if dngy will have on our negotiations with
video programming distributors.
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Repurposing of Broadcast Spectrum for Other L

In February 2012, Congress passed andrésdent signed legislation that, among other thiggants the FCC authority to conduct
incentive auctions to recapture certain spectrumreatly used by television broadcasters and remajitdfor other uses. On October 2, 2012,
the FCC released a Notice of Proposed Rulemakibgdin to develop the rules and procedures to imefd incentive auctions authorized by
Congress. That rulemaking process remains ongoing.

The incentive auction process would havedltomponents. First, the FCC would conduct arsevauction by which each television
broadcaster may choose to retain its rights tdvii@ channel of spectrum or volunteer, in returngayment, to relinquish all of the station's
spectrum by surrendering its license; relinquighripht to some of its spectrum and thereafteresepectrum with another station; or modify
UHF channel license to a VHF channel license.

Second, in order to accommodate the spaateallocated to new users, the FCC will "repatié’ temaining television broadcast
spectrum, which may require certain televisionistest that did not participate in the reverse auctomodify their transmission facilities,
including requiring such stations to operate oreptthannel designations. The FCC is authorizeditolurse stations for reasonable relocatior
costs up to a total across all stations of $1.1M®hi In addition, Congress directed the FCC, whgpacking to television broadcast spectrum,
to make reasonable efforts to preserve a statiowsrage area and population served. In additienfFCC is prohibited from requiring a stat
to move involuntarily from the UHF band, the bandshich WAPA PR's broadcast licenses operate,éd/tiF band or from the high VHF
band to the low VHF band.

Third, the FCC would conduct a forward &tbf the relinquished spectrum to new users. FBE must complete the reverse auction
and the forward auction by September 30, 2022.

The outcome of the incentive auction anmhoking of broadcast television spectrum, or thgaot of such items on WAPA PR's business
cannot be predicted.

EEO Rules

The FCC's Equal Employment Opportunity ((BErules impose job information dissemination ruéitnent, documentation and reporting
requirements on broadcast television stations. @rasters are also subject to random audits to emsumpliance with the FCC's EEO rules
may be sanctioned for noncompliance.

Recordkeepin

The FCC rules require broadcast televistations to maintain various records regarding ajmars, including equipment performance
records and a log of the station's operating patensieTelevision stations must also maintain aipubspection file, portions of which are
hosted on an FCC-maintained website. This file roastain various records, including the statioerige, FCC applications, contour maps,
ownership reports, political broadcasting recoESO public file reports, a copy of the manual "Fheblic and Broadcasting," correspondence
from the public, material regarding FCC investigai or complaints, issues/programs lists, childrezievision programming reports, records
concerning compliance with commercial limits inldhén’'s programming, time brokerage agreementgandsales agreements, and statern
of must-carry/retransmission elections.

Broadcast Localisn

In 2007, the FCC issued a Report on Brostdoacalism and Notice of Proposed Rulemaking (tleecalism Report"). The Localism
Report tentatively concluded that broadcast statghould be required to have regular meetings pétmanent local advisory boards to
ascertain the needs and interests of their comieanithe Localism Report also tentatively adopfeetsic renewal
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application processing guidelines that would regbioadcasters to air a minimum amount of locajmming. The Localism Report sought
public comment on two additional rule changes thatld impact television broadcasters. These ruéaghs would restrict a broadcaster's
ability to locate a station's main studio outsite tcommunity of license and the right to operadeation remotely. To date, the FCC has not
issued a decision adopting rules to implement drigeinitiatives in the Localism Report, and ihcat be predicted whether or when the FCC
might act to codify any such initiatives.

Programming and Operatior

Rules and policies of the FCC and otheeffadagencies regulate certain programming prastoe other areas affecting the business or
operations of broadcast stations, including WAPA &RJ cable networks, including WAPA America andéTatino.

Obscenity, Indecency and ProfanityFederal statutes prohibit the broadcast ostrassion of obscene material at any time by brastdca
television stations, including the WAPA PR station®n cable networks, including WAPA America anddlatino. The FCC's rules also
prohibit television stations, including the WAPA BRitions, from broadcasting indecent or profanteria between the hours of 6:00 a.m.
10:00 p.m. In recent years, the FCC has intensifgeenforcement activities with respect to prognang it considers indecent and has issued
numerous fines to licensees found to have viol#tedndecency rules.

In July 2007, the FCC implemented incredsei@iture amounts for indecency violations tharevenacted by Congress. The maximum
permitted fine for an indecency violation is $3Z8)@er incident and $3,000,000 for any continuiraation arising from a single act or failt
to act.

Because the FCC may investigate indeceamptaints on aex partebasis, a licensee may not have knowledge of arcams complair
unless and until the complaint results in the isseaf a formal FCC letter of inquiry or noticeagdparent liability for forfeiture. In July 2010,
the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Second Circistied a decision finding that the FCC's indecenaydstrd was too vague for broadcasters to
interpret and therefore inconsistent with the FAnstendment. In June 2011, the Supreme Court gramgdbrari in this case. In June 2012, the
Supreme Court issued a decision which held thaE@@ could not fine ABC and FOX (two televisionwetks that were fined for airing
allegedly indecent material) for the specific broasts at issue because the FCC had not providedwiith sufficient notice of its intent to
issue fines for the use of fleeting expletives @nmentary nudity. However, the Supreme Court didmake any substantive ruling regarding
the FCC's current indecency policies. In April 20tt& FCC requested comments on its indecencyypaficluding whether to ban the use of
fleeting expletives or whether it should only impdses from broadcasts that involve repeated @tidetate use of expletives. The FCC has
not issued any decisions regarding indecency eafioenit since the Supreme Court's decision was isaltedugh it has advised that it will
continue to pursue enforcement actions in egregtasss while it conducts its review of its indegepalicy generally.

Children's Programming. Federal statutes and FCC rules require broatilasision stations, including the WAPA PR statipto
broadcast three hours per week of educationalrd@dmational programming ("E/l programming") deségrfor children 16 years of age and
younger. FCC rules also require television statiorair E/| programming on each additional digitallticast program stream broadcast, v
the requirement increasing in proportion to theitimtthl hours of free programming offered on mustchannels.

Federal statutes and FCC rules also linéitamount and content of commercial matter that lneeipcluded in programming primarily
produced and carried for children 12 years and geuby broadcast television stations and cable orésy including WAPA America and
Cinelatino. The FCC's rules also limit the displdyring children's programming on broadcast statemd cable networks, of
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Internet addresses of websites that contain orttrdommercial material or that use program charadb sell products. In October 2009, the
FCC issued a Notice of Inquiry ("Children's NOIBeking comment on a broad range of issues relatekildren’'s usage of electronic media
and the current regulatory landscape that govémavailability of electronic media to children.eT€hildren’'s NOI remains pending, and it
cannot be predicted what recommendations or fugbton, if any, will result from it.

Some U.S. policymakers have sought linatation food and beverage marketing in media popuitarchildren and teens. In April 2011,
the Interagency Working Group on Food Marketed hddgen, which is comprised of the Federal Traden@ussion, the Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention, the Food and Drug Admiatgin and the U.S. Department of Agriculture, jimequested comment on proposed
nutritional restrictions for food and beverage nedirkg directed to children and teens aged 17 yaraaisunder. Although the proposed
guidelines are nominally voluntary, if these orestkimilar guidelines are implemented by food aeddrage marketers, they could have a
negative impact WAPA PR and WAPA America's advargjsevenues.

Commercial Loudness. The 2010 Commercial Advertisement Loudnessddtion Act ("CALM Act") and the FCC rules implemerg
the CALM Act, require television stations, cablietésion operators, satellite television providensd other pay television providers to limit
average volume of commercials, including promoti@mnouncements, to the same average volume @gdheamming it accompanies. The
FCC rules do not specifically require video prognaimg providers, such as WAPA America or Cinelatimocomply with the rules regarding
the loudness of commercials. However, video prognarg distributors may request or require by corntthat programming providers certify
compliance with those rules for commercials embdddgrogramming.

Closed Captioning. FCC rules require the majority of programmimgauicast by television stations and carried onecabtworks to
contain closed captions. In January 2012, the F@iptad rules to require that television programnfingadcast by television stations,
including the WAPA PR stations, or transmitted laple, including on WAPA America or Cinelatino, withptioning include captioning if
subsequently made available online, for examplestisaming on WAPA.TV.

Sponsorship Identification. Both the Communications Act and the FCC's rgkaserally require that, when payment or other
consideration has been received or promised toadioast television station for the airing of pragmaaterial, the station must disclose that
and identify who paid or promised to provide thaesideration at the time of broadcast. Cable sysemsubject to the same requirement w
the system is originating programming, also knowrtablecasting. In June 2008 the FCC sought consnoentvhether it should adopt
additional regulations with respect to sponsoratémtification requirements on cable programmelsatproceeding remains pending.

Program Access Restrictiol

Under the Communications Act, verticallyeigrated cable programmers are generally prohilfiitad offering different prices, terms, or
conditions to competing multichannel video prograngrdistributors unless the differential is justdiby certain permissible factors set fort
the FCC's regulations. The FCC's "program accesss previously limited the ability of a verticaliytegrated cable programmer to enter into
exclusive distribution arrangements with cablevisien operators. However, in 2012, the FCC dediteextend the exclusive contract
prohibition section of the program access rulehdyits October 5, 2012 sunset date. A cable prograr is considered to be vertically
integrated if it owns or is owned by a cable ted&vi operator, in whole or in part, under the FQEagram access attribution rules. Cable
television operators for this purpose may inclieleghone companies that provide video programmirggity to subscribers. Any holdings of
cable television operators by our shareholders;e®, and directors may be attributable to us,thacefore could
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have the effect of making WAPA America and Cinglatsubject to the program access rules, which cadNérsely affect the flexibility to
negotiate the most favorable terms available feirtbontent.

Regulation of the Intern:

Internet services, including WAPA.TV andNEHLATINO.COM, are subject to regulation in the Urglating to the privacy and security
personally identifiable user information and acdigis of personal information from children unde3, Including the federal Child Online
Privacy Protection Act (COPPA) and the federal @altihg the Assault of Non-Solicited Pornographydaviarketing Act (CAN-SPAM). In
addition, a majority of states have enacted lawsithpose data security and security breach oldigst Additional federal, state, territorial
laws and regulations may be adopted with respetitdnternet or other online services, coveringhsigsues as user privacy, child safety, datz
security, advertising, pricing, content, copyrigatsl trademarks, access by persons with disabijliistribution, taxation and characteristics
and quality of products and services.

Other Regulations

In addition to the regulations applicalddlte broadcast, cable television and Internetdtréas in general, we are also subject to other
federal, state, territorial, and local regulations)uding, without limitation, regulations promualigd by federal, state, and territorial
environmental, health and labor agencies. Cinalasiralso subject to laws and regulations that beagdopted or promulgated by the
governments of other jurisdictions in which it opes.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarté&thports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8wKamendments to reports filed
pursuant to Sections 13(a) and 15(d) of the Seesifiixchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchantj¢ are made available free of cha
on or through our website atvw.hemispheretv.coas soon as reasonably practicable after such sepitfiled with, or furnished to, the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"@®f@ommission”). The information on our websitedd, and shall not be deemed to be,
part of this report or incorporated into any otfikmgs we make with the Commission.

You may read and copy any materials wewith the Commission at the Commission's PubliceiRerice Room at 100 F Street, NE,
Washington, DC 20549. You may obtain informatiortlo@ operation of the Public Reference Room byrgathe Commission at 1-800-SEC-
0330. The SEC also maintains a website that cantain reports, proxy statements and other infoonaatwww.sec.gov In addition, copies ¢
our Corporate Governance Guidelines, Audit Commi@aarter, Code of Business Conduct and Ethics\aitable at our website at
www.hemispheretv.coonder "Investor Relations—Corporate Governancepi€owill also be provided to any Hemisphere stoddér upon
written request to Investor Relations, Hemisphesslld Group, Inc. at 2000 Ponce de Leon Blvd., Sai@ Coral Gables, FL, 33134, or via
electronic mail air@hemispheretv.conor by contacting Investor Relations by telephon@af) 687-8080.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors.

The following risk factors and the forwdaobking statements elsewhere herein should becagdully in connection with evaluating our
business and our subsidiaries. These risks andtaintés could cause actual results and everdgfer materially from those anticipated.
Many of the risk factors described under one hepteglow may apply to more than one section in wiiehhave grouped them for the purpose
of this presentation. As a result, you should abersall of the following factors, together whict @l the other information presented herein, in
evaluating our business and our subsidiaries. Thelséactors may be amended, supplemented or seged from time to time in future filings
and reports that we file with the Commission infilieire. For purposes of the disclosure set fartthe following risk factors, the term "Cable
Businesses" historically refers to Cinelatino andR¥ America, and in the future, refers to CinelatilVAPA America and the Acquired
Cable Business (assuming the consummation of tipeisition of the Acquired Cable Business). The téBusiness" historically refers
collectively to our consolidated operations, anthia future, refers collectively to our consolidhtgperations after giving effect to the
acquisition of the Acquired Cable Business. Tht&Ketworks" historically refers collectively to WBA PR, WAPA2 Deportes, WAPA
America and Cinelatino, and in the future, refebectively to our consolidated networks after giyieffect to the acquisition of the Acquired
Cable Business.

Risk Factors Related to our Business

Service providers could discontinue or refrain frooarrying our Networks or decide not to renew thelistribution agreements, which coul
substantially reduce the number of viewers and haowr Business and operating result

Consolidation among cable and satelliter@ipes has given the largest operators considetabdeage in their relationships with
programmers, including our Networks. The succes=ach of our Networks is dependent, in part, onatlity to enter into new carriage
agreements and maintain or renew existing agreeneerarrangements with satellite systems, teleplconmganies (referred to herein as
"telcos"), and cable multiple system operatorsefrefd to as "MSO"s), and the MSOs' affiliated regioor individual cable systems (all
collectively referred to as the "Distributors").tAdugh our Networks currently have arrangementmgoeements with, and are being carried by
many of the largest Distributors, having such atrehship or agreement with a Distributor doesatatays ensure that the Distributors will
continue to carry our Networks. Additionally, under Cable Businesses' current contracts and arnaegts, the Cable Businesses typically
offer Distributors the right to transmit the progmaing services comprising our Cable Businessesein subscribers, but not all such contracts
or arrangements require that the programming ses\éomprising our Cable Businesses be offered subscribers of, or any specific tiers of,
or to a specific minimum number of subscribers Blistributor. Also, WAPA PR is dependent on itsaesmission consent agreements that
provide for per subscriber fees with annual ratakgors. No assurances can be provided that WAR il be able to renegotiate all such
agreements on favorable terms, on a timely basit all. A failure to secure a renewal of our Netks' agreements, or a renewal on less
favorable terms may result in a reduction in ousiBass's retransmission fees, subscriber feescvitesing revenues, and may have a
material adverse effect on our results of operateomd financial position.

The success of our Business is dependent upon atbieg revenue, which is seasonal and cyclical, andl also fluctuate as a result of a
number of other factors, some of which are beyond control.

The success of our Business is dependemt apr advertising revenues. Our Networks' abititgell advertising time and space depends
on, among other things:

. economic conditions in the markets in which ounixierks operate;

. the popularity of the programming offered by ourtearks;
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. changes in the population demographics in the nisitkevhich our Networks operate;

. advertising price fluctuations, which can be aféelchy the popularity of programming, the availapibf programming, and the
relative supply of and demand for commercial adsie;

. our competitors' activities, including increagemnpetition from other advertising-based mediupasticularly MVPD operators,
and the internet;

. decisions by advertisers to withdraw or delagnpled advertising expenditures for any reason;
. labor disputes or other disruptions at major adsers;

. changes in audience ratings; and

. other factors beyond our control.

Audience ratings may be impacted by a nurobé&ctors outside of our control, including eclilee in viewership, changes in ratings
technology or methodology or changes in househantapding. Any decline in audience ratings could eanevenue to decline, adversely
impacting our Business and our operating resulis.&dvertising revenue and results are also sutjesgasonal and cyclical fluctuations that
we expect to continue. Seasonal fluctuations tyfyicasult in higher operating income in the fougiharter than in the first, second, and third
quarters of each year. This seasonality is primatiributable to advertisers' increased expenelitim anticipation of the holiday season
spending. In addition, we typically experiencesramease in revenue every four years as a resalt\eértising sales in respect of local
government elections in Puerto Rico. The next jpalityear will be 2016. As a result of the seasityaind cyclicality of our revenue, and the
historically significant increase in our revenueidg election years, investors are cautioned thas been, and is expected to remain, difficull
to engage in period-over-period comparisons ofreuenue and results of operations.

If our Networks' viewership declines for any reaspar our audience ratings decline for any reason eur Networks fail to develop an
distribute popular programs, our advertising andlsscriber fee revenues could decrease.

Our Networks' viewership and audience gajras applicable, are critical factors affectioghk(i) the advertising revenue that we receive,
and (ii) the extent of retransmission, distributaod subscriber fees we receive, as applicablesruagteements with our Distributors. Our
ratings are dependent, in part, on our abilitydosistently create and acquire programming thatsrtbe changing preferences of viewers in
general and viewers in our Networks' target denpgcacategory.

Our Networks viewership is also affectedlny quality and acceptance of competing programsogher content offered by other
networks, the availability of alternative formseftertainment and leisure time activities, inclgdgeneral economic conditions, piracy, digital
and on-demand distribution and growing competifmmconsumer discretionary spending. Audience gatimay be impacted by a number of
factors outside of our control, including a declineiewership, changes in ratings technology othméology or changes in household
sampling. Any decline in our Networks' viewershipaodience ratings could cause advertising revemdecline, subscription revenues to fall,
and adversely impact our Business and operatindtses

Our Networks may not be able to grow their subseti and/or subscriber/retransmission fees, or sugttbscribers and/or fees may decline
and, as a result, our revenues and profitability gnaot increase and could decrease.

The growth of our Networks' subscriber baspends upon many factors, such as overall growthble, satellite and telco subscribers
popularity of our Networks' programming, our alilib negotiate new carriage agreements, or amentsrtror renewals of, current carriage
agreements,
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maintenance of existing distribution, and the sasad our marketing efforts in driving consumer deih for their content, as well as other
factors that are beyond our control.

A major component of our financial growthagegy is based on our ability to increase ourl€8lisinesses' subscriber base. If our Cable
Businesses' programming services are requiredeoif@C to be offered on an "a la carte" basis, @bl€Businesses could experience higher
costs, reduced distribution of our program servigzhaps significantly, and lose viewers. Therelmano assurance that we will be able to
maintain or increase our Cable Businesses' sulesdrdse on cable, satellite and telco systemsadiotir current carriage will not decrease as
result of a number of factors or that we will béeao maintain or increase our Cable Businessegtigusubscriber fee rates.

In particular, negotiations for new cargaggreements, or amendments to, or renewals oérdwrarriage agreements, are lengthy and
complex, and our Networks are not able to prediti any accuracy when such increases in our suigrdpiases may occur, if at all, or if we
can maintain or increase our current subscribeofaetransmission fee rates, as applicable. Ifietworks are unable to grow our subscriber
bases or if we reduce our subscriber fee or raet@sson fee rates, as applicable, our revenuesnoaiyncrease and could decrease.

The television market in which our Networks operagehighly competitive, and we may not be able tonpete effectively, particularly
against competitors with greater financial resoueébrand recognition, marketplace presence and tielaships with service providers.

Our Networks compete with other televisabrannels for the distribution of their programmidgyelopment and acquisition of content,
audience viewership and advertising sales. Witheeisto audiences, television stations competegrifynbased on program popularity. We
cannot provide any assurances as to the acceptdhjilaudiences of any of the programs our Netwbrkadcast. Further, because our
Networks compete for the rights to produce or lg==pertain programming, we cannot provide any asses that we will be able to produce
obtain any desired programming at costs that wielehre reasonable. Our inability or failure todmcast popular programs on our Networks
or otherwise maintain viewership for any reasonluding as a result of significant increases ingpaonming alternatives and the failure to
compete with new technological innovations couklitein a lack of advertisers, or a reduction i@ #imount advertisers are willing to pay u
advertise, which could have a material adverseceffe our Business, financial condition, and resaftoperations.

Our Networks compete with other Spanistgleage broadcast and cable television networksdayitdl media companies for the
acquisition of programming, viewership, the salad¥ertising, and creative talent. Our Networke @lsmpete for the development and
acquisition of programming, selling of commerciaié on our Networks and on-air and creative talins. possible that our competitors, many
of which have substantially greater financial apérational resources than our Networks, could eethigir programming to offer more
competitive programming which is of interest to dletworks' viewers.

Additionally, our Cable Businesses competa other television channels to be included ia tiiferings of each video service provider
and for placement in the packaged offerings hatliegmost subscribers. For example, our Cable Bss@é® ability to secure distribution is
dependent upon the production, acquisition and g@iok] of programming, audience viewership, andptiiees charged for carriage. Our Cable
Businesses' contractual agreements with Distrilsuaoe renewed or renegotiated from time to tim@énordinary course of business. With
respect to WAPA PR, cable network programming, doedbwith increased access to cable and sateNiteh@s become a significant
competitor for broadcast television programminguges.

Our Networks also compete for advertisiegenue with general-interest television and otben$ of media, including magazines,
newspapers, radio and other digital media. Ouitghd secure additional advertising accounts ne¢ato our Networks' operations depends
upon the size of each
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Networks' audience, the popularity of our programgrind the demographics of our viewers, as weltrasegies taken by our Networ
competitors, strategies taken by advertisers amdetative bargaining power of advertisers. Contipgtifor advertising accounts and related
advertising expenditures is intense. We faces ctitiggefor such advertising expenditures from ai@grof sources, including other networks
and other media. We cannot provide assurance thmatetworks' advertising sponsors will pay advérgsates for commercial air time at
levels sufficient for us to make a profit, that wil maintain relationships with our current advsirig sponsors or that we will be able to attrac
new advertising sponsors or increase advertisimgmaes. Changes in ratings technology, or methggado metrics used by advertisers or
other changes in advertisers' media buying stresegjso could have a material adverse effect ofimamcial condition and results of
operations. If we are unable to attract advertisiogpunts in sufficient quantities, our revenues rofitability may be harmed.

Certain technological advances, includimgincreased deployment of fiber optic cable, apeeted to allow cable and telecommunica
video service providers to continue to expand Ilodir channel and broadband distribution capacéi@sto increase transmission speeds. In
addition, the ability to deliver content via newtimads and devices is expected to increase sutmtaniihe impact of such added capacities is
hard to predict, but the development of new mettaid®ntent distribution could dilute our Networksarket share and lead to increased
competition for viewers by facilitating the emergerof additional channels and mobile and intertetfgrms through which viewers could
view programming that is similar to that offereddayr Networks.

If any of our existing competitors or neantpetitors, many of which have substantially grefitencial and operational resources thar
Networks, significantly expand their operationglweir market penetration, our Business could benkdr If any of these competitors were €
to invent improved technology, or our Networks weot able to prevent them from obtaining and ush@gr own proprietary technology and
trade secrets, our Business and operating reaslisell as our Networks' future growth prospeatsia be negatively affected. There can be
assurance that our Networks will be able to competeessfully in the future against existing or m@mpetitors, or that increasing competi
will not have a material adverse effect on our Bass, financial condition or results of operations.

Our results may be adversely affected if long-tepnogramming contracts are not renewed on sufficignfavorable terms.

Our Networks enter into long-term contrdotsacquisition of programming, including moviéslevision series, sporting rights and other
programs. As these contracts expire, our Networkstimenew or renegotiate these contracts, and iNetworks are unable to renew them on
acceptable terms, we may lose programming rightsnbf these contracts are renewed, the cost @by programming rights may increase
(or increase at faster rates than our historicakggnce) or the revenue from distribution of peogs may be reduced (or increase at slower
rates than our historical experience). With respatihe acquisition of programming rights, the irtipaf these londgerm contracts on our rest
over the term of the contracts depends on a nupftfactors, including effectiveness of marketinépes, the size of audiences and the stre
of advertising markets. There can be no assurdratedvenues from programming based on these rigiitexceed the cost of the rights plus
the other costs of distributing the programming.

Technologies in the television industry are constgrchanging, as is consumer behavior resulting fronew technologies, and our
Networks' failure to acquire or maintain sta-of-the-art technology or adapt our business modelay harm our Business and competitive
advantage.

Technology in the video, telecommunicatiand data services industry is changing rapidlynyvt@chnologies and technological
standards are in development and have the potémtsignificantly
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transform the ways in which programming is created transmitted. In particular, programming offeoeér the Internet has become more
prevalent as the speed and quality of broadbarndanks have improved. For example, providers sudHwds, Netflix, Apple TV, Amazon and
Google TV are aggressively working to establismtbelves as alternative providers of video servi€bsse services and the growing
availability of online content, coupled with an exgling market for connected devices and internetected televisions, may impact our
traditional distribution methods for our Networkstvices and content. Additionally, devices thiivalusers to view television programs on a
time-shifted basis and technologies that enablesusdast-forward or skip programming have caugeghges in consumer behavior that may
affect the attractiveness of our offerings to atisers and could therefore adversely affect ouemexes. We cannot accurately predict the ef
that implementing new technologies will have on Networks' programming and operations. We may baired to incur substantial capital
expenditures to implement new technologies, oxgiffail to do so, may face significant new challesgue to technological advances adoptec
by competitors, which in turn could result in hangriour Business and operating results. Additiondfig development of new methods of
content distribution could dilute our Networks' iketrshare and lead to increased competition foveris.

Certain digital video recording technolag@adfered by cable and satellite systems allow eimwo digitally record, store and play back
television programming at a later time and may iohmaur advertising revenue. Most of these techriebbgermit viewers to fast forward
through advertisements; however, a digital videmrding system introduced by satellite provider BlSetwork in 2012 permits viewers that
record and play back programming to skip advertegnentirely, subject to certain time limitatiomte major broadcast networks have
challenged the DISH ad-skipping technology in coamd the outcome of the litigation is unknown. Tise of these technologies may decreas
viewership of commercials as recorded by media oreasent services such as Nielsen Media Researclaardresult, lower the advertising
revenues of our television stations. The curretiga provided by Nielsen for use by broadcastatatare limited to live viewing plus viewir
of a digitally recorded program on the same dathaoriginal air date and give broadcasters noicfeddelayed viewing that occurs after the
original air date. The effects of new ratings systechnologies including people meters and sebtoges, and the ability of such technologies
to be a reliable standard that can be used by &sieris currently unknown.

In addition, on January 10, 2014, the Soqgr€ourt agreed to hear a case captidkredrican Broadcasting Companies, Inc., et al. v.
Aereo, Inc, which involves a challenge from several broaderastf the Aereo service, which transmits to itssstibers broadcast television
programs over the Internet for a monthly subsaipfee. At issue is whether Aereo's service vislatpyright law and whether Aereo must
obtain permission to retransmit broadcasters' pmgring. Should Aereo and its competitors prevaihapending litigation, and certain onli
video distributors and over-the-top video distrdogtbecome eligible for a statutory license thatild@nable them to stream broadcast
programming over the Internet, it could have a tiggampact on our retransmission consent negotiatiwith MVPDs, and our Business and
results of operations could be materially and agklgraffected. We cannot predict the ultimate one®f this proceeding.

Disruption or failures of our information technolog systems could have a material adverse effect @nBusiness.

Our information technology systems are spsble to security breaches, operational datg peseral disruptions in functionality, and r
not be compatible with new technology. We dependuminformation technology systems for the effestiess of our operations and to
interface with our Networks' customers, as wellcasiaintain financial records and accuracy. Didarpbr failures of our and our subsidiaries'
information technology systems could impair oudigbio effectively and
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timely provide their services and products and ma&inour financial records, which could damage reputation and have a material adverse
effect on our Business.

We are subject to restrictions on foreign ownership

Under the Communications Act, a broaddashke may not be granted to or held by any cotjporséhat has more than 20% of its capital
stock owned or voted by non-U.S. citizens or ezgitir their representatives, by foreign governmentieir representatives, or by non-U.S.
corporations.

Furthermore, the Communications Act prositleat no FCC broadcast license may be grantedheld by any corporation that is directly
or indirectly controlled by any other corporatidmwhich more than 25% of the capital stock is owoedoted by non-U.S. citizens or entities
or their representatives, by foreign governmentsheir representatives, or by non-U.S. corporatidrthe FCC finds the public interest will be
served by the refusal or revocation of such licefbese restrictions apply in modified form to atf@ms of business organizations, including
partnerships and limited liability companies. TH@G~has interpreted this provision of the Commuimeest Act to require an affirmative public
interest finding before a broadcast license magrhated to or held by any such entity. Thus, tbernges for WAPA PR's television stations
could be revoked if more than 25% of our outstagdiapital stock is issued to or for the benefibof-U.S. citizens, unless the FCC has ruled
in advance that such ownership would be in theipufilerest.

To the extent necessary to comply withGeenmunications Act and FCC rules and policies,bmard of directors may (i) take any action
it believes necessary to prohibit the ownershipating of more than 25% of our outstanding cagstatk by or for the account of aliens or tl
representatives or by a foreign government or sspretive thereof or by any entity organized uridedaws of a foreign country (collectively,
"Aliens"), or by any other entity (a) that is sutijéo or deemed to be subject to control by Aliensade jureor de factobasis or (b) owned by,
or held for the benefit of Aliens in a manner thatuld cause use to be in violation of the Commuinoas Act or FCC rules and policies;

(i) prohibit any transfer of our capital stock whiwe believe could cause more than 25% of outandigng capital stock to be owned or voted
by or for any person or entity identified in thedgoing clause (i); (iii) prohibit the ownershimting or transfer of any portion of its
outstanding capital stock to the extent the owriprsioting or transfer of such portion would causeo violate or would otherwise result in
violation of any provision of the CommunicationstAc FCC rules and policies; (iv) convert shareswf Class B common stock into shares o
our Class A common stock to the extent necessabyirig us into compliance with the Communicatiore ér FCC rules and policies; and

(v) redeem capital stock to the extent necessabpyitg us into compliance with the Communicatioret 8r FCC rules and policies or to
prevent the loss or impairment of any of our FG@€ises.

Federal regulation of the broadcasting industry lite WAPA PR's operating flexibility.

The ownership, operation and sale of brastielevision stations, such as WAPA PR, are stibjethe jurisdiction of the FCC under the
Communications Act. Matters subject to FCC oversigtiude the assignment of frequency bands foaticast television; the approval of a
television station's frequency, location and opegapower; the issuance, renewal, revocation orifivation of a television station's FCC
license; the approval of changes in the ownershigootrol of a television station's licensee; thgulation of equipment used by television
stations; and the adoption and implementation @fil&ions and policies concerning the ownershigration, programming and employment
practices of television stations.

WAPA PR depends upon maintaining its breatiticenses, which are issued by the FCC forma tdreight years and are renewable.
Applications to renew the broadcast licenses dafeddivision stations licensed to communities inrRuRico, including those associated with
WAPA-TV, were
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renewed in 2013. In the future, interested partiag challenge a renewal application. The FCC hastithority to revoke licenses, not renew
them, or renew them with conditions, including neaés for less than a full term. It cannot be asdibhat our license renewal applications for
WAPA PR in the future will be approved, or that thaewals, if granted, will not include conditiomsqualifications that could adversely aff
our operations. If WAPA PR's licenses are not rextim the future, or renewed with substantial ctiods or modifications (including
renewing one or more of our licenses for a terrfeafer than eight years), it could prevent us frgmerating WAPA PR and generating reve
from it.

Furthermore, WAPA PR's ability to succeBgfonegotiate and renegotiate future retransmissmmsent agreements may be hindered by
potential legislative or regulatory changes toftaeework under which these agreements are negdtibkt March 2011, the FCC issued a
Notice of Proposed Rulemaking to consider changés tules governing the negotiation of retransinis consent agreements. The F
concluded that it lacked statutory authority to s mandatory arbitration or interim carriage addiigns in the event of a dispute between
broadcasters and pay television operators. The R@@ever, sought comment on whether it should tfEngthen existing regulatory
provisions requiring broadcasters and MVPDs to tiagoretransmission consent in "good faith,” (@)&nce notice obligations to consumers
of potential disruptions in service, and/or (3)ezxt the prohibition on ceasing carriage of a braatistation's signal during an audience
measurement period to DBS systems. The FCC hagh@sued a decision in this proceeding, and weaatpredict the outcome of any FCC
regulatory action in this regard.

Our Networks are subject to FCC sanctions or perettif they violate the FCC's rules or regulations.

If we or any of our officers, directors, attributable interest holders materially violate FCC's rules and regulations or are convictead of
felony or are found to have engaged in unlawfuicempetitive conduct or fraud upon another goveminagency, the FCC may, in respons
a petition by a third party or on its own initiagivin its discretion, commence a proceeding to sepganctions upon us that could involve the
imposition of monetary penalties, the denial atarise renewal application, revocation of a brostideense or other sanctions. In addition,
FCC has recently emphasized more vigorous enfoneeafieertain of its regulations, including indecgrstandards, sponsorship identification
requirements, children's programming requiremeguublic file requirements, which impact broadcastarsl also rules that relate to the
emergency alert system and close captioning, andl @mployment opportunity outreach and recordkegpéquirements, which impact
MVPDs. For example, in 2006, the statutory maxinfima for broadcasting indecent material increasethf$32,500 to $325,000 per incident.
These enhanced enforcement efforts could resultieased costs associated with the adoption apktimentation of stricter compliance
procedures at our business facilities or FCC fidaklitionally, the effect of recent judicial deasis regarding the FCC's indecency
enforcement practices remain unclear and we areleina predict the impact of these decisions orRBE's enforcement practices, which
could have a material adverse effect on our Busines

The cable, satellite and telco-delivered televisindustry is subject to substantial governmentaftgation for which compliance may
increase our Networks' costs, hinder our growth apdssibly expose us to penalties for failure to quyn

The multichannel video programming disttibo industry is subject to extensive legislatiomd aegulation at the federal level, and many
aspects of such regulation are currently the stibfgadicial proceedings and administrative origégtive proposals. Operating in a regulated
industry increases our cost of doing businessdmovprogrammers, and such regulation may also himgreability to increase and/or maintain
our revenues. The regulation of programming sesvissubject to the political process and contirtadse under evaluation and subject to
change. Material changes in the
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law and regulatory requirements are difficult téicipate and our Business may be harmed by fukgislation, new regulation, deregulation
and/or court decisions interpreting such laws aguilations.

The following are examples of the typesufrently active legislative, regulatory and judidnquiries and proceedings that may impact
our Cable Businesses. The FCC may adopt rules wiield require cable and satellite providers to enakailable programming channels on
an a la carte basis. A major component of our firrgrowth strategy is based on our ability tor@ase our Cable Businesses' subscriber bas
If our Cable Businesses' programming servicesegqeired by the FCC to be offered on an "a la cdrvésis, our Cable Businesses could
experience higher costs, reduced distribution ofpsagram service, perhaps significantly, and Mis&ers. There can be no assurance that w
will be able to maintain or increase our Cable Basses' subscriber base on cable, satellite araldgstems or that our current carriage will
not decrease as a result of a number of factattsabrwve will be able to maintain or increase oubl€@usinesses' current subscriber fee rates.

Further, the FCC and certain courts arengxiag the types of technologies that will be cdesed "multichannel video programming
systems" under federal regulation and the ruleswiibbe applied to distribution of television gg@amming via such technologies. We cannot
predict the outcome of any of these inquiries @cpedings or how their outcome would impact oulitglib have our Cable Businesses'
content carried on multichannel programming distidn and the value of our advertising inventories.

Our Cable Businesses may become subject to Proghaeess restrictions.

Under the Communications Act, verticallyeigrated cable programmers are generally prohilfiitad offering different prices, terms, or
conditions to competing multichannel video prograngrdistributors unless the differential is justidiby certain permissible factors set fort
the FCC's regulations. A cable programmer is camsiito be vertically integrated if it owns or isreed by a cable television operator in wt
or in part under the FCC's program access attdhutiles. Cable television operators for this pagomay include telephone companies that
provide video programming directly to subscribdiise other holdings of entities that acquire anrggein our capital stock may be attributable
to our Cable Businesses for purposes of the progi@ress rules, and therefore could have the effentiking our Cable Businesses subject tc
the program access rules. If our Cable Businesses 1@ become subject to the program access thkisflexibility to negotiate the most
favorable terms available for their content couddalolversely affected. Our amended and restataflazet of incorporation provides for our
ability to restrict ownership or redeem sharesesfain holders, if we believe that the ownershipmposed ownership of shares of our capital
stock by any person may limit or impair any of agtivities under the Communications Act. Howevkeré can be no assurances that our
under our amended and restated certificate of puration, will allow a timely resolution to the litation or impairment of our activities under
the Communications Act. As a result, if our CablesBBesses were to become subject to the prograesscales, could have a material advers
effect on our Business, financial condition anditessof operations.
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Cable, satellite and telco television programmirigrgals have been stolen or could be stolen in th&ufe, which reduces our potential
revenue from subscriber fees and advertising.

The delivery of subscription programminguges the use of conditional access technolodiyntib access to programming to only those
who subscribe to programming and are authorizedete it. Conditional access systems use, among ¢hiivegs, encryption technology to
protect the transmitted signal from unauthorizetkss. It is illegal to create, sell or otherwisgtrithute software or devices to circumvent
conditional access technologies. However, theffrogramming has been widely reported, and the acmesmart" cards used in service
providers' conditional access systems have beeprmonised and could be further compromised in tieréu When conditional access system:
are compromised, our Networks do not receive theri@l subscriber fee revenues from the serviogigers. Further, measures that could be
taken by service providers to limit such theft mo¢ under our control. While we take proactive stepcombat piracy through the encryptior
our signal and other measures, there can be ncaasss that these or other steps are effectivacyof our Networks' copyrighted materials
could reduce our revenue and negatively affecBusiness and operating results.

"Must-carry" regulations reduce the amount of chargl space that is available for carriage of the CalBusinesses cable offerings.

The Cable Act of 1992 imposed "must cagy"retransmission consent" regulations on calbdtesys, requiring them to carry the signals
of local broadcast television stations that chdosexercise their must carry rights rather tharotia¢e a retransmission consent arrangement.
Direct broadcast satellite ("DBS") systems are aldgject to their own must carry rules. The FC@iglementation of these "must-carry"
obligations requires cable and DBS operators te gertain broadcasters preferential access to ehapace. This reduces the amount of
channel space that is available for carriage of@alile Businesses offerings by cable televisiotesys and DBS operators in the U.S.
Congress, the FCC or any other foreign governmeyt, in the future, adopt new laws, regulations poiities regarding a wide variety of
matters which could affect our Cable Businesses.

We have operations, properties and viewers thatlagated in Puerto Rico and could be adversely aféal in the event of a hurricane or
other extreme weather conditions.

WAPA PR's corporate office and productianilities are located in Puerto Rico, where majaricanes have occurred, as well as other
extreme weather conditions, such as tornadoegjdldoes, unusually heavy or prolonged rain, ditis@nd heat waves. Depending on where
any particular hurricane or other weather eventesdétndfall, our properties in Puerto Rico coulgeience significant damage. Such event
could have an adverse effect on our ability to boaat our programming or produce new shows, whichdchave an adverse effect on our
Business and results of operations. Additionallgngnof WAPA PR's regular viewers may be left withpawer and unable to view our
programming which could have an adverse effectworBausiness and results of operations.

Puerto Rico's continuing economic hardships may & negative effect on the overall performance of &usiness, financial conditior
and results of operations.

Current financial and economic conditiom$uerto Rico continue to be uncertain and theigoation or worsening of such conditions
could reduce consumer confidence and have an adeffect on WAPA PR's business, results of opanatiand/or financial condition. If
consumer confidence were to decline, this declmédcnegatively affect WAPA PR's advertising custoshbusinesses and their advertising
budgets. In addition, continued volatile econongnditions could have a negative impact on the hrasidtelevision industry or the industries
of WAPA PR's customers who advertise on WAPY resulting in reduced advertising sales. Furtiae, it may be possible that actions te
by any governmental or regulatory body for the pgmof stabilizing the economy or financial markets
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will not achieve their intended effect. In addititmany negative direct consequences to our Busioeresults of operations arising from these
financial and economic developments, some of taeiens may adversely affect financial institutiooapital providers, advertisers, or other
consumers on whom we rely. Additionally, our acdessiture capital or financing arrangements, erchbst of such capital or financings, may
be affected by the economic climate in Puerto Rico.

Puerto Rico's track record of poor budgeitmls and high poverty levels compared to the. @v@&rage presents ongoing challenges.
Although Puerto Rico has implemented measuresdbvdh its budgetary gaps and economic challenigetyding significant expenditure
controls and revenue enhancement measures, Pueat@éssesses an economy in recession since 200@&d economic activity, lower-than-
estimated revenue collections, high government ldsfets relative to the size of the economy, fosted budget deficits through 2015, and
other potential fiscal challenges. Significant jobses, potential expenses and delays implemebntidget solutions, the loss or reduction in the
flow of federal funds, and contraction in the mamtifiring and construction sectors could furthegluein the risks associated with the our
exposure to Puerto Rico's economy.

If economic conditions in Puerto Rico deteate, we may experience a reduction in existimgj @ew business, which could have a mai
adverse effect on our Business, financial condiéind results of operations.

Certain of our Cable Businesses have internatiomgderations and exposures that incur certain risketrfound in doing business in the
United States.

Doing business in foreign countries carmigth it certain risks that are not found in doimgsiness in the United States. The risks of doing
business in foreign countries that could resulbgses against which our Cable Networks are notr@tsinclude:

. exposure to local economic conditions;

. potential adverse changes in the diplomatidiggia of foreign countries with the United States;
. hostility from local populations;

. the adverse effect of currency exchange contiotgher restrictions;

. restrictions on the withdrawal of foreign inwesint and earnings;

. government policies against businesses owned eygfoers;

. investment restrictions or requirements;

. expropriations of property;

. the potential instability of foreign governments;

. the risk of insurrections;

. difficulties in collecting revenues and seekingase against ' parties owing payments to our Cable Networks:
. withholding and other taxes on remittances andrqithgments by subsidiaries; and

. changes in taxation structure.

Any violation of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Aadr other similar laws and regulations could havenggative impact on us

We are subject to risks associated witmglbiusiness outside of the United States, whiclosegus to complex foreign and U.S.
regulations inherent in doing business cross-baaddrin each of the
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countries in which we transact business. We argstuto regulations imposed by the Foreign CorRuaictices Act, or the FCPA, and other
anti-corruption laws that generally prohibit U.8nmpanies and their subsidiaries from offering, geamg, authorizing or making improper
payments to foreign government officials for thegmse of obtaining or retaining business. Violatiofithe FCPA and other anti-corruption
laws may result in severe criminal and civil samusi as well as other penalties and the SEC andDéfsartment of Justice have increased the
enforcement activities with respect to the FCPAerdmal control policies and procedures and emplésgaeing and compliance programs that
we have implemented to deter prohibited practicag not be effective in prohibiting employees, cantors or agents from violating or
circumventing such policies and the law. If our éogpes or agents fail to comply with applicable $aov company policies governing their
international operations, we may face investigatjgmosecutions and other legal proceedings amuhaoivhich could result in civil penalties,
administrative remedies and criminal sanctions. Aetermination that we have violated the FCPA ctalde a material adverse effect on our
financial condition. Compliance with internatiorsadd U.S. laws and regulations that apply to intéonal operations increases the cost of
doing business in foreign jurisdictions.

Adverse conditions in the U.S. and international@®mies could negatively impact our results of oaons.

Unfavorable general economic conditionshsas a recession or economic slowdown in pariseobnited States or in one or more of the
major markets in which we operate, could negatiaélgct the affordability of and demand for sometddir products and services. In addition,
adverse economic conditions may lead to loss a$a@ifitions for our Networks. If these events weredcur, it could have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations.

The risks associated with our advertisggenue become more acute in periods of a slowiagaay or recession, which may be
accompanied by a decrease in advertising. Exparditay advertisers tend to be cyclical, reflectmgrall economic conditions and budgeting
and buying patterns. Cancellations, reductionsetayd in purchases of advertising could, and aftgroccur as a result of a strike, a general
economic downturn, an economic downturn in one orenindustries or in one or more geographic amaa failure to agree on contractual
terms.

Any potential hostilities, terrorist attacks, ormailarly newsworthy events leading to broadcast mtgtions, may affect our revenues ar
results of operations.

If any existing hostilities escalate, othié United States experiences a terrorist attaekperiences any similar event resulting in
interruptions to regularly schedule broadcasting,may lose revenue and/or incur increased expelbgsstevenue and increased expenses
may be due to preemption, delay or cancellatioadvkertising campaigns, or diminished subscribes,fas well as increased costs of covering
such events. We cannot predict the (i) extent oatitin of any future disruption to our programmsuedule, (i) amount of advertising
revenue that would be lost or delayed, (iii) theoant of decline in any subscriber fees or (iv) antday which broadcasting expenses would
increase as a result. Any such loss of revenueramneased expenses could negatively affect outteestioperations.

Recent legislation could result in the reallocatiaf broadcast spectrum for wireless broadband dnextnor-broadcast use.

In February 2012, Congress passed andrésdent signed legislation that, among other thiggants the FCC authority to conduct an
incentive auction to recapture certain spectrumecilly used by television broadcasters and reperfider other uses. On October 2, 2012, the
FCC released a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking tonlieglevelop the rules and procedures to implertientncentive auction authorized by
Congress. That rulemaking process remains ongdimg FCC Chairman recently indicated that he ardteip that the FCC will adopt rules for
the incentive auction
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in the first half of 2014 and that he believes thatFCC will conduct the incentive auction by thigldle of 2015. The incentive auction proc
would have three components.

First, the FCC would conduct a reverseiandiy which each television broadcaster may choosetain its rights to a 6 MHz channel of
spectrum or volunteer, in return for payment, tongriish some or all of its station's spectrum byrendering the station's license; relinquist
the right to some of the station's spectrum ancktfeer share spectrum with another station; arstfations that operate in the UHF spectrum,
modifying the station's UHF channel license to aRvi¢thannel license.

Second, in order to accommodate the spaateallocated to new users, the FCC will "repabié’ temaining television broadcast
spectrum, which may require certain televisionistet that did not participate in the reverse auctomodify their transmission facilities,
including requiring such stations to operate orepthannel designations. The FCC is authorizeditolurse stations for reasonable relocatior
costs up to a total across all stations of $1.#®bi In addition, Congress directed the FCC, whepacking the television broadcast spectrum
to use reasonable efforts to preserve a stationerage area and population served. In additianFBC is prohibited from requiring a station
to move involuntarily from the UHF spectrum bartte band in which WAPA PR's broadcast licenses ¢t@et@the VHF spectrum band or
from the high VHF band to the low VHF band.

Third, the FCC would conduct a forward &ebf the relinquished broadcast spectrum to negrsi The FCC must complete the reverse
auction and the forward auction by September 32220

The outcome of the incentive auction anmhoking of broadcast television spectrum or theaichpf such items on our Business cannot b
predicted.

Our Networks are subject to interruptions of diditition as a result of our reliance on broadcast ters, satellites and Distributors for
transmission of its programming. A significant inteuption in transmission ability could seriously &ct our Business and results of
operations, particularly if not fully covered bystinsurance.

Our Networks could experience interruptiofslistribution or potentially long-term increaseatts of delivery if the ability of broadcast
towers, satellites or satellite transponders, atribiutors to transmit our Networks' content iguliged because of accidents, weather
interruptions, governmental regulation, terrorigmother third party action.

As protection against these hazards, wataiaiinsurance coverage against some, but natuadh potential losses and liabilities. We may
not be able to maintain or obtain insurance oftyipe and amount we desire at reasonable ratesrésuli of market conditions, premiums and
deductibles for certain of our insurance policiegyrincrease substantially. In some instances,indrtaurance could become unavailable or
available only for reduced amounts of coverage.gxample, coverage for hurricane damage can beelimdnd coverage for terrorism risks
can include broad exclusions. If our Networks wergncur a significant liability for which we wereot fully insured, it could have a material
adverse effect on our financial position.

The success of much of our Business is dependemtruihe retention and performance of on-air talenhd program hosts and other key
employees.

Our Business depend upon the continuedteffabilities and expertise of our corporate exgeuteam. There can be no assurance that
these individuals will remain with us. Our Busing#sancial condition and results of operationslddue materially adversely affected if we
lose any of these persons and are unable to aétndatetain qualified replacements. Additionallyy dletworks independently contract with
several on-air personalities and hosts with sigaift loyal audiences in their respective markelhoigh our Networks have entered into long
term agreements with some of
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their key on-air talent and program hosts to prtateeir interests in those relationships, we cam gio assurance that all or any of these perso
will remain with our Networks or will retain thetudiences. Competition for these individuals ismse and many of these individuals are
under no legal obligation to remain with our NetksrOur competitors may choose to extend offeemnipoof these individuals on terms which
our Networks may be unable or unwilling to meetitkermore, the popularity and audience loyalty wf Networks' key on-air talent and
program hosts is highly sensitive to rapidly chaggbublic tastes. A loss of such popularity or ande loyalty is beyond our control and could
limit our Network' ability to generate revenue ammld have a material adverse effect on our Busirfesncial condition and results of
operations.

We may need to increase the size of our organizgtend may experience difficulties in managing grdw

At Hemisphere, the parent holding compave/do not have significant operating assets anyl lwewve a limited number of employees. In
connection with the completion of any future acdgiges, we may be required to hire additional parsgl and enhance our information
technology systems. Any future growth may incre@secorporate operating costs and impose signifiadded responsibilities on members of
our management, including the need to identifyrucmaintain and integrate additional employered @anplement enhanced informational
technology systems. Our future financial perforneaand our ability to compete effectively will degeim part, on our ability to manage any
future growth effectively. Future growth will al§aicrease our costs and expenses and limit ourdiityui

We could be adversely affected by strikes or otingion job actions.

A majority of our employees in Puerto Rare highly specialized union members who are esdaatthe production of television
programs and news. These employees are coverear I§§BAs which expire on July 23, 2015 and June2P16, respectively. A strike by, or a
lockout of, one or more of the unions that proyi@esonnel essential to the production of televigimgrams could delay or halt our ongoing
production activities. Such a halt or delay, depegadn the length of time, could cause a delayntarruption in the programming schedule of
certain of our Networks, which could have a matex@tverse effect on our Business, financial coonditind results of operations.

We could become obligated to pay additional conttibns due to the unfunded vested benefits of a timumhployer pension plan. A future
incurrence of withdrawal liability could have a matial effect on our results of operations.

WAPA PR makes contributions to the Newsp#&péild International Pension Plan (the "Plan" 8NGIPP"), a multiemployer pension
plan with a plan year end of December 31 that glesidefined benefits to certain employees coveydadbd CBAs, which expire on July 23,
2015 and June 27, 2016, respectively. WAPA PR'sritortion rates to the Plan are generally detershineaccordance with the provisions of
the CBAs.

The risks in participating in such a plae different from the risks of single-employer gam the following respects:

. Assets contributed to a multiemployer plan by ompleyer may be used to provide benefits to emplsyd®ther participating
employer.
. If a participating employer ceases to contributa taultiemployer plan, the unfunded obligationtw plan may be borne by the

remaining participating employers.

WAPA PR has received Annual Funding Notidsport of Summary Plan Information, Critical 8&Notices ("Notices"”) and a
Rehabilitation Plan, as defined by the Pensiondetmn Act of 2006 ("PPA"), from the Plan. The Mt indicate that the Plan actuary has
certified that the Plan is in
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critical status, the "Red Zone", as defined byRF&\, and that a plan of rehabilitation ("RehaMiiita Plan") was adopted by the Trustees of
Plan ("Trustees") on May 1, 2010. On May 29, 20h6, Trustees sent WAPA PR a Notice of Reduction/djdstment of Benefits Due to
Critical Status explaining all changes adopted utiole Rehabilitation Plan, including the reduct@relimination of benefits referred to as
"adjustable benefits." In connection with the admpof the Rehabilitation Plan, most of the Plartipgpating unions and contributing
employers (including the Newspaper Guild Internadicand WAPA PR), agreed to one of the "schedwdéshanges as set forth under the
Rehabilitation Plan. WAPA PR elected the "Prefei$etiedule” and executed a Memorandum of Agreerafettive May 27, 2010 (the
"MOA") and agreed to the following contribution eahcreases: 3.0% beginning on January 1, 2018ddiional 3.0% beginning on Januar
2014; and an additional 3% beginning on Janua®015.

The future cost of the Plan depends onnalau of factors, including the funding status @& Blan and the ability of other participating
companies to meet ongoing funding obligations.i€lpgting employers in the Plan are jointly respblesfor any plan underfunding. Assets
contributed to the Plan are not segregated orwikerestricted to provide benefits only to the types of WAPA PR. While WAPA PR's
pension cost for the Plan is established by the 0Ban may impose increased contribution ratessancharges based on the funded status o
the plan and in accordance with the provisiondhiefRPA. Factors that could impact the funded stttise Plan include investment
performance, changes in the participant demograpfif@ncial stability of contributing employersdachanges in actuarial assumptions.

The surcharges and effect of the RehatiditePlan as described above are not anticipatbdve a material effect on our results of
operations. However, in the event other contrilqugmployers are unable to, or fail to, meet thagaing funding obligations, the financial
impact on WAPA PR to contribute to any plan undeding may be material. In addition, if a Unitedt8tamultiemployer defined benefit plan
fails to satisfy certain minimum funding requirertg&rnhe Internal Revenue Service may impose a rohradible excise tax of 5% on the
amount of the accumulated funding deficiency farsthemployers contributing to the fund.

WAPA PR could also be obligated to pay &ddal contributions (known as complete or panti#ghdrawal liabilities) due to the unfunded
vested benefits of the Plan, in the event WAPA RfRdrew from the plan during the five-year pericebinning on the effective date of the
MOA. The withdrawal liability (which could be matal) in the event of the foregoing, would equal tb&l lump sum of contributions WAPA
PR would have been obligated to pay the Plan thrdlig date of withdrawal, under the "default scheltiof the Rehabilitation Plan (5%
surcharge in the initial year and 10% for each sssive year thereafter the plan is in criticalustgtless any contributions actually paid by
WAPA PR to the Plan under the "preferred schedier'more information, see Note 11, "Retiremenh®laf Notes to Conoslidated Finan
Statements, included in this Annual Report on FbésK.
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A large portion of our revenue is generated fromimited number of customers, and the loss of thesstomers could adversely affect
businesses.

We have historically depended on a fewamsts for a significant percentage of our annutitevenues. The loss of one or more
contracts with one of these customers could adiyeasect our Business, financial condition andulesof operations if the lost revenues were
not replaced with profitable revenues from thataoeer or other customers.

If our goodwill or intangibles become impaired, wéll be required to recognize a n-cash charge which could have a significant effert
our reported net earnings.

A significant portion of our assets consisgoodwill and intangibles. We test our goodwitid intangibles for impairment each year. A
significant downward revision in the present vadfiestimated future cash flows for a reporting woitild result in an impairment of goodwill
and intangibles and a noncash charge would beresjusuch a charge could have a significant effeatur reported net earnings.

Possible strategic initiatives may impact our Busss.

We will continue to evaluate the nature aodpe of our operations and various short-terml@mgiterm strategic considerations. There
uncertainties and risks relating to strategic atities. Also, prospective competitors may havetgrdamancial resources. These factors may
place us at a competitive disadvantage in sucdgsshmpleting future acquisitions and investmersture acquisitions may not be available
on attractive terms, or at all. If we do make asijigins, we may not be able to successfully integtiae acquired businesses. In addition, while
we believe that there may be target businessesviéhabuld potentially acquire or invest in, ourlépito compete with respect to the acquisi
of certain target businesses that are sizablebillmited by our available financial resources. Wy need to obtain additional financing in
order to consummate future acquisitions and investropportunities. We cannot assure you that aditiadal financing will be available to 1
on acceptable terms, if at all. This inherent catitipe limitation gives others with greater finaatresources an advantage in pursuing
acquisition and investment opportunities. Finadlgrtain acquisitions or divestitures may be sukjg&CC approval and FCC rules and
regulations. If we do not realize the expected bener synergies of such transactions, there neagrbadverse effect on our Business, finai
condition and results of operations.

Future acquisitions or business opportunities coulivolve unknown risks that could harm our Businessid adversely affect our financial
condition.

In the future we may acquire other busiasss make other acquisitions, such as the Acq@edzle Business, that involve unknown ri¢
Although we intend to conduct extensive busingasajttial and legal due diligence in connection itk evaluation of future business or
acquisition opportunities, there can be no asseranc due diligence investigations will identifyegy matter that could have a material adw
effect on us. We may be unable to adequately addhnesfinancial, legal and operational risks raiggduch businesses or acquisitions. The
realization of any unknown risks could expose usrtanticipated costs and liabilities and preveriroit us from realizing the projected
benefits of the businesses or acquisitions, whizgliccadversely affect our financial condition amglidity. In addition, our Business, financial
condition, results of operations and the abilitgéovice our debt may be adversely impacted depgragiecific risks applicable to any busines:s
or company we acquire.
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Any potential acquisition or investment in a foreigousiness or a company with significant foreign eqations may subject us to addition
risks.

Acquisitions or investments by us in a fgnebusiness or other companies with significangifgn operations, subjects us to risks inheren
in business operations outside of the United Statesse risks include, for example, currency flatibns, complex foreign regulatory regimes,
unstable local tax policies, restrictions on thevement of funds across national borders and clilaumd language differences. If realized, sc
of these risks may have a material adverse effecun Business, results of operations and liqujdityd can have an adverse effect on our
ability to service our debt.

We could consume resources in researching acquisii, business opportunities or financings and capimarket transactions that are not
consummated, which could materially adversely atfsabsequent attempts to locate and acquire or Btva another business.

We anticipate that the investigation ofteapecific acquisition or business opportunity #elnegotiation, drafting, and execution of
relevant agreements, disclosure documents, and iogteuments, with respect to such transactioii,refuire substantial management time
attention and substantial costs for financial ashgsaccountants, attorneys and other advisoasdécision is made not to consummate a
specific acquisition, business opportunities oaficings and capital market transactions investmefihancing, the costs incurred up to that
point for the proposed transaction likely would hetrecoverable. Furthermore, even if an agreermenatiched relating to a specific
acquisition, investment target or financing, we rfelyto consummate the investment or acquisitimnany number of reasons, including those
beyond our control. Any such event could consumggeiitant management time and result in a lossstofithe related costs incurred, which
could adversely affect our financial position and ability to consummate other acquisitions ancéstments.

We have incurred substantial costs in connectiorttwour prior Transaction and expect to incur signdant costs in connection with the
consummation of the acquisition of the Acquired dalBusiness, including legal, accounting, adviscand other costs.

We have incurred substantial costs in cotioe with our prior acquisition and expect to insubstantial costs in connection with any
other transaction we complete in the future. Faneple, upon the consummation of the acquisitiothefAcquired Cable Business, we expect
to incur significant costs, including a number ohrrecurring costs associated with the transacBome of these costs are payable regardles:
of whether the acquisition is completed. Thesescaidt reduce the amount of cash otherwise avadlablus for acquisitions, business
opportunities and other corporate purposes. Tlsene assurance that the actual costs will not ekoaeestimates. We may continue to incur
additional material charges reflecting additionadts associated with our investments and the iatiegr of our acquisitions including, our
investment in the Acquired Cable Business, in fisgarters subsequent to the quarter in which ¢levant acquisition was consummated.

Our officers, directors, stockholders and their fesctive affiliates may have a pecuniary interestdertain transactions in which we are
involved, and may also compete with us.

We have not adopted a policy that expregsipibits our directors, officers, stockholdersaéfiliates from having a direct or indirect
pecuniary interest in any investment to be acquiredisposed of by us or in any transaction to Whie are a party or have an interest. Nor dc
we have a policy that expressly prohibits any suetsons from engaging for their own account inhess activities of the types conducted by
us. We may, subject to the terms of our Term Loshapplicable law, enter into transactions in wtsabh persons have an interest. In
addition, such parties may have an interest iragettansactions such as strategic partnershifsrgrventures in which we may become
involved, and may also compete with us.
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In the course of their other business activitiegrtain of our officers and directors may become awaf investment and acquisitio
opportunities that may be appropriate for preseritat to us as well as the other entities with whittiey are affiliated. Such officers and
directors may have conflicts of interest in detemirig to which entity a particular business opportiip should be presented.

Certain of our officers and directors magtme aware of business opportunities which magplpeopriate for presentation to us as we
the other entities with which they are or may Hdiafed. Due to those officers' and directors'stixig affiliations with other entities, they may
have fiduciary obligations to present potentialibess opportunities to those entities in additmpresenting them to us, which could cause
additional conflicts of interest. To the extentttach officers and directors identify business biration opportunities that may be suitable for
entities to which they have pre-existing fiduciahligations, or are presented with such opportesitn their capacities as fiduciaries to such
entities, they may be required to honor their ptistang fiduciary obligations to such entities. Acdingly, they may not present business
combination opportunities to us that otherwise rayattractive to such entities unless the othetienhave declined to accept such
opportunities.

Future acquisitions and dispositions may not regeia stockholder vote and may be material to us.

Any future acquisitions could be materiakize and scope, and our stockholders and pdténtestors may have virtually no substantive
information about any new business upon which seladecision whether to invest in our Class A comstock. In any event, depending
upon the size and structure of any acquisitiomskétolders are generally expected to not have piperunity to vote on the transaction, and
may not have access to any information about anymesiness until the transaction is completed aedil a report with the Commission
disclosing the nature of such transaction and/sirtass. Similarly, we may effect material dispesis in the future. Even if a stockholder vote
is required for any of our future acquisitions, andur amended and restated certificate of incatpmr and our amended and restated bylaws
our stockholders are allowed to approve such taimses by written consent, which may effectivelgutt in only our controlling stockholder
having an opportunity to vote on such transactions.

Protection of electronically stored data is cos#lgd if our data is compromised in spite of this peation, we may incur additional costs, Ic
opportunities and damage to our reputation.

We maintain information in digital form ressary to conduct our Business, including confidéand proprietary information regarding
our Networks' advertisers, customers, Distributersployees and viewers as well as personal infeomaData maintained in digital form is
subject to the risk of intrusion, tampering andtth&'e develop and maintain systems to preventftbim occurring, but the development and
maintenance of these systems is costly and reqoimgsing monitoring and updating as technologiesigle and efforts to overcome security
measures become more sophisticated. Moreover,tdempi efforts, the possibility of intrusion, tanipg and theft cannot be eliminated
entirely, and risks associated with each of thesgain. In addition, we provide confidential, prepairy and personal information to third
parties when it is necessary to pursue businesziags. While we obtain assurances that thesa plairties will protect this information and,
where appropriate, monitor the protections empldyethese third parties, there is a risk the canftdhlity of data held by third parties may be
compromised. If our data systems are compromisgdalaility to conduct our Business may be impainge may lose profitable opportunities
or the value of those opportunities may be dimi@éshnd, as described above, we may lose reveraieeasit of unlicensed use of our
intellectual property. Further, a penetration of network security or other misappropriation or msis of personal consumer or employee
information could subject us to financial, litigati and reputation risk, which could have a negagffect on our Business, financial condition
and results of operations.
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Unrelated third parties may bring claims against based on the nature and content of information ped on websites maintained by our
Networks.

Our Networks host, or may host in the fatunternet sites that enable individuals to exgeainformation, generate content, comment on
content, and engage in various online activitidge Taw relating to the liability of providers ofabe online services for activities of their use
currently unsettled both within the United Statad anternationally. Claims may be brought agairssfar defamation, negligence, copyright or
trademark infringement, unlawful activity, tortcinding personal injury, fraud, or other theoriesd&d on the nature and content of informatiol
that may be posted online or generated by our Nd&svternet site users, including WAPA.TV and EIDNATINO.COM. Defenses of such
actions could be costly and involve significantdiand attention of our Networks' management, ouragament and other resources.

The success of our Business is highly dependenttanexistence and maintenance of intellectual proyerights in the entertainment
products and services we crea

The value to us of our intellectual progeights is dependent on the scope and durati@mupfights as defined by applicable laws in the
U.S. and abroad and the manner in which those daevsonstrued. If those laws are drafted or inetgalin ways that limit the extent or
duration of our rights, or if existing laws are nad, our ability to generate revenue from ourlietéual property may decrease, or the cost of
obtaining and maintaining rights may increase. &han be no assurance that our efforts to enfarceghts and protect our products, service:
and intellectual property will be successful iny@eting content piracy or signal theft. Contenaipyr and signal theft present a threat to our
revenues.

The unauthorized use of our intellectualpgrty rights may increase the cost of protectivgge rights or reduce our revenues. New
technologies such as the convergence of computargmunication, and entertainment devices, thenfalfirices of devices incorporating such
technologies, and increased broadband internetispee penetration have made the unauthorized Hagipyying and distribution of our
programming content easier and faster and enfoneeaféntellectual property rights more challengifidne unauthorized use of intellectual
property in the entertainment industry generallgtoaies to be a significant challenge for intelledtproperty rights holders. Inadequate laws
or weak enforcement mechanisms to protect intelf@giroperty in one country can adversely affeetréfsults of our operations worldwide,
despite our efforts to protect our intellectualgady rights. These developments may require getote substantial resources to protecting
intellectual property against unlicensed use ardgmt the risk of increased losses of revenuaesuét of unlicensed distribution of our
content.

With respect to intellectual property dexadd by us and rights acquired by us from otheesare subject to the risk of challenges to our
copyright, trademark and patent rights by thirdipar Successful challenges to our rights in iatéllal property may result in increased costs
for obtaining rights or the loss of the opporturtityearn revenue from the intellectual property thahe subject of challenged rights. We are
not aware of any challenges to our intellectuapprty rights that we currently foresee having agmat effect on our operations.

If we are unable to protect our and our domain nasjeur reputation and brands could be adverselyeated.

We currently hold various domain name regins relating to our brands. The registratiod enaintenance of domain names generally
are regulated by governmental agencies and thsigiaees. Governing bodies may establish additimpalevel domains, appoint additional
domain name registrars or modify the requirememtéidlding domain names. As a result, we may bélena register or maintain relevant
domain names. We may be unable, without significast or at all, to prevent third parties from stgiing domain names that are similar to,
infringe upon or otherwise
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decrease the value of, our and our subsidiaridgtnarks and other proprietary rights. Failure tmgut our domain names could adversely
affect our reputation and brands, and make it rddfieult for users to find our Business's websitegl services.

We may face intellectual property infringement ctas that could be time-consuming, costly to defemdi aesult in loss of significant rights.

Other parties may assert intellectual prigpi@fringement claims against us, and our Netwopkoducts may infringe the intellectual
property rights of third parties. From time to tino&ir Business receives letters alleging infringenud intellectual property rights of others.
Intellectual property litigation can be expensivel sime-consuming and could divert managemenesn@din from our Business. If there is a
successful claim of infringement against us, we ayequired to pay substantial damages to thg pkiming infringement or enter into
royalty or license agreements that may not be abigilon acceptable or desirable terms, if at alt. f@ilure to license proprietary rights on a
timely basis would harm our Business.

Changes in governmental regulation, interpretatian legislative reform could increase our Businesgsst of doing business and adversely
affect our profitability.

Laws and regulations, including in the arehadvertising, consumer affairs, data protectiimance, marketing, privacy, publishing and
taxation requirements, are subject to change dfetidg interpretations. Changes in the politiciinate or in existing laws or regulations, or
their interpretations, or the enactment of new lawthe issuance of new regulations or changesfioreement priorities or activity could
adversely affect us by, among other things:

. increasing our administrative, compliance, and iotiosts;

. forcing us to undergo a corporate restructuring;

. limiting our ability to engage in inter-companyrisactions with our affiliates and subsidiaries;
. increasing our tax obligations, including unfavdeabutcomes from audits performed by various taka@atities;
. affecting our ability to continue to serve our Netis' customers and to attract new customers;
. affecting cash management practices and repatriafiorts;

. forcing us to alter or restructure our Networkdationships with vendors and contractors;

. increasing compliance efforts or costs;

. limiting our use of or access to personal infation;

. restricting our ability to market our producasid

. requiring us to implement additional or differgmograms and systems.

Compliance with regulations is costly aimiet-consuming, and we may encounter difficultiedays or significant expenses in connectior
with such compliance, and we may be exposed tafsignt penalties, liabilities, reputational harmddoss of business in the event that we fai
to comply. While it is not possible to predict whamwhether fundamental policy or interpretive apemwould occur, these or other changes
could fundamentally change the dynamics of the strits in which we operate or the costs associattdour operations. Changes in public
policy or enforcement priorities could materialljegt our profitability, our ability to retain omgw business, or in the event of extreme
circumstances, our financial condition. There camb assurance that legislative or regulatory chamgnterpretive differences will not have a
material adverse effect on our Business.
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Changes in accounting standards can significantimpact reported operating results.

Generally accepted accounting principlespanpanying pronouncements and implementation gonetefor many aspects of our Busine
including those related to intangible assets andrire taxes, are complex and involve significangjudnts. Changes in these rules or their
interpretation could significantly change our re@pdroperating results.

If we fail to maintain effective internal control wer financial reporting in the future, the accuracgnd timing of our financial reporting may
be impaired, which could adversely affect our Busss and stock price.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires, amongrdttiegs, that we maintain effective internal cohver financial reporting and disclosure
controls and procedures. Sarba@edey provides all newly public companies with artsition period that prevents them from havingdmply
with the Section 404 requirements in the first aaimaport that they file after becoming an ExchaAgereporting company. However, with
respect to our fiscal year ending December 31, 2@&4must perform system and process evaluatioriestithg of our internal control over
financial reporting to allow our management to méjpm the effectiveness of our internal control ofilancial reporting, as required by
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Our testinghe subsequent testing by our independenttezgid public accounting firm, may reveal
deficiencies in internal control over financial ogping that are deemed to be material weaknesseapliance with Section 404 will require tl
we incur substantial accounting expense and exgigmificant management time on compliance-relassdés. The need to focus on
compliance with Section 404 of Sarbanes-Oxley nti@irsmanagement and finance resources and otleprésent additional administrative
and operational challenges as our management tee&msmply with these requirements.

If we are not able to comply with the raguients of Section 404 in a timely manner, or iffaieto remedy any material weakness and
maintain effective internal control over our fingadaeporting in the future, our financial staterteemay be inaccurate, our ability to report our
financial results on a timely and accurate basig beaadversely affected, our access to the capakets may be restricted, the trading pric
our Class A common stock and Warrants may dediing,we may be subject to sanctions or investigatiynregulatory authorities, including
the SEC or NASDAQ.

From time to time we may be subject to litigatioor fwhich we may be unable to accurately assessleuel of exposure and which, if
adversely determined, may have a material adveffeceon our consolidated financial condition or seilts of operations.

We and our subsidiaries are or may becaaniieg to legal proceedings that are consideréx teither ordinary or routine litigation
incidental to our or their current or prior busises or not material to our consolidated finanoiaifoon or liquidity. There can be no assurance
that we will prevail in any litigation in which war our subsidiaries may become involved, or thatasuheir insurance coverage will be
adequate to cover any potential losses. To thenettiat we or our subsidiaries sustain losses fiagnpending litigation which are not reservec
or otherwise provided for or insured against, ousiBess, results of operations, cash flows andiantial condition could be materially
adversely affected.

Our Term Loan may limit our financial and operatindexibility.

Our existing Term Loan includes financiavenants restricting our subsidiaries ability tounadditional indebtedness, pay dividends or
make other payments, make loans and investmeliitassets, incur certain liens, enter into trarisastwith affiliates, and consolidate, merge
or sell assets. These covenants limit our abititiuhd future working capital and capital expendig) engage in future acquisitions or
development activities, or otherwise realize thi@af our assets and opportunities fully becadtbeneed to dedicate a portion of cash flow
from operations to payments
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on debt. In addition, such covenants limit our i@y in planning for, or reacting to, changesthe industries in which we operate.
Risks Related to Our Securities and Corporate Strutire

If securities or industry analysts do not publishi oease publishing research or reports about usr &uwsiness, or our market, or if the
change their recommendations regarding our Class@mmon stock adversely, the price and trading votuof our Class A common stock
and Warrants could decline.

If securities or industry analysts do noblish or cease publishing research or reportstalmwur Business, or our market, or if they
change their recommendations regarding our Classmmon stock adversely, the price and trading veloifour Class A common stock and
Warrants could decline. The trading market for Glass A common stock and Warrants will be influehbg the research and reports that
industry or securities analysts may publish aboutBusiness, our market, or our competitors. ABefember 31, 2013, only one industry
analyst currently publishes research on our Businéany of the analysts who may cover our Busir@gange their recommendation regarding
our stock adversely, or provide more favorabletiedarecommendations about our competitors, theepof our Class A common stock and
Warrants would likely decline. If any analyst whayrcover our Business were to cease coverage ofdfaare or fail to regularly publish
reports about us, we could lose visibility in tiahcial markets, which in turn could cause ouclstarice or trading volume to decline.

The stock price of our Class A common stock and Véats may be volatile.

The stock price of our Class A common stacll Warrants may be volatile and subject to widetfiations. In addition, the trading
volume of our Class A common stock and Warrants flumyuate and cause significant price variatiansdcur. Some of the factors that could
cause fluctuations in the stock price or tradinfyree of our Class A common stock and Warrants helu

. market and economic conditions, including marketditions in the cable television programming anailicasting industries;
. actual or expected variations in quarterly opegatasults;

. future exercise of Warrants held by warrantholders;

. liquidity of our Class A common stock and our Watsa

. differences between actual operating resultsthoske expected by investors and analysts;

. changes in recommendations by securities arsalyst

. operations and stock performance of our conqgrstit

. accounting charges, including charges relatintpé impairment of goodwiill;

. significant acquisitions or strategic alliandgsus or by our competitors;

. sales of our Class A common stock, including shiesur directors and officers or significant inwvast
. recruitment or departure of key personnel;

. loss of key advertisers; and

. changes in reserves for professional liability rolsi
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We cannot assure you that the price ofGlass A common stock will not fluctuate or declgignificantly in the future. In addition, the
stock market in general can experience considemie and volume fluctuations that may be unrelateour performance.

The market liquidity for our Class A common stocka Warrants is relatively low and may make it dfilt to purchase or sell our Class A
common stock and Warrants.

The average daily trading volume in ourdfiass A common stock and our Warrants during #e gnded December 31, 2013 (since the
began trading on April 4, 2013) was approximately380 shares and 13,700, respectively. Althougloeeractive trading market may develop
in the future, there can be no assurance as tatridity of any markets that may develop for odags A common stock and Warrants or the
prices at which holders may be able to sell ous€k common stock and Warrants and the limited etdiuidity for our securities could
affect a holder's ability to sell at a price sati$bry to that holder.

We are a "controlled company" within the meaning ASDAQ rules and, as a result, we qualify for, anstoose to rely on, exemptions
from certain corporate governance requiremen

Our controlling stockholder, InterMediantmls approximately 77.2% of the voting power bfoé our outstanding capital stock. As a
result of the concentration of the voting rightour Company, we are a "controlled company" withi& meaning of the rules and corporate
governance standards of NASDAQ. Under the NASDABs;ua company of which more than 50% of the vogiagrer is held by an
individual, group or another company is a "conrdlcompany"” and may elect not to comply with cartéhSDAQ corporate governance
requirements, including:

. the requirement that a majority of our board oédiors consists of independent directors;

. the requirement that we have a nominating/corp@aternance committee that is composed entirelgd#pendent directors;
. the requirement that we have a compensation coemrtitiat is composed entirely of independent dirsgtnd

. the requirement for an annual performance evialiaf the nominating/corporate governance andpmmsation committees.

We have elected not to comply with the @&boerporate governance requirements. Accordingly stockholders are not afforded the si
protections generally as stockholders of other NA&Elisted companies for so long as we remain a ttodled company” and rely upon such
exemptions. The interests of our controlling statiler may conflict with the interests of our otlséwckholders, and the concentration of vo
power in such stockholder will limit our other skholders ability to influence corporate matters.

Our controlling stockholder exercises significamfluence over us and their interests in our Busiremay be different from the interests of
our stockholders; future sales of substantial amdsrof our Class A common stock may adversely affaat market price.

Our controlling stockholder, InterMediantmls approximately 77.2% of the voting power bfoé our outstanding capital stock. The
controlling stockholders' Class B common stock vate 10 to 1 basis with our Class A common stadlich means that each share of our
Class B common stock has 10 votes and each shate @flass A common stock has 1 vote. All sharasuofcapital stock vote together as a
single class. Accordingly, our controlling stockthet generally has the ability for the foreseeabtare to influence the outcome of any of our
corporate actions which requires stockholder apgrorcluding, but not limited to, the electiondifectors, significant corporate transactions,
such as a merger or other sale of the Companyeasale of all or substantially all of our assetsisT
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concentrated voting control will limit your ability influence corporate matters and could adverafct the market price of our Class A
common stock and Warrants.

Our controlling stockholder may delay oeyent a change in control in our Business. In @mldithe significant concentration of stock
ownership may adversely affect the value of ous€ common stock and Warrants due to a resuléiclg ¢f liquidity of our Class A commc
stock or a perception among investors that cosfliftinterest may exist or arise. If our contrajlistockholder sells a substantial amounts o
Class A common stock (upon conversion of their EBg£ommon stock, which may be converted at ang timtheir sole discretion) or
Warrants in the public market, or investors peredhat these sales could occur, the market priceio€lass A common stock and Warrants
could be adversely affected.

The interests of our controlling stockha|dghich has investments in other companies, may fiime to time diverge from the interests of
our other stockholders, particularly with regarchéw investment opportunities. Our controlling &toader is not restricted from investing in
other businesses involving or related to prograngmiontent, production and broadcasting. Our cdlimgostockholder may also engage in
other businesses that compete or may in the fetumgete with our Business.

We have entered into a Registration Rigigieeement with certain parties including our coltimg stockholder. If requested properly
under the terms of the Registration Rights Agredesrtain of these stockholders have the righetpire us to register the offer and sale ¢
or some of their Class A common stock (includingmuponversion of their Class B common stock andréves) under the Securities Act in
certain circumstances and also have the rightdlodie those shares in a registration initiated sayifuve are required to include the shares of
capital stock held by these stockholders pursuatitdse registration rights in a registration aiéd by us, sales made by such stockholder:
adversely affect the price of our Class A commaxlseind Warrants and our ability to raise needgdtalaIn addition, if these stockholders
exercise their demand registration rights and cauaege number of shares to be sold in the puéidket or demand that we include their
shares for registration on a shelf registratiotestent, such sales or shelf registration may hawedaerse effect on the market price of our
Class A common stock or Warrants.

The parties to the Registration Rights A&gnent have entered into a lock-up agreement witthes'Lock-up Agreement"). Under the
Lock-up Agreement, the investors subject to thekkop Agreement and their permitted transferees nwayransfer (i) all or any portion of
their shares of our Class A common stock and oas<CB common stock (including any shares of ous<Cfacommon stock that may be
received upon exercise of Warrants) for a periodne year following the consummation of the Tratieac subject to certain exceptions.
Approximately half of the shares of our capitalcgtthat are held by such holders (including shaféslass A common stock underlying our
Warrants) have been released from lockup and thairéng shares of capital stock (including sharfeSlass A common stock underlying our
Warrants) subject to the Lock-up Agreement shalidbeased from all restrictions on the first annéagey of the Transaction, except for certain
shares of capital stock that are not eligible &ease until the last sales price of our Classrnon stock equals or exceeds $15.00 per shar
(as adjusted or stock splits, stock dividends,gawizations, recapitalizations and the like) foy 20 trading days within any 30-trading day
period. All Warrants have been released from logKaxcept if such Warrants are converted into Chassmmon Stock and remain subject to
the restrictions set forth above).

Any other future sales of substantial amswf our Class A common stock into the public nedrkr perceptions in the market that such
sales could occur, may adversely affect the prienpiharket price of our Class A common stock andréfas and impair our ability to raise
capital through the sale of additional equity siims.
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We have a staggered board of directors and otheti-takeover provisions, which may entrench managerhand discourage unsolicited
stockholder proposals that may be in the best iets of our stockholder:

Our amended and restated certificate afriparation provides that our board of directord b divided into three classes, each of which
will generally serve for a term of three years watlly one class of directors being elected in gaar. As a result, at any annual meeting or
minority of the board of directors will be considdrfor election. Since this "staggered board" wqukl/ent our stockholders from replacing a
majority of our board of directors at any annuakthe, it may entrench management and discouragelioited stockholder proposals that r
be in the best interests of our stockholders. Softlee provisions of our amended and restatedfipate of incorporation, amended and
restated bylaws and Delaware law could, togetheseparately, discourage potential acquisition psajfsoor delay or prevent a change in
control. In particular, our board of directors igteorized to issue up to 50,000,000 shares of pexfestock with rights and privileges that mi
be senior to either class of our common stock astthout the consent of the holders of either clafssur common stock.

Warrants may be exercised in the future, which wduahcrease the number of shares eligible for futuresale in the public market and resi
in dilution to our stockholders.

We issued Warrants to certain holders uperconsummation of the Transaction. To the exdaoh Warrants are exercised, additional
shares of our Class A common stock will be isswddch will result in dilution to the holders of onommon stock and increase the number o
shares eligible for resale in the public marketeSaf substantial numbers of such shares in thégmnarket could adversely affect the market
price of our Class A common stock. As of Decemider2®13, no Warrants were exercised.

Pursuant to the terms of the agreements governing @arrants, a warrantholder may exercise its wanis for only a whole number c
shares of our Class A common stock and such Wargftre subject to redemption right

Pursuant to the terms of the agreementsrgawg our Warrants, a warrantholder may exerds@/arrants only for a whole number of
shares of our Class A common stock. This meansotilgtan even number of warrants may be exercisadyagiven time by the warranthold
For example, if a warrantholder holds one Warramiurchase one-half of a share of our Class A comstack, such warrant shall not be
exercisable. If a warrantholder holds two Warrasitieh Warrants will be exercisable for one shameunfClass A common stock. We will not
pay cash in lieu of fractional Warrants and wilt cash-settle any Warrants. Additionally, our Watsaother than certain Warrants held by th¢
holders of our Class B common stock and formeliatifis of Azteca Acquisition Corporation, are sgbj® redemption, in our sole discretion,
when the price of our Class A common stock trades above $18.00 per share for a specified trageripd as set forth in the agreement
governing our Warrants.

Our dependence on subsidiaries for cash flow magatvely affect our Business

We are a holding company with no busingssations of our own. Our only significant assethe outstanding capital stock and
membership interests of its subsidiaries. We copaun expect to continue conducting, all of ousibass operations through our subsidiaries
Accordingly, our ability to pay our obligationsdependent upon dividends and other distributioos four subsidiaries to us. Although our
Term Loan permits certain restricted payments foumsubsidiaries to us to pay for our administetxpenses corporate overhead, franchise
taxes, public company costs, directors' fees artdinensurance premiums and deductibles, it retstour subsidiaries ability to remit dividel
to us in other instances. Additionally, dividendsus from WAPA PR are also subject to certain local
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taxation. Consequently, our ability to pay dividersl limited by funds that our subsidiaries arenptted to dividend to us, and in certain
instances, will subject us to certain tax liab#i

Risk Factors Relating to the Failure to Consummatéhe Acquisition of the Acquired Cable Business
The seller may not be able to satisfy certain cdrudis for closing the acquisition of the Acquiredable Business.

Our obligation to consummate the acquisittbthe Acquired Cable Business is subject tostitesfaction or waiver of conditions set forth
in the Asset Purchase Agreement and failure tsfyatr waive any of these conditions may resuthig acquisition not being consummated.
For example, consummation of the acquisition ofAkquired Cable Business is subject to prior refceffgertain consents required to be
obtained from applicable third parties. Failuretguire these consents or satisfy any other claingitions may jeopardize or delay
consummation of the transaction or may reduce ntieipated benefits of the transaction.

Failure to complete the acquisition of the Acquirggiable Business could negatively affect our Busiges

If the acquisition of the Acquired Cableshess is not completed, our ongoing Business maydersely affected and we will be subject
to several risks and consequences, including t@fimg:

. we will be required to pay certain costs relatioghte acquisition of the Acquired Cable Businedsetiver or not the acquisition
is completed, such as significant fees and expeneating to legal, accounting and other advisesgst and

. matters relating to the acquisition of the Acqui@able Business may require substantial commitmartime and resources by
our management, which could otherwise have beeatddvo other opportunities that may have beenfigaleto our business.

We could be subject to litigation relatedatfailure to complete the acquisition of the Aicgd Cable Business or to enforce the parties'
obligations under the Asset Purchase Agreement.

ltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
None.
Item 2. Properties.

We lease our headquarters at 2000 PonteateBlvd., Suite 500, Coral Gables, FL 33134, andillary space in the same building for
certain employees. We believe our current facdiiee adequate to meet our needs in the foresdeinle. If necessary, we may, from time to
time, downsize current facilities or lease addioiacilities for its activities. The current leaseon a month-to-month tenancy. Cinelatino
currently occupies the same office space thatisdd by us. Cinelatino pays the lessor directlytéoallocable cost of such lease.

WAPA is headquartered in San Juan, Puddo iR an owned 65,000 square foot building locatedne of the most affluent areas in San
Juan. The building houses our state-of-the-artrteldyy, television studios, and administrative @dB. All of our news and local programs are
produced at our production facility, which consistgour television studios, including the largesevision studio in the Caribbean, fully
equipped control rooms, digital video, audio, ewjtipost editing, and graphic production suites, @scenery shop which produces all scener
and props for the local productions. We also bahstsnost technologically advanced news departinegPtierto Rico with the only automated
production studio, its own Doppler radar systend amodern graphics and weather technology.
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We also leases the land for our transmisiwers in Cayey, Puerto Rico, Jayuya, Puerto RimbMircao, Puerto Rico pursuant to long-
term lease facilities.

We believe WAPA's current facilities areegqdate to meet our needs in the foreseeable fufurecessary, we may, from time to time,
downsize current facilities or lease additionallféies for our activities. We own our property $an Juan, Puerto Rico.

The following table sets forth our prindipséaces of business:

Location Description Area (Square Feet)
Coral

Gables,

FL Headquarter 2,581
San, Juan,

Puerto

Rico Administrative Offices, TV Productio 65,00(

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

From time to time, we or our subsidiariesyrbecome involved in various lawsuits and legatpedings which arise in the ordinary
course of business. However, litigation is subjedhherent uncertainties, and an adverse restiieise or other matters may arise from time tc
time that may harm our business. Neither we norcdrour subsidiaries are presently a party to aayenial litigation, nor to the knowledge of
management is any litigation threatened against asir subsidiaries, which may materially affect us

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.

PART Il
ltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases &quity Securities.

After the consummation of the Transactimumr, Class A common stock commenced trading on trer-@he-Counter Bulletin Board under
the symbol "HMTVA." On April 23, 2013, our Classddmmon stock commenced trading on NASDAQ undesymebol "HMTV." At
March 24, 2014, there were 12,120,603 shares afs@lacommon stock outstanding, and the closingwade of our ordinary shares was
$12.47. Also as of that date, we had approxima&élgrdinary shareholders of record. This numbesdu include the stockholders for whom
shares are held in a "nominee" or "street" nameh¥ie not declared any dividends and we do notipate paying dividends on our Class A
common stock in the foreseeable future. Our TermnlBacility restricts our ability to declare divids in certain situations.
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Price Range of our Class A Common Stock

The table below sets forth the intra-dayhhand low sales prices per share of our Classmnoon stock for the periods indicated as
reported on NASDAQ:

High Low
Fiscal Year ended December 31, 2013
Second Quarte $ 17.7¢ $ 10.7C
Third Quartel $ 15.0¢ $ 11.0C
Fourth Quarte $ 133(C $ 8.3¢

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Comensation Plans

The following table sets forth informatiaith respect to compensation plans under whicheguiity securities are authorized for issuance
as of December 31, 2013:

Number of securities

remaining
Number of securities available for future
to be issued upon Weighted-average issuance under
exercise of exercise price of equity compensation
outstanding outstanding plans (excluding
options, warrants options, warrants securities reflected
and rights and rights in column (a))
Plan category (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approvel
by security holder — 3 — —
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holde 1,730,001 11.2( 1,140,54
Total 1,730,000 $ 11.2( 1,140,54

On April 9, 2013, our board of directorpegpved the adoption of the Hemisphere Media Gréup,2013 Equity Incentive Plan (the "2(
Plan™) pursuant to which incentive compensation @erdormance compensation awards may be providedrtemployees, directors, officers,
consultants or advisors or our subsidiaries or ttesipective affiliates. The 2013 Plan authoribesissuance of up to 4 million shares of our
Common Stock. The number of securities remainirglable for issuance in column (c) of the tableabreflects our issuance of certain sh
of restricted Class A common stock in connectiothwgrants authorized by our board of directors. déscription of the 2013 Plan above are
qualified in their entirety by reference to thel telxt of the 2013 Plan.

Performance Graph

The following graph compares the perforngaotour Class A common stock with the performaofcéne S&P 500 and a peer group index
of companies that we believe are closest to ohes"@eer Group Index") by measuring the changesiirClass A common stock prices from
April 5, 2013, the first day our Class A commoncgtbegan trading, through December 31, 2013. Becaagpublished index of comparable
media companies currently reports values on a éihdd-reinvested basis, we have created a Peer Grderp for purposes of this graph in
accordance with the requirements of the Commis§ibe.Peer Group Index is made up of companiestigdge in the broadcast and cable
television programming as a significant elemertheir business, although not all of the compamietided in the Peer Group Index participate
in all of the lines of business in which we areaged, and some of the companies included in the@®eip Index also engage in lines of
business in which we do not participate. Additibnahe market capitalizations of many of the comipa included in the Peer Group Index are
quite different from ours. The common stocks of the
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following companies have been included in the F@eup Index: AMC Networks Inc., Discovery Commuriiocas Inc., Entravision
Communications Corporation, Scripps Networks Irttva, Inc., and Starz, LLC. The chart assumes $t&9invested on April 5, 2013 in
each of our Class A common stock, S&P 500 andpeex group weighted by market capitalization.
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This performance graph shall not be deeffiled!” for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchadge, or otherwise subject to the liabilities
that section. It may only be incorporated by rafeeein another filing under the Exchange Act orusigies Act of 1933, as amended, if such
subsequent filing specifically references thisfili

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
None.
ltem 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following table sets forth our selecdbéstorical consolidated financial information ftve periods presented. The selected financial
information for the fiscal year ended December281,3, has been derived from our audited consolidi@tencial statements and the selected
financial data as of December 31, 2012, 2011, 2002009 and for each of the four fiscal years #hated, have been derived from WAPA's
audited consolidated financial statements.

The financial information indicated may atindicative of future performance. This finahaidormation and other data should be ree
conjunction with our audited and unaudited consaéd
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financial statements, including the notes therama, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Fiilsu@ondition and Results of Operations"
included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Selected Statement of Operations

Information:
Net revenue $ 86,008 $ 71,367 $ 60,797 $ 54,61 $ 42,19
Operating income (los! 7,722 20,86¢ 15,40z 13,83t (9,010
(Loss) income before income tax (1,16%) 17,31¢ 11,58¢ 12,08: (12,140
Income tax (expense) bene (3,130 (6,285 (3,989 18,95: 4,44¢
Net (loss) incom $ (429) $ 11,03 $ 7,60/ $ 31,03 $ (7,69))
Basic net (loss) income per shi $ (019 % 11,03 $ 7,60¢ $ 31,038 $ (7,69))
Diluted net (loss) income persh: $ (0.1 $ 11,03 $ 7,60¢ $ 31,03 $ (7,69))
Weighted average shares

outstanding

Basic 31,14 1 1 1 1

Diluted 31,14 1 1 1 1
Selected Balance She

Information:
Cash $ 176,62: $ 10,08« $ 10,18° $ 5,101 $ 2,48¢
Goodwill 130,79: 10,98 10,98: 10,98 10,98
Other intangible: 34,61( 1,67¢ 1,90¢ 2,13¢ 2,36¢
Other asset 104,62: 93,11: 93,87: 91,40: 84,13¢
Total asset 446,64 115,85¢ 116,94° 109,62! 99,97t
Total liabilities 205,86( 76,19¢ 82,56: 58,69 80,07
Total stockholders' equit 240,78t — — — —
Total member's capit: — 39,65¢ 34,38t 50,93( 19,90:

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis &inancial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following discussion and analysis sumpes our financial condition and operating perfampe and should be read in conjunction
with its historical consolidated financial statengeand notes thereto included above. Unless theexbindicates otherwise, the terms the
"Company," "Hemisphere," "we," "our" or "us" aresdsto refer to Hemisphere Media Group, Inc. andatssolidated subsidiaries.

On April 4, 2013, we completed a seriemefgers contemplated pursuant to the AgreemenPlndof Merger, dated as of January 22,
2013, which we refer to as the Transaction. TheaJaation was accounted for by applying the acdorsihethod pursuant to ASC Topic 805-
10, "Business Combinations—Overall." WAPA was theaunting acquirer and predecessor in the Tramsawathose historical results became
our historical results. As such, the discussionamalysis below of our results for the years eridedember 31, 2012 and 2011 are limited
solely to the operating results of WAPA Holding&,Q.(formerly known as InterMedia Espafiol HoldingkC).

Significant components of management'sugision and analysis of results of operations amhfiial condition include:

. Overview. The overview section provides a summary of owiress, operational divisions and business trendkok and
strategy.
. Consolidated Results of Operation3.he consolidated results of operations sectiowiges an analysis of our results on a

consolidated basis for the year ended Decembe2(®13 compared to the year ended December 31, 28tiXpr the year ended
December 31, 2012 compared to the year ended Dere3np2011.
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. Liquidity and Capital ResourcesThe liquidity and capital resources section pilegia discussion of our cash flows for the yea
ended December 31, 2013 compared to the year éhelsgmber 31, 2012, and for the year ended Dece®ih&012 compared
to the year ended December 31, 2011.

OVERVIEW

We are the parent holding company of WARAKelatino and Azteca. While we were formed on 3aynd6, 2013 for purposes of effect
the Transaction, the Transaction was consummatetpdh4, 2013. Azteca, a special purpose acquisitiehicle, delivered approximately
$70 million from a trust account raised in its 20ditial public offering to us at the closing ofetfTransaction. After the consummation of the
Transaction, Azteca engaged in no further operationd was subsequently dissolved on December 33, 20

We operate our business in one operatigmsat. We own and operate the following leadingnBgralanguage Networks and content
platform:

. Cinelatino: the leading Spanish-language cable movie netwittkover 13 million subscribers across the U.&tih. America
and Canada. Cinelatino is programmed with a lifeafuring the best contemporary films and origbe#dvision series from
Mexico, Latin America, the U.S. and Spain. Driventbe strength of its programming and distributi@melatino is the #1-
Nielsen rated Spanish-language cable movie netimdathe U.S. and the #2-Nielsen rated Spanish-lagegeable television
network in the U.S. overall.;

. WAPA PR: the leading broadcast television network andvisien content producer in Puerto Rico. WAPA PR basn the #1-
rated broadcast television network in Puerto Rardlie last five years. WAPA PR is Puerto Ricowsé&ader and the largest
local producer of entertainment programming, praggiover 65 hours each week;

. WAPA America: a cable television network serving primarily RadRicans and other Caribbean Hispanics in theddritates.
WAPA America's programming includes news and eaienent offerings produced by WAPA PR. WAPA Ameriga
distributed in the U.S. to over 5 million subscrige

. WAPA2 Deportes: a leading sports television network in PuertooRfeaturing Major League Baseball and professional
sporting events from Puerto Rico. WAPA2 Deportedistributed through WAPA PR's multicast signal andall cable and
satellite systems in Puerto Rico; and

. WAPA.TV: the leading broadband news and entertainmentitgghdPuerto Rico featuring news and content pceduby
WAPA PR.

Our two primary sources of revenue are gtbieg revenues and retransmission/subscriber feggertising revenue is generated from the
sale of advertising time. Our advertising reverarels to reflect seasonal patterns of our advestidemand, which is generally greatest during
the fourth quarter of each year, driven by thedajibuying season. In addition, Puerto Rico's jgalielection cycle occurs every four years
and we benefit from increased advertising salesierlection year. For example, in 2012, we expegdrigher advertising sales as a result of
political advertising spending during the 2012 goweental elections.

Retransmission and subscriber fees argetiao Distributors of our Networks, including cabsatellite and telecommunication service
providers, pursuant to multi-year agreements. Wiewe our Networks are well positioned to contifiugher growth in our retransmission and
subscriber fees, fueled by our Networks strongngati continued growth in our target demographidenats and robust content portfolio. We
continually review the quality of our programmirgyensure that it is maximizing our Networks' vieghep and giving our Networks'
subscribers a premium, high-value
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experience. The continued growth in our subscifiees will, to a certain extent, be dependent orgtbaith in subscribers of the cable, satellite
and telecommunication service providers distribgitimr Networks, and new system launches, partigularlLatin America. We generate
approximately 95% of our net revenue from the UhB¢ates. For the years ended December 31, 2013,8@ 2011, we generated

$81.7 million, $71.4 million and $60.8 million frothe United States. For the years ended Decemb&038, 2012 and 2011, we generated
$4.3 million, $0 million and $0 million from outsdhe United States.

WAPA PR primarily derives its revenue framtvertising, though retransmission fees are growapidly and becoming a larger
contributor to revenue. WAPA America derives itgereue from both subscriber fees and advertisingme®. Cinelatino is currently
commercialfree, and generates 100% of its revenue from sildesdees. However, to further monetize Cinelasrsttong ratings and attracti
audience, one of our primary objectives is to idtree advertising on Cinelatino's U.S. feed. WAPAgbBrtes and WAPA.tv generate revenue
from the sale of advertising, but we may seek nstrassion fees for WAPA2 Deportes in the future.

WAPA PR has been the #1-rated broadcastitgbn network in Puerto Rico for the last fiveayg and management believes it is highly
valued by its viewers and distributors. WAPA PRlistributed by all pay-TV distributors in PuertocBRiand has been successfully growing
retransmission fees. In fact, WAPA PR's primetimadehold rating in 2013 was more than three tingdseln than CBS, the most highly rated
English language U.S. broadcast network in the BsSa result of its ratings success in the la# figars, management believes WAPA PR is
well positioned for future growth in retransmissiees, similar to the growth in retransmission féwd the four major U.S. networks have
experienced in the U.S. (ABC, CBS, NBC and Fox).

WAPA America and Cinelatino occupy a valeadnd unique position as one of only a few Hispaaible networks to have achieved
broad distribution in the U.S. As a result, managenielieves WAPA America and Cinelatino are welsiioned to benefit from growth in
both the growing national advertising spend tamjetethe highly sought- after U.S. Hispanic cableision audience, and significant growth
in subscribers, as the U.S. Hispanic populatiortinaas to grow rapidly. Cinelatino is presentlyeciby Nielsen, and we plan to subscribe to
Nielsen ratings for WAPA America in 2014, which tBempany believes will be attractive to nationalextisers and will help to build on i
strong performance in 2013.

Hispanics represent 17% of the total Udhytation and approximately 9% of the total U.Scdétionary consumption, but only 5% of the
aggregate media spend targets U.S. Hispanics.résudt of the under-indexing of the media spengeting U.S. Hispanics, advertisers have
been and are expected to continue to increaseottierp of their marketing dollars targeted towatdl$. Hispanics. U.S. Hispanic cable
network advertising revenue grew at a 17% CAGR f&f6 to 2013, nearly tripling from $119 million $856 million. Going forward,
advertising on U.S. Hispanic cable networks is etgeto grow to $442 million in 2015, representn@AGR of 11%, presenting a significant
and growing opportunity for WAPA America and Cintéla.

Management expects WAPA America and Ciredab benefit from significant growth in subscnibgas the U.S. Hispanic population
continues to grow rapidly. As of the 2012 U.S. Gex$3 million Hispanics resided in the United &atvhich represents an increase of
18 million people, or 50%, between 2000 and 20h8,ia expected to grow to 64 million by 2020. Hisigatelevision households grew by 3(
since 2006 to 14.7 million households. Similarlyspénic pay-TV subscribers increased 57% since 200&.4 million subscribers. The
continued rapid growth of Hispanic television hdusdlds and pay-TV subscribers creates a signifiopportunity for WAPA America and
Cinelatino.

Similarly, management expects Cinelatinbaaefit from significant growth in Latin AmericBueled by a sizeable and growing
population, a strong macroeconomic backdrop atgridisposable incomes, as well as investmentgtwark infrastructure resulting in
improved service and
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performance, pay-TV subscribers in Latin Americec(eding Brazil) are projected to grow from 42 naifl in 2013 to 56 million in 2018,
representing a 6% compounded annual growth rat¢thémore, with over 9 million subscribers in Lafimerica, Cinelatino is presently
distributed to only 22% of total pay-TV subscribdreughout Latin America. Accordingly, growth tlugh new system launches represents a
significant growth opportunity. Cinelatino is a tegted network and management believes the netsvookitent has widespread appeal
throughout Latin America, and therefore will beeabkpand distribution throughout the region.

MVS, one of our stockholders, provides afienal and technical services to Cinelatino punsta several agreements. Upon
consummation of the Transaction, certain of theagents were amended or terminated to what managéeieves to be to the benefit of
Cinelatino. As consideration for the terminatedeggnent, we have made a one-time payment of $3l@mib MVS. An agreement which had
granted MVS the exclusive right to distribute tleevice in the U.S was terminated upon consummatighe Transaction. We have assumed
responsibility for those activities previously prded by MVS, given the resources of WAPA that w#l available to us, thus having no impact
on Cinelatino's operations. A similar agreementolvtiiad granted MVS the exclusive right to distrébtlite service throughout Latin America
was amended upon consummation of the Transactitmas®1VS's rights will be on a non-exclusive basiscept for distribution agreements
currently in effect. Management believes that timeadment to this agreement will not impact Cinalals current distribution, and should
enhance Cinelatino's ability to drive new distribatin Latin America. Also upon consummation of ffransaction, Cinelatino's affiliation
agreement with Dish Mexico (an affiliate of MVSymuant to which Dish Mexico distributes the netvand Cinelatino receives revenue, \
extended through August 1, 2017.
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Comparison of Consolidated Operating Results for th Year Ended December 31, 2013 and the Year Ended@mber 31, 2012

Year Ended

December 31 $ Change % Change
Favorable / Favorable /
2013 2012 (Unfavorable) (Unfavorable)
Net revenue $ 86,008 $ 71,367 $ 14,63¢ 20.5%
Operating Expense
Cost of revenue 33,95( 32,40¢ (1,547 -4.8%
Selling, general and administrati 29,67¢ 13,661 (16,017 -117.2%
Depreciation and amortizatic 8,76: 3,72: (5,039 -135.%
Other expense 5,69¢ 703 (4,997 -709.7%
Loss (gain) on disposition of ass 19¢ (1) (200) NM
Total operating expens: 78,28 50,50: (27,787) -55.(%
Operating incom: 7,722 20,86¢ (13,14¢) -63.(%
Other Expense:
Interest expense, n (7,177) (3,509 (3,67¢) -105.(%
Loss on early extinguishment of d¢ (1,649 — (1,649 NM
Other expense, n (63) (50 (13) 25.(%
(8,889) (3,55)) (5,33¢) NM
(Loss) income before income tay (1,267 17,31t (18,487 NM
Income tax expens (3,130 (6,285 3,15¢ 50.2%
Net (loss) incom: $ (4,297 $ 11,03( $ (15,32) NM

NM = not meaningfu
Net Revenues

Net revenue for the full year ended Decende 2013 was $86.0 million, an increase of 218tnpared to net revenue of $71.4 million
for the same period in 2012. This increase is prilgna result of the inclusion of the net revenaéshe businesses acquired in the Transactior
in 2013, offset in part by loss of political advsirig revenue. Pro forma for the Transaction odogron January 1, 2012, and excluding
political advertising revenue in the 2012 periogl, revenues for the year ended December 31, 20d&®ased by $2.3 million, or 3%. This
increase was driven by growth in subscriber feessacall of our Networks, offset in part by thedad advertising revenue resulting from the
cancellation of one of our television programs, &glusivo.

Operating Expenses

Cost of Revenues: Cost of revenues consists primarily of progranghand production costs, programming amortizatind distribution
costs. For the year ended December 31, 2013, tostenues increased $1.5 million, or 5%. Thiséase was due to the inclusion in 2013 of
the operating results of the businesses acquirdtkiiiransaction, offset in part by lower programgnéosts due primarily to the cancellatior
SuperXclusivo.

Selling, General and Administrative:Selling, general and administrative expens@esisbprincipally of promotion, marketing and
research, stock-based compensation, employee ogstgpancy costs and other general administrabgescFor the year ended December 31,
2013, selling, general and
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administrative expenses increased $16.0 millions irtcrease was due primarily to the inclusion®.2 of the operating results of the
businesses acquired in the Transaction, the incceren 2013 of stock based compensation of $7.omidnd corporate overhead, and a one-
time charge of $3.8 million in connection with tieemination of an agreement with MVS.

Depreciation and Amortization: Depreciation and amortization expense conefstiepreciation of fixed assets and amortization of
intangibles. For the year ended December 31, 2fd@eciation and amortization expense increasdtirilion. The increase was due
primarily to amortization of identifiable intangés created as a result of the Transaction.

Other Expenses: Other expenses include costs related to thes@idion and to the pending acquisition of the AegliCable Business.
For more information, see Note 13, "Subsequent &Veri Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemdntduded in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. For the year ended December 31, 201@r@xpenses increased $5.0 million. The increasedue to legal and financial advisory
fees and expenses incurred in connection with taaskaction and the pending acquisition of the AeguCable Business.

(Gain) Loss on Disposition of AssetsLoss on disposition of assets increased $0l®mduring the year ended December 31, 2013.
increase was due to losses on disposals of equipmdonger used in our operations.

Other Expenses

Other expenses consist primarily of inteee@ense. For the year ended December 31, 20, expenses increased by $5.3 million. The
increase was due to a $1.6 million loss on theyeatinguishment of debt, the inclusion of interegpense on debt assumed in the Transactio
and interest expense on the new term loan entetedn July 2013 which replaced all pre-existindagbtedness.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense decreased $3.2 milbothie year ended December 31, 2013. The decrezseéuwe to a decline in income before
taxes, offset in part by an increase in the cofeaiax rate in Puerto Rico from 30% to 39%, andcibreesponding valuation allowance on our
deferred tax asset, and permanent differencesemsili of costs related to the Transaction.

Net (Loss) Income
Net income decreased $15.3 million forykar ended December 31, 2013.
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Comparison of Consolidated Operating Results for th Year Ended December 31, 2012 and the Year Ended@mber 31, 2011

D\f;a;rﬁl}f;gregl $ Change % Change
Favorable / Favorable /
2012 2011 (Unfavorable) (Unfavorable)
Net revenue $ 71,367 $ 60,797 $ 10,57( 17.2%
Operating Expense
Cost of revenue 32,40¢ 28,98¢ (3,429 -11.8%
Selling, general and administrati 13,661 13,02 (643) -4.%%
Depreciation and amortizatic 3,72: 3,42¢ (29¢) -8.7%
Other expense 703 — (703) NM
Loss (gain) on disposition of ass (1) (39 (38) 98.2%
Total operating expens: 50,50: 45,39¢ 5,10¢ -11.2%
Operating incom: 20,86¢ 15,40: 5,46 35.5%
Other Expense:
Interest expense, n (3,509 (3,627) 12¢ 3.5%
Other expense, n (50 (187) 137 73.5%
(3,55)) (3,819 263 6.%%
Income before income tax 17,31t 11,58¢ 5,721 49.4%
Income tax expens (6,285 (3,989 (2,30]) 57.8%
Net income $ 11,03( $ 7,60/ $ 3,42¢ 45.1%

Net Revenues

For the year ended December 31, 2012 eveinues increased $10.6 million, or 17%, as condparéhe same period in 2011, due to an
increase in net advertising revenue due primanilgdlitical advertising, and an increase in retnaission and subscriber fees.

Operating Expenses

For the year ended December 31, 2012, tipgrexpenses increased $5.1 million, or 11%, aspaved to the same period in 2011, as a
result of changes in the following areas:

Cost of Revenues: Cost of revenues consists primarily of prograngnand production costs, programming amortizatiod distribution
costs. Cost of revenues increased $3.4 millio286, due primarily to the launch of a new reald@levision program, coverage of the political
elections, the acquisition of sports media rights] an increase in programming amortization.

Selling, General and Administrative:Selling, general and administrative expensasisbprincipally of promotion and research,
corporate employee costs, and other general adnaitive costs. Selling, general and administragixpenses increased $0.6 million, or 5%,
in part to increases in insurance, payroll taxebwility expenses.

Depreciation and Amortization: Depreciation and amortization expense coneistiepreciation of fixed assets and amortization of

intangibles. Depreciation and amortization expenseeased $0.3 million, or 9%, due primarily toinarease in capital expenditures related to
the upgrade of our production facilities in Pudrioo to high definition in 2012.

Other Expenses: Other expenses, which include transaction dnéranon-recurring expenses, were $0.7 milliorthage were no
transaction related expenses in 2011.
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Gain on Disposition of Assets:Gain on disposition of assets decreased $3&tallower gains on sales of equipment no longed urs
our operations.

Operating Income

For the year ended December 31, 2012, tpgramcome increased $5.5 million, or 36%, as cared to the same period in 2011.
Other Expenses

Other expenses decreased $0.3 million%ardue primarily to a decrease in the fair valughefinterest rate swap.
Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased $2.3 milkiorn8%, due to a 49% increase in income beforenmectaxes.
Net Income

For the year ended December 31, 2012 neenie increased $3.4 million, or 45%, as comparedd same period in 2011.
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Sources and Uses of Ca:

Our principal sources of cash are cashasmhand cash flows from operating activities. ABDecember 31, 2013, the Company had
$176.6 million of cash on hand. The purchase mfadbe Acquired Cable Business in 2014 is expetddue approximately $102.2 million,
subject to adjustments, and is payable in cashfdPnea for the purchase of the Acquired Cable Bessn our cash on hand as of December 3!
2013 will be $74.4 million.

Our primary uses of cash include the prtidnand acquisition of programming, operationatesppersonnel costs, equipment purchases
interest payments on our outstanding debt and iedax payments and may be used to fund acquisitions

Management believes cash on hand and tasHrbm operations will be sufficient to meet @srrent contractual financial obligations ¢
to fund anticipated working capital and capital exgiture requirements for existing operations. Qurent financial obligations include
maturities of debt, operating lease obligations athér commitments from ordinary course of busireasrequire cash payments to vendors
and suppliers.

Cash Flows

Years Ended
December 31,

2013 2012
Amounts in thousand
Cash provided by (used ir
Operating activitie! $ 7,018 $ 16,48¢
Investing activities (1,786 (3,750
Financing activitie: 161,30¢ (12,839
Net increase (decrease) in Ci $ 166,53¢ $ (99)
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Comparison for the Year Ended December 31, 2013 &stember 31, 2012
Operating Activities

Cash used in operating activities is prifpatriven by our net (loss) income, adjusted fonrcash items and changes in working capital.
Non-cash items consist primarily of depreciation agerty and equipment, amortization of intangibfgegramming amortization,
amortization of deferred financing costs, stockdobsompensation expense, deferred taxes and povi bad debts.

Net cash provided by operating activitiesthe year ended December 31, 2013 was $7.0 mélsocompared to $16.5 million in the same
period in 2012, due to a $15.3 million decreaseeinincome, a $9.5 million increase in net workdagital, offset in part by a $15.4 million
increase in non-cash items. Non-cash items incdegasmmarily as a result of a $7.2 million increasetock-based compensation, a $4.7 millior
increase in amortization of intangibles as a resiulhe Transaction, a $1.6 million loss on eastirgguishment of debt, and a $2.0 million
increase in programming amortization.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities far year ended December 31, 2013 was $1.8 mill®opmpared to net use of cash of $3.8 millior
in the same period in 2012. The decrease wasgtble to lower capital expenditures which werehbign 2012 as a result of an upgrade of
our television production facilities to high defion.

Financing Activities

For the year ended December 31, 2013, mashded by financing activities was $161.3 millias compared to net use of cash of
$12.8 million in the same period in 2012. The iasein cash was due to net proceeds from the Tamisaproceeds raised from a new loan,
offset in part by the repayment of all of our gedsting outstanding debt, and the payment of ékexpenses in connection with the new |

Comparison for the Year Ended December 31, 2012 #relYear Ended December 31, 2011
Operating Activities

Cash provided by operating activities isnarily driven by net income, adjusted for non-césms and changes in working capital. Non-
cash items consist primarily of depreciation ofgandy and equipment, amortization of intangiblesgpamming amortization, amortization of
deferred financing costs, deferred taxes and pmvi®r bad debts.

Net cash provided by operating activitiesthe year ended December 31, 2012, was $16.Bmilin increase of $2.9 million, as
compared to the same period in 2011, due primayiy $3.4 million increase in net income and a $il6on increase in norash items, offse
partly by a $1.2 million increase in net workingital. Non-cash items increased primarily due &i& million increase in programming
amortization, a $0.3 million increase in depreciatind amortization, and a $0.2 million increasanvortization of deferred financing fees,
offset by a $1.1 million decrease in deferred taad a $0.2 million decrease in the provision fad debts.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities feayended December 31, 2012, was $3.7 millionnarease of $1.7 million, as compared to the
same period in 2011, due primarily to an increaseapital expenditures as a result of our upgrddeioproduction facilities to high definition
in 2012.

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities fog year ended December 31, 2012, was $12.8 milioincrease of $6.4 million, as compared to
the same period in 2011, due to an increase iryne@ats of
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the term loan of $5.7 million and a decrease irtgeds from the new term loan of $19.2 million, effsy a decrease in distributions paid to th
WAPA Member of $18.5 million.

Discussion of Indebtednes

On July 30, 2013 certain of our direct amirect wholly-owned subsidiaries, Hemisphere Meldbldings, LLC ("Holdings") and
InterMedia Espafiol, Inc. and together with Holdindise "Borrowers") entered into a credit agreenveittt various financial institutions, of
which Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. acted as jesud arranger and lead bookrunner, GE Capital Maskec. acted as joint lead arranger,
Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch acted as the adinétive agent and collateral agent and Genegadtiit Capital Corporation acted as
syndication agent, providing for a $175 million mersecured term loan B facility (the "Term LoarcHi&y") which matures on July 30, 2020.
The Term Loan Facility also provides an uncommitiedordion option (the "Incremental Facility") allimg for additional borrowings under
the Term Loan Facility up to an aggregate princgrabunt equal to (i) $20 million plus (ii) an addital amount up to 4.0x 1st lien net
leverage. After repayment of all outstanding dddigations at our subsidiaries and payment of eebexpenses, net cash proceeds were
approximately $80 million.

The Term Loan Facility bears interest atBorrowers' option of either (i) LIBOR plus a miargf 5.00% (subject to a LIBOR floor of
1.25%) or (ii) or an Alternate Base Rate ("ABR")pla margin of 4.00% (subject to an ABR floor ¢f5326) and was issued with 1.0% of
original issue discount. The Term Loan Facilityuiegs the Borrowers to make amortization paymentgyarterly installments) equal to
1.00% per annum with respect to the Term Loan Bagifith any remaining amount due at final maturMoluntary prepayments are permitt
in whole or in part, subject to certain minimumgagment requirements; provided that any prepaymmeatie, prior to the date that is twelve
months from the closing of the Term Loan Facilfty, the purpose of repricing or effectively repnigithe Term Loan Facility includes a 1.00%
prepayment premium.

The obligations under the Term Loan Fac#ite guaranteed by HMTV, LLC ("HMTV"), a direct aity-owned subsidiary of Hemisphere
Media Group, Inc. (and the newly formed parent ofdihgs) and all of Holdings' existing and futuieedt and indirect domestic subsidiaries
(subject to certain exceptions in the case of inem@tsubsidiaries). The Term Loan Facility is seclby a first-priority perfected security
interest in substantially all of the assets of HMHo6Idings and its restricted subsidiaries.

The Term Loan Facility does not have angfficial covenants other than (i) a Total Net LegerRatio of 6.00:1.00, determined on a pro
forma basis after giving aggregate effect to ammydmental Facility, new term loans or new increraknbtes that would apply and (ii) a First
Lien Net Leverage Ratio (as defined in the cregiitament) of 4.00:1.00, determined on a pro foramsbafter giving aggregate affect to any
Incremental Facility, new term loans or new incrataénotes first.

The lenders have the ability, subject wtaie rights of the Borrowers to cure periods, toederate loan payment dates and charge defaul
interest rates for certain breaches by the Borrswéits covenants and other obligations undeiTéren Loan Facility.

The proceeds of the Term Loan Facility wesed to (i) repay outstanding indebtedness andiadénterest of approximately
$54.3 million in connection with that certain LoAgreement, dated as of March 31, 2011, by and anmtegMedia Espafiol, Inc. and
Televicentro of Puerto Rico, LLC, as borrowers, fihancial institutions party thereto (the "WAPArheLoan"), (ii) repay outstanding
indebtedness and accrued interest of approxim@gfly7 million in connection with that certain Amendand Restated Credit Agreement,
dated as of June 17, 2011, by and among Cine Ldting as borrower, the other persons party tbetedt are designated as credit parties (the
"Cinelatino Term Loan") and will be used (iii) fgeneral corporate purposes (including to fund p@kacquisitions). Additionally, the
proceeds will be used to pay certain fees, comomssand expenses incurred in connection with thienTIsan Facility.
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As of December 31, 2013, we have made jpathpayments of $5.2 million on all existing indetiness throughout the year, including
$0.9 million of principal payments on the outstangdirerm Loan.

The foregoing description is not completd & qualified in its entirety by reference to thié text of the Credit Agreement and Guaranty
Agreement, each filed as exhibits to this Annugbéteon Form 10-K.

Contractual Obligations

Our contractual obligations as of Deceni#er2013 are as follow@mounts in thousands

Less than After
Total 1 Year 1-3Years 4-5 Years 5 Years
Long-term debt obligations,
including current portion(1 $ 174,128 $ 1,75C $ 3,50C $ 3,50C $ 165,37
Operating lease obligtior 29C 21¢ 72 — —
Other commitment 11,20¢ 6,481 4,44¢ 27¢ —
Total $ 18562( $ 8,44¢ $ 8,021 $ 3,77 $ 165,37!

Q) Excludes interest related to de

At December 31, 2013, our proportionateslud the projected benefit obligation of the Neasgr Guild International Pension Plan (the
"Plan") exceeded plan assets by $2.1 million aptae is unfunded. Estimates of our future obligatare primarily dependent on future
interest rates, future regulatory law changes ahdé collective bargaining agreements coveringPla@ participants.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
We do not have any off-balance sheet fimgnarrangements.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Our consolidated financial statements aepared in accordance with GAAP, which requires agement to make estimates, judgments
and assumptions that affect the amounts reportétkisonsolidated financial statements includethénAnnual Report on Form 10-K and
accompanying notes. Management considers an adeguottlicy to be critical if it is important to odinancial condition and results of
operations, and if it requires significant judgmantl estimates on the part of management in itscagipn. The development and selection of
these critical accounting policies have been detexdhby management and the related disclosureshieamereviewed with the Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors of the Compafnie consider policies relating to the following meas to be critical accounting policies:

. Revenue recognition

. Valuation of goodwill and intangible assets

. Amortization and impairment of programming rights
. Income taxes

. Equity-based compensation

For an in-depth discussion of each of agmificant accounting policies, including our ccl accounting policies and further information
regarding the estimates and assumptions involvékiin application, see Note 1 to the accompangntsolidated financial statements
included in Item 15, "Exhibits, Financial Statenseahd Schedules" in this Annual Report on Form 10-K
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MakRisk.
Interest Rate Risk
We finance our capital needs through ouneoan Facility at our indirect wholly-owned sullisiry, Hemisphere Media Holdings, LLC.

The variableate of interest on the Term Loan Facility expaseso market risk for changes in interest ratesinsathereunder bear intel
at rates that vary with changes in prevailing mar&ges. With respect to the Term Loan Facility,deenot speculate on the future direction of
interest rates. As of December 31, 2013, our exeasuchanging market rates with respect to thenTlesan Facility was as follows:

Dollars in millions December 31, 201
Variable rate dek $ 174.1
Interest rate 6.25%

As of December 31, 2013 total outstandialaihce on the Term Loan Facility was approxima$dly4.1 million. In the event of an
increase in the interest rate of 100 basis poa#syming a principal of $174.1 million, we wouldun an increase in interest expense of
approximately $1.7 million per year. Such potenitiareases or decreases are based on certainfgingplissumptions, including a constant
level of debt, no interest rate swap or hedge &egland an immediate, across-the-board increadecogase in the level of interest rates with
no other subsequent changes for one year.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

Although we currently conduct businessaniaus countries outside the United States, waarsubject to any material currency risk
because our cash flows are collected in U.S. DolReported earnings and assets may be reducedidap in which the U.S. dollar increases
in value relative to those currencies.

Our objective in managing exposure to fgmeturrency fluctuations is to reduce volatilityezfrnings and cash flow. Accordingly, we may
enter into foreign currency derivative instrumethigt change in value as foreign exchange ratesgehanich as foreign currency forward
contracts or foreign currency options. Any gaind krsses on the fair value of derivative contraatsild be largely offset by gains and losses
on the underlying assets being hedged. We heldmigh currency derivative financial instrument®atember 31, 2013.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary &ia.

The response to this item is provided is innual Report on Form 10-K under Item 15 ExlsipEinancial Statements and Schedules an
is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accotants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
None

ltem 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, under the supervision atidthe participation of our Chief Executive Officend Chief Financial Officer, evaluated
our disclosure controls and procedures, as of Dbee®il, 2013. Our Chief Executive Officer and Cliigfancial Officer concluded that, as of
December 31, 2013, our disclosure controls andguhoes were effective to ensure that all infornratexquired to be disclosed is recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the pien®ds specified, and that information requiretiédiled in the reports that we file or
submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1984 (Exchange Act") is accumulated and communicttenir management,
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including our principal executive and principaldircial officers, to allow timely decisions rega@lirequired disclosure.

Our management, including our Chief Exeau®fficer and Chief Financial Officer, does nopegt that our disclosure controls and
procedures will prevent all errors and all fraudc@htrol system, no matter how well conceived aperated, can provide only reasonable, not
absolute, assurance that the objectives of theal®system are met. Further, the design of a cbeyrstem must reflect the fact that there are
resource constraints, and the benefits of contmist be considered relative to their costs. Becafifee inherent limitations in all control
systems, no evaluation of controls can provide labs@ssurance that all control issues and instaotfraud, if any, have been detected. Thes
inherent limitations include the realities thatgaeents in decision-making can be faulty and thaakdowns can occur because of simple erro
and mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumteg by the individual acts of some persons, bjusan of two or more people or by
management override of controls.

The design of any system of controls asbaised in part upon certain assumptions abolikéiiood of future events, and there can be
no assurance that any design will succeed in aiciyjets stated goals under all potential futuredibans. Over time, a control may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions oubedhe degree of compliance with the policiesroc@dures may deteriorate. Because o
inherent limitations in a cost-effective controb®m, misstatements due to error or fraud may cmedmay not be detected.

Changes in Internal Controls

No change in our internal control over fingl reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) 46d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) occurred
during the fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2BaB8Has materially affected, or is reasonably jikelmaterially affect, our internal control
over financial reporting.

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Ovigiancial Reporting

This Annual Report on Form 10-K does natude a report of management's assessment regantimgal controls over financial
reporting or an attestation report of the Comparegsstered public accounting firm due to a trdosiperiod established by the rules of the
Commission for newly public companies.

Item 9B. Other Information.
None
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PART Il
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpmate Governance.
ltem 11. Executive Compensation.
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficiBOwners and Management and Related Stockholder M&trs.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Traresctions, and Director Independence.
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information required by Items 10, 12, 13 and 14 will be furnished (and are herebyrpomted by reference) by an amendment
hereto or pursuant to a definitive proxy statenpemsuant to Regulation 14A that will contain sucformation. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
information appearing in the section "Audit ComeétReport” shall not be deemed to be incorporatedference in this report.

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statements and Scldgles.

(a) List of Documents Filed as part of this For@ak

1) Financial Statements
See Index to Consolidated Financial Statémen Page F-1 following this Part V.
2) Financial Statement Schedules

No schedules are required because eitbeetjuired information is not present or is nospre in amounts sufficient to require submis
of the schedule, or because the information redugéncluded in the consolidated financial stateta®r the notes thereto.

(b) List of Exhibits. The following is a list of exhibits filed, fuished or incorporated by reference as a part efAhinual Report on
Form 10-K.

Exhibit No. Description of Exhibits
2.1  Merger Agreement, dated as of January 22, 204d8nd among Azteca Acquisition
Corporation, the Company, InterMedia Espafiol HadirLLC, Cine Latino, Inc.,
Hemisphere Merger Sub I, LLC, Hemisphere Merger Bubc. and Hemisphere
Merger Sub Ill, Inc. (incorporated herein by refeze to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company's
Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with thernission on January 25, 2013)
(File No. 33:-186210)).

2.2 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of January22, By and among Hemisphere
Media Holdings, LLC, Media World, LLC and the othmarties named therein.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1the Company's Current Report on
Form &K filed with the Commission on January 23, 2014¢No. 00-35886)).

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatiodemisphere Media Group, Inc.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2toendment No. 2 to the Company's
Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with tleerthission on March 11, 2013)
(File No. 33:-186210)).
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Exhibit No.

Description of Exhibits

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.4

4.7

4.8

9.1

10.1

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Hemisphere Medbag; Inc. (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to Amendment No. 2hte Company's Registration
Statement on Form S-4 filed with the Commissioriviarch 11, 2013) (File No. 333-
186210)).

Specimen Hemisphere Class A common stock Cerfifatorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Amendment No. 2 to@mempany's Registration Statement
on Form &4 filed with the Commission on March 11, 2013) éAlo. 33-186210)).

Specimen Hemisphere Class B common stock Certfigatorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Amendment No. 2 to@mempany's Registration Statement
on Form &4 filed with the Commission on March 11, 2013) éANo. 33:-186210)).

Specimen Warrant Certificate (incorporated hergimdference to Exhibit 3.3 to
Amendment No. 2 to the Company's Registration Btate on Form S-4 filed with the
Commission on March 11, 2013) (File No. -186210)).

Equity Restructuring and Warrant Purchase Agreenuatéd as of January 22, 2013
and among Azteca Acquisition Corporation, the Comyp@zteca Acquisition
Holdings, LLC, Brener International Group, LLCténMedia Partners VII, L.P.,
InterMedia Cine Latino, LLC, Cinema Aeropuerto, Sd& C.V. and the other parties
identified therein (incorporated herein by refeeta Exhibit 4.4 to the Company's
Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with thernission on January 25, 2013)
(File No. 33:-186210)).

Lock-Up Agreement, dated as of January 22, 2013rgyamong InterMedia Espafiol
Holdings, LLC, Cine Latino, Inc. and the partiesntified as "IM Investor", "Cine
Investors" and "Azteca Investors" therein (incogted herein by reference to

Exhibit 4.5 to Amendment No. 2 to the Company'siRegtion Statement on Form S-4
filed with the Commission on March 11, 2013) (Fle. 33:-186210)).

Warrant Agreement, dated June 29, 2011, by anddegtwzteca Acquisition
Corporation and Continental Stock Transfer & Ti@smpany (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Azteca Acquisition Cangitions' Current Report on Form 8-
K filed with the Commission on July 6, 2011) (Fe. 00(-54443).

Assignment, Assumption and Amendment of Warrante&grent, dated as of April 4,
2013, by and among Azteca Acquisition Corporattbe,Company and Continental
Stock Transfer & Trust Company (incorporated helsimeference to Exhibit 4.6 to the
Company's Registration Statement on Form 8-A filéti the Commission on April 4,
2013) (File No. 00-54925)).

Hemisphere Media Group, Inc. 2013 Equity IncenBan (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Regisingbtatement on Form &filed with
the Commission on April 10, 2013) (File No. -187846)).

Support Agreement, dated January 22, 2013, by anwh@ Azteca Acquisition
Corporation, Hemisphere Media Group, Inc., certdithe initial stockholders of Azte
Acquisition Corporation, and the other parties tifesd therein (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Azteca Acquisition @amation's Current Report on Form 8
K filed with the Commission with the Commission &anuary 23, 2013)

Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporateddierby reference to Exhibit 10.1
Amendment No. 3 to the Company's Registration Statg on Form S-4 filed with the
Commission on March 15, 2013) (File No. -186210)).
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Exhibit No.

Description of Exhibits

10.2

10.c

10.c

10.4

10.5

10.€

10.7

10.€

10.¢*

10.1¢*

10.17

21.1°

Registration Rights Agreement by and among the@amy and the parties identified
therein, dated January 22, 2013 (incorporated hénereference to Exhibit 10.2 to
Amendment No. 2 to the Company's Registration Btate on Form S-4 filed with the
Commission on March 11, 2013) (File No. -186210)).

Credit Agreement, dated as of July 30, 2013, byaandng Hemisphere Media
Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability companiynterMedia Espafiol, Inc., a
Delaware corporation, the lenders party theretmftione to time, Deutsche Bank
Securities Inc. as joint lead arranger and leakhomer, GE Capital Markets, Inc., as
joint lead arranger, Deutsche Bank AG New York Btgras administrative agent a
collateral agent, General Electric Capital Corgorgtas syndication agent, and the
other parties named therein (incorporated hereirefgrence to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with @@mmission on July 31, 2013
(File No. 00:-35886)).

Guaranty Agreement, dated as of July 30, 2013 noyaanong HMTV, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company, Hemisphere MeetHoldings, LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company, InterMedia Espafiol, Ine. Delaware corporation, the
subsidiary guarantors from time to time party theewnd Deutsche Bank AG New Yc
Branch as administrative agent (incorporated hdrgireference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed with @@mmission on July 31, 2013
(File No. 00-35886)).

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Award Agreemeintcbrporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quartedport on Form 10-Q filed with
the Commission on August 14, 2013 (File No.-35886)).

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (incorpedaherein by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Quarterly Report omk10-Q filed with the
Commission on August 14, 2013 (File No. -35886)).

Employment Agreement, dated April 9, 2013, by aatiieen the Company and

Mr. Alan J. Sokol (incorporated herein by referete&xhibit 10.1 to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commigsmn April 15, 2013 (File

No. 00(-54925)).

Employment Agreement, dated April 9, 2013, by aatiieen the Company and

Mr. Craig D. Fischer (incorporated herein by refex@to Exhibit 10.4 to the Compan
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commigsmn April 15, 2013 (File

No. 00(-54925)).

Consulting Agreement, dated June 20, 2013, by ahslden the Company and James
M. McNamara (incorporated herein by reference thikik 10.5 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Comsiis on August 14, 2013 (File
No. 001-35886)).

Employment Agreement, dated May 6, 2013, by andden the Company and Alex J.
Tolston.

Employment Agreement, dated September 30, 2018ntdybetween the Company,
Televicentro of Puerto Rico, LLC and Jose E. Rar

Offer Letter, dated October 10, 2013, by and betwtbe Company and Nicolas J. Ve
Subsidiaries of the Compar
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Exhibit No. Description of Exhibits
23.1* Consent of McGladrey LLP, independent accountantshie Compan'

31.1° Certification of CEO Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)6d-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as Adopted Putrsm&ection 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2° Certification of CFO Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)6d-14(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as Adopted Pursu&ection 302 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

32.17*% Certification of CEO Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Secti8b(, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2*% Certification of CFO Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Secti8b@, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 2002

101.INS™T XBRL Instance Documen

101.SCHF*T XBRL Taxonomy Extension Scherr

101.CAL*™*T XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkba:
101.LAB**T XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbas
101.PRF*T XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbz

101.DEF*T XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase

* Filed herewith
xk Furnished herewith

¥ A signed original of the written statement requibgdSection 906 has been provided to the Compadynhbe retained
by the Company and forwarded to the SEC or it$ gfadn request.

t Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, thageractive data files are deemed not filed or phé registration
statement or prospectus for purposes of Sectioms 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amendercegt as expressly
set forth by specific reference in such filing, dee=med not filed for purposes of Section 18 ofiikehange Act, and
otherwise are not subject to liability under thesetions
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934amended, the Registrant has duly cause
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigtteereunto duly authorized.

HEMISPHERE MEDIA GROUP, INC.
(Registrant)

Dated: March 28, 2014 By: /sl ALAN J. SOKOL

Alan J. Sokol
Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beeresidrelow by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated.

Signature Title Date

/sl PETER M. KERN

Chairman of the Board and Director March 28,420
Peter M. Kerr

/s/ ALAN J. SOKOL Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer) and March 28, 2014
Alan J. Soko Director
/s/ CRAIG D. FISCHER Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting March 28, 2014
Craig D. Fische Officer)
/s/ LEO HINDERY, JR.
Director March 28, 2014
Leo Hindery, Jr
/s/ JAMES M. MCNAMARA
Director March 28, 2014
James M. McNamatr
/sl ERNESTO VARGAS GUAJARDO
Director March 28, 2014
Ernesto Vargas Guajart
/sl GABRIEL BRENER
Director March 28, 2014

Gabriel Brene

66




Table of Contents

Signature

/s ERIC C. NEUMAN

Eric C. Neumar

/s/ VINCENT L. SADUSKY

Vincent L. Sadusk'

/s/ JOHN ENGELMAN

John Engelma

Title

Director

Director

Director

67

Date

March 28, 2014

March 28, 2014
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
Hemisphere Media Group, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying conselitihlance sheets of Hemisphere Media Group, httsabsidiaries as of December 31,
2013 and 2012, and the related consolidated statsméoperations, comprehensive (loss) incomekstaders' equity, and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended DeceBih@013. These financial statements are theoredipility of the Company's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hiésancial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Slgat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &dndbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to hamewere we engaged to perform, an audit of itsrirdl control over financial reporting.
Our audits included consideration of internal cohtiver financial reporting as a basis for desigrandit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgssmopinion on the effectiveness of the Companyésnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An autlibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenppating the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made dgagement, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audits provide a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, the consolidated finanatdtements referred to above present fairly, imalerial respects, the financial position of
Hemisphere Media Group, Inc. and subsidiaries &ecember 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results wfaperations and their cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended DeceBih013, in conformity with U.S. generally actsbaccounting principles.

/sl McGladrey LLP

West Palm Beach, Florida
March 28, 2014
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Hemisphere Media Group, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012

(amounts in thousands, except share and par valuerounts)

2013 2012
Assets
Current Asset
Cash $176,62: $ 10,08¢
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful
accounts of $137 and $180, respecti\ 15,58¢ 10,51:
Due from related parties, net of allowance for dtulb
accounts of $514 and $0, respectiv 2,14: —
Programming right 5,74¢ 4,40z
Deferred taxe — 3,04¢
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 4,07¢ 1,36
Total current assets 204,17¢ 29,40¢
Programming right 7,00C 2,66¢
Property and equipment, r 24,67¢ 26,86:
Deferred financing cos 3,251 2,04
Deferred taxe — 863
Broadcast licens 41,35¢ 41,35¢
Goodwill 130,79: 10,98
Other intangibles, ne 34,61( 1,67¢
Other asset 782 —
Total Assets $446,64¢ $115,85¢
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current Liabilities
Accounts payabl $ 1566 $ 917
Due to related partie 73¢ —
Accrued agency commissio 6,101 7,11C
Accrued compensation and bene 2,37¢ 2,182
Other accrued expens 4,92¢ 2,74¢
Programming rights payab 4,58¢ 3,20¢
Deferred taxe 8,13¢ —
Current portion of lon-term debt 1,75( 4,60¢
Total current liabilities 30,17: 20,76¢
Programming rights payab 837 927
Long-term debt, net of current portic 170,73: 52,40
Deferred taxe 2,04C —
Defined benefit pension obligatic 2,07t 2,09¢
Total Liabilities 205,86( 76,19¢
Commitments and Contingenci
Stockholders' Equity
Preferred stock, $0.0001 par value; 50,000,000eshar
authorized at December 31, 2013; 0 shares isswkd an
outstanding at December 31, 2013 and 2! — —
Class A common stock, $.0001 par value; 100,000,000
shares authorized at December 31, 2013; 11,241,000
and 0 shares issued and outstanding at Decemb 1 —
Class B common stock, $.0001 par value; 33,000,000
shares authorized at December 31, 2013; 33,000,000
and 0 shares issued and outstanding at Decemb 3 —
Additional paic-in capital 240,81 34,60¢
Treasury stock, at cost; 65,549 and 0 shares at
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respecti' (93¢) —
Retained earning 1,541 5,83¢
Total Stockholders' Equity 240,78t 39,65¢
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $446,64¢ $115,85¢



Accumulated comprehensive Ic (63€) (787)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédstents.
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Hemisphere Media Group, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

(amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

2013 2012 2011
Net revenue $ 86,008 $ 71,360 $ 60,79:
Operating Expense
Cost of revenue 33,95( 32,40¢ 28,98t
Selling, general and administrati 29,67¢ 13,661 13,02
Depreciation and amortizatic 8,76: 3,72 3,42¢
Other expense 5,69¢ 703 —
Loss (gain) on disposition of ass 19¢ (1) (39
Total operating expens 78,28 50,50: 45,39¢
Operating incom: 7,722 20,86¢ 15,40:
Other Expense:
Interest expense, n (7,177 (3,509 (3,627)
Loss on early extinguishment of d¢ (1,649 — —
Other expense, n (63) (50 (187)
(8,889 (3,559 (3,819
(Loss) income before income tax (2,267 17,31t 11,58¢
Income tax expens (3,130 (6,285 (3,989
Net (loss) incomq $ (4,297 $ 11,03( $ 7,60/
(Loss) earnings per shai
Basic $ (019 $ 11,03 $ 7,60«
Diluted $ (0.1H $ 11,03¢ $ 7,60
Weighted average shares outstand
Basic 31,14 1 1
Diluted 31,14 1 1

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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Hemisphere Media Group, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive (Loss) lome
Years Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

(amounts in thousands)

2013 2012 2011
Net (loss) incom $ (4,297) $ 11,03 $ 7,60¢
Other comprehensive income (los
Net unrealized gain on interest rate swap agreemenbf tax 38 — —
Adjustment to defined benefit retirement plan, ofetax 13C (25€) (149
Other, net of ta: (17) — —
Comprehensive (loss) incor $ (4,246 $ 10,77+ $ 7,45¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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Balance at
January 1,
2011
Net income
Distributions
Other

comprehen
loss,
defined
benefit
retirement
plan, net of
tax

Balance at
December 31,
2011
Net income
Distributions
Other

comprehen
loss,
defined
benefit
retirement
plan, net of
tax

Balance at
December 31,
2012
Consummatio

of the
Transactior
(April 4,
2013)
Net loss
Issuance of
restricted
stock
Excess of tax
benefits
related to
the issuanc
of restrictec
stock
Stock-based
compensati
Repurchases
of Class A
common
stock
Other
comprehen
income, netl
of tax

Balance at
December 31,
2013

Hemisphere Media Group, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in StockholderSguity

Years Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

(amounts in thousands, except par value)

Class A Class B

Common Stock Common Stock  Additional ~ Class A Accumulated

Par Paid In Treasury Retained Comprehensive

Shares  Value Shares  Value Capital Stock Earnings  (Loss) Income Total
— — — — $ 50,20: $ — $ 1111 $ (382) $ 50,93(
— — — — — — 7,604 — 7,60¢
— — — — (15,599 — (8,407) — (24,000)
— — — — — — — (149) (149)
— — — — 34,60¢ — 30€ (531) 34,38t
— — — — — — 11,03( — 11,03(
_ _ _ — — = (5,500) — (5,500
— — — — — — — (256) (25€)
— — — — 34,60¢ — 5,83¢ (787) 39,65¢

10,99: 1 33,00( 3 198,99: — — — 198,99¢
— — — — — — (4,297) — (4,29)
25(C — — — 2,10z — — — 2,10z
— — — — 25 — — — 25
— — — — 5,09( — — — 5,09(
— — — — — (93¢) — — (93¢)
— — — — — — — 151 151

11,24: 1 33,000 3 $ 240,81 $ (93¢) ¢ 1541 $ (63€) $ 240,78t

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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Hemisphere Media Group, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(amounts in thousands)

Years Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

2013 2012 2011
Reconciliation of Net (Loss) Income to Net Cashvrted by Operating Activities
Net (loss) incomi $ (429) $ 1103( $ 7,60¢
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to rehcrovided by operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic 8,76: 3,72% 3,42¢
Program amortizatio 9,32: 7,371 5,981
Amortization of deferred financing cos 604 85¢ 67¢
Amortization of original issue discou 10€ — —
Stocl-based compensatic 7,192 — —
Provision (recoveries) for bad del 165 (20) 20z
Loss (gain) on disposition of ass 19¢ 1) (39)
Loss on early extinguishment of d¢ 1,64¢ — —
Deferred tax expens 1,02¢ 1,71¢ 2,80¢
Changes in assets and liabiliti
(Increase) decrease
Accounts receivabl (1,030 @) (2,415
Programming right (10,549 (7,970 (7,31)
Prepaid expenses and other current a (2,96¢) (94%) 95
Increase (decrease)
Accounts payabl 56< (55) (24))
Due to related partie (1,009 — —
Accrued expense (3,949 1,04( 2,030
Programming rights payab 78¢ 36 43¢
Income tax payabl (24) (157) 77)
Other liabilities 44€ (14E) 43E
Net cash provided by operating activit 7,01¢ 16,48¢ 13,62
Cash Flows From Investing Activitie
Proceeds from sale of ass 1€ 50 39
Capital expenditure (1,807) (3,800 (2,1272)
Net cash used in investing activiti (1,786 (3,750 (2,089
Cash Flows From Financing Activitie
Transaction proceeds, r 82,437 — —
Proceeds from lor-term debi 173,25l — 19,19«
Repayments of lor-term debt (89,98 (7,33¢) (1,650
Financing fee: (3,459 — —
Distributions — (5,500) (24,000
Purchase of treasury sto (93¢) — —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 161,30! (12,83%) (6,45¢6)
Net increase (decrease) in ci 166,53t (99) 5,082
Cash:
Beginning 10,08 10,18 5,101
Ending $ 176,62. $ 10,08¢ $ 10,18:
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Informat
Cash payments fo
Interest $ 541¢ $ 2917 $ 2,01¢
Income taxe: $ 403 $ 551« § 1,19t
Distributions, net of withholding taxe $ — $ 495 $ 23,21«
Supplemental Schedule of Noncash Investing andchEing Activities:
Financed through term loa
Interest $ — § — § 124
Financing cost — — 3,581
$ — § — $ 3,70t

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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Hemisphere Media Group, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accoumtg Policies

Nature of business: The accompanying consolidated financial statémimclude the accounts of Hemisphere Media Gring,
("Hemisphere" or the "Company"), the parent holdinghpany of Cine Latino, Inc. ("Cinelatino"), WARAoldings, LLC (formerly known as
InterMedia Espafiol Holdings, LLC) ("WAPA"), and Aeria Acquisition Corporation ("Azteca"). Hemisphes@s formed on January 16, 2013
for purposes of effecting the Transaction, whicls wansummated on April 4, 2013. The Company detexsits operating segments based
upon (i) financial information reviewed by the dhigerating decision maker, the Chief Executivei€eif, (ii) internal management and related
reporting structure and (i) the basis upon whith chief operating decision maker makes resouloeation decisions. We have one opera
segment, Hemisphere Media. In these notes, thest&@&mmpany,"” "we," "us" or "our" mean Hemispherd afl subsidiaries included in our
consolidated financial statements.

. Cine Latino, Inc. ("Cinelatino") —this company was organized under the laws of tageSif Delaware and is engaged in in
business of producing, offering and distributingable television network designated "Cine Latirtbe' content for which is
Spanish-language motion pictures or other entartai programming. The network is distributed thitowugt the United States,
Mexico, Central America, South America, the Cardaiband Canada.

. WAPA Holdings, LLC ("WAPA") —this company was organized under the laws of taee®f Delaware and is a holding
company that owns 100% interest of Espafiol and WAR#&rica (see below). WAPA has no operations oetassther than the
investments in Espafiol and WAPA America.

. InterMedia Espafiol, Inc. ("Espafiol") —this company was organized under the laws of tee®f Delaware and is a holding
company that owns 100% interest of WAPA PR (seevigelEspafiol has no operations or assets othettiieainvestment in
WAPA PR.

. Televicentro of Puerto Rico, LLC ("Televicentro" or "WAPA PR") —this Company was organized under the laws of the

State of Delaware and is engaged in the broadelastidion business, as well as in the productionevis and entertainment
programming in Puerto Rico.

. WAPA America, Inc. ("WAPA America") —this company was organized on September 2, 20@Enthe laws of the state of
Delaware, and is a cable television network disted in the U.S. and programmed with Spanish lagguews and
entertainment programs (produced and supplieds imajority, by WAPA PR).

. Azteca Acquisition Corporation ("Azteca") —Dormant subsidiary; Azteca was initially formedaablank check company in
the British Virgin Islands on April 15, 2011 andreorporated in the State of Delaware on June 81 26r the purpose of
effecting a merger, capital stock exchange, agsptisition, stock, reorganization or similar busise€ombination with one or
more businesses. Azteca, a special purpose adopuigéhicle, delivered the proceeds of a trust anteaised in its 2011 initial
public offering to Hemisphere in the merger. Foliogithe consummation of the merger, Azteca hadpsvations and was
dissolved during the year ended December 31, 2013.

Cinelatino has certain agreements with MM8tivision Digital S. de R.L. de C.V. and its dffites (collectively "MVS"), a Mexican
media and television conglomerate, which have threand stockholders in common with the Compasyliscussed in Note 3.
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Hemisphere Media Group, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accoumtg Policies (Continued)

Principles of consolidation: The consolidated financial statements inclugeawcounts and the accounts of our subsidiariks. A
significant intercompany accounts and transacti@we been eliminated in consolidation.

Basis of Presentation: The accompanying consolidated financial statemfor us and our subsidiaries have been prepared
accordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the United States of America ("U.S GAARS.further described in Note 2,
WAPA is the accounting acquirer and predecessooselhistorical results are the historical resultd@misphere.

Adjustment to the quarter ended June 30, 2B: The Company identified an error in the consatld financial statements filed for the
quarter ended June 30, 2013. The error relatetctmriect stock compensation expense recognizegefdormance-based stock options that
fully vested during the quarter ended June 30, 20h8 correction of the stock compensation exparsdd have increased selling, general
administrative expenses by $0.9 million, and desgddncome tax expense by $0.3 million, resultimgn increase of $0.6 million to the
Company's reported net loss for the quarter ended 30, 2013. The Company has analyzed the impaiscerror on the interim financial
statements and concluded that the error would @ob&terial to the quarter ended June 30, 2013)ddkio account the requirements of the
Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") Staffoioiting Bulletin No. 108Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatemémthe
Current Year Financial Statemer(tSAB 108"). In accordance with SAB 108, the Compamaluated the materiality of the error from a
guantitative and qualitative perspective. Basedurh evaluation, the Company concluded that congtlhe error, which increased the
Company's net loss by $0.6 million for the thred aix months ended December 31, 2013 was not raht&s provided in SAB 108, the error
correction did not require the restatement of tresolidated financial statements for the quartelednJune 30, 2013, and the correction was
made in the consolidated financial statementsarfaolrth quarter of the year ended December 313.201

Net (loss) earnings per common share: Basic (loss) earnings per share ("EPS") arepeted by dividing income (loss) attributable to
common stockholders by the number of weighted-ayeecautstanding shares of common stock. Diluted Ef&cts the effect of the assumed
exercise of stock options and vesting of restricieares only in the periods in which such effectilddave been dilutive.
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Hemisphere Media Group, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accoumtg Policies (Continued)

The following table sets forth the compigtatof the common shares outstanding used in d@ta@rghbasic and diluted EPSmounts in
thousand9y:

Year Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011

Numerator for (loss) earnings per common
share calculation:
Net (loss) incom $ (4,297 $ 11,03C $ 7,604
Denominator for earnings per common shar¢
calculation:
Weighte-average common shares, be 31,14: 1 1
Effect of dilutive securities
Stock options and restricted stc — — —
Weightec-average common shares, dilu 31,14

[y
[y

We apply the treasury stock method to mesathe dilutive effect of its outstanding warrarggck options and restricted stock awards an
include the respective common share equivalertsemlenominator of our diluted (loss) income penown share calculation. Potentially
dilutive securities representing 0.6 million shasésommon stock for the years ended December @13 Zvere excluded from the computation
of diluted (loss) income per common share for fl@god because their effect would have been ahitidé. There were no potentially dilutive
securities for the years ended December 31, 20d2@h1. The net (loss) income per share amounthargame for our Class A and Class B
common stock because the holders of each cladsgaky entitled to equal per share distributiortsether through dividends or in liquidation.

In computing earnings per share, the Coyipatonvoting Stock is considered a participatiagwsity. Each share of Nonvoting Stock has
identical rights, powers, limitations and resticts in all respects as each share of common daEdnepany, including the right to receive the
same consideration per share payable in respeetobf share of common stock, except that holdekoofoting Stock shall have no voting
rights or powers whatsoever.

Revenue recognition: Revenue related to the sale of advertisingcamdracted time is recognized at the time of braatic
Retransmission consent fees and subscriber feeweelcfrom cable, telecommunications and satedlterators are recognized in the period in
which the services are performed, generally undgtiiyear carriage agreements based on the nunflseibscribers.

Barter transactions: The Company engages in barter transaction$ichaadvertising time is exchanged for productseswices.
Barter transactions are accounted for at the estuifair value of the products or services receiveddvertising time given up, whichever is
more clearly determinable. Barter revenue is reizaghat the time the advertising is broadcast.Baxpense is recorded at the time the
merchandise or services are used and/or received.
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Hemisphere Media Group, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accoumtg Policies (Continued)

Barter revenue and expense included ircdnsolidated statements of operations are as fsl{@mounts in thousands

2013 2012 2011
Barter revenu $ 1,448 $ 1,36 $ 1,021
Barter expens (1,360 (99€) (850)

$ 88 $ 367 $ 171

Programming costs: Programming costs are recorded in cost of neegased on the Company's contractual agreemghtgasious
third party programming distributors which are gatlg multi-year agreements.

Stock based compensation: We have given equity incentives to certain epeés. We account for such equity incentives imatance
with Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 71®ock Compensation," which requires us to measangpensation cost for equity settled
awards at fair value on the date of grant and meieegcompensation cost in the consolidated statenufroperations over the requisite service
or performance period the award is expected ta Gzmshpensation cost is determined by using eitheeMonte Carlo simulation model or the
Black-Scholes option pricing model.

Advertising and marketing costs: The Company expenses advertising and marketiats as incurred. The Company incurred
advertising and marketing costs of $1.3 million.48@illion and $0.2 million in 2013, 2012 and 20tdspectively.

Cash: The Company maintains its cash in bank depasibunts which, at times, may exceed federallyralimits. The Company has
not experienced any losses in such accounts.

Accounts receivable: Accounts receivable are carried at the origati@rge amount less an estimate made for douleifeivables base
on a review of all outstanding amounts. Managerdetdgrmines the allowance for doubtful accountsdgularly evaluating individual
customer receivables and considering a custonieasdial condition and current economic conditiohscounts receivable are written off
when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of accowusivable previously written off are recorded a®ime when received. The Company
considers an account receivable to be past dugyipartion of the receivable balance is outstandimgnore than 90 days. Changes in the
allowance for doubtful accounts for the years erfdedember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 consisted dbtloeving (amounts in thousands):

Beginning End
Year Description of Year Additions Write -offs Recoveries _of Year
2013  Allowance for doubtful accoun  $ 18C $ 58 51 $ 3 $§ 137
2012  Allowance for doubtful accoun 167 (a0 17 40 18C
2011  Allowance for doubtful accoun 167 20z 214 12 167

Due from related parties: Certain amounts due from related parties aeseuted net of an allowance for uncollectible an®based

on management's expectations related to the réalizaf the related parties' collections and reanites from the Company's customers.
Changes in the
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Hemisphere Media Group, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accoumtg Policies (Continued)

allowance for doubtful accounts for the years erdedember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 consisted dbtloeving (amounts in thousands):

Beginning End
Year Description of Year Additions Write -offs Recoveries of Year
2013  Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 0 % 514 $ — 8 — $ 514

2012  Allowance for doubtful accoun — — — — —
2011 Allowance for doubtful accoun — — — — —

Programming rights:  We enter into multi-year license agreements wérious programming distributors for distributiofitheir
respective programming ("programming rights") aagitalize amounts paid to secure or extend thesgr@mming rights at the lower of
unamortized cost or estimated net realizable vafusanagement estimates that the unamortizedafgeibogramming rights exceeds the
estimated net realizable value, an adjustmentisrded to reduce the carrying value of the progrargmghts. No such write down was
deemed necessary during the years ended Decemt2013, 2012 and 2011. We amortize these prograqnghts over the term of the
related license agreements or the number of eidnilsit whichever occurs first. The amortizationtedde rights, which was $9.3 million,
$7.4 million and $6.0 million for the years endeeld@mber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectivelgcizrded as part of cost of revenues in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operathcimulated amortization of the programming righitss $13.8 million and $8.4 million
at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Goatsred in connection with the purchase of programbe broadcast within one year are
classified as current assets, while costs of tposgrams to be broadcast subsequently are condidereurrent. Program obligations are
classified as current or noncurrent in accordanite tive payment terms of the license agreement.

Derivative financial instruments:  Our risk management policy is to use derivatfimancial instruments, primarily interest rate paa
as appropriate, to manage our exposure to fluctsiin interest rates related to debt with variafierest rates. At December 31, 2013, we do
not have any hedging instruments outstanding. Véegdate these instruments as a hedge of the Mityiaddicash flows to be paid related to
our variable-rate debt. The derivative financiatioments are measured at fair value and are rexajas either assets are liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheets. Changes in the faie wh a derivative that is highly effective, am@t is designated and qualifies as a cash flow
hedge, are recognized in other comprehensive in¢toes). We formally assess, both at the hedgeégpition and on an ongoing basis, whethe
the derivative that is used in a hedging transadtdighly effective in offsetting changes in cdlsiws of the underlying hedged item. When it
is determined that a derivative is not highly effifex as a hedge or that it has ceased to be ayhidfeictive hedge, we discontinue hedge
accounting prospectively.

Property and equipment: Property and equipment are recorded at cogirda@tion is determined using the straight-linghud over
the expected remaining useful lives of the respedassets. Useful lives range from 1 - 19 yearefiprovements, equipment, buildings and
towers. Upon retirement or other disposition, tbst@nd related accumulated depreciation of thetasse removed from the accounts and the
resulting gain or loss is reflected in the detemtion of net income or loss. Expenditures for ma&iance and repairs are expensed as incurre
Property and equipment is reviewed for impairmehémever events or changes in circumstances inditatéhe carrying amount may not be
recoverable.
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Hemisphere Media Group, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accoumtg Policies (Continued)

Goodwill and other intangibles: The Company's goodwill was recorded as a re$udlte Company's business combinations using the
acquisition method of accounting. Indefinite livieathngible assets include a broadcast licenseadratiemark. Other intangible assets include
customer relationships and affiliate agreementh afit estimated useful life of six to ten years.édthtangible assets are amortized over their
estimated lives using the straight-line method.t€ogurred to renew or extend the term of recogphintangible assets are capitalized and
amortized over the useful life of the asset.

The Company tests its broadcast licenseahynfor impairment or whenever events or charigaesrcumstances indicate that such assets
might be impaired. The impairment test consista obmparison of the fair value of these assets thih carrying amounts using a discounted
cash flow valuation method, assuming a hypothe$itat-up scenario.

The Company tests its goodwill annuallyifopairment or whenever events or changes in cistantes indicate that goodwill might be
impaired. The first step of the goodwill impairmeéest compares the fair value of each reportingwith its carrying amount, including
goodwill. The fair value of the reporting units atetermined through the use of a discounted cashdhalysis incorporating variables such as
revenue projections, projected operating cash flargins, and discount rates.

The valuation assumptions used in the distad cash flow model reflect historical performant the Company and prevailing values in
the broadcast and cable markets. If the fair vakozeds the carrying amount, goodwill is not coersd impaired. If the carrying amount
exceeds the fair value, the second step of thewjdaohpairment test is performed to measure theant of impairment loss, if any. The
second step of the goodwill impairment test comp#ne implied fair value of goodwill with the caimg amount of that goodwill. If the
carrying amount of goodwill exceeds the implied failue, an impairment loss shall be recognizeahimmount equal to that excess.

The Company tests its other indefinite divetangible asset annually for impairment or whemevents or changes in circumstances
indicate that such asset might be impaired. Thidyars is performed by comparing the respectiveyaag value of the asset to the current and
expected future cash flows, on an undiscountedsptsbe generated from such asset. If such asdhdiicates that the carrying value of this
asset is not recoverable, the carrying value ofi sisset is reduced to fair value.

Deferred financing costs: Deferred financing costs are recorded net ofientilated amortization. Amortization is calculatedthe
effective-interest method over the term of the mablle loan. Amortization of deferred financing osas $0.7 million, $0.9 million and
$0.7 million which is included in interest expenset in the accompanying consolidated statemerp@fations for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectivelyudotated amortization of deferred financing cosés Ww0.2 million and $1.5 million at
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Income taxes: Income taxes are accounted for under the asskliability method. Deferred tax assets and ligds are recognized for
the future tax consequences attributable to diffegs between the financial statement carrying atsanfrexisting assets and liabilities and
their respective tax basis and operating loss axdredit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets ataaed by a valuation allowance when, in the
opinion of management, it is more likely than fwttsome portion or all of the deferred tax ass@tsiot be realized. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using
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Hemisphere Media Group, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accoumtg Policies (Continued)

enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxableriada the years in which those temporary differsrare expected to be recovered or settled.
The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilitfes change in tax rates is recognized in incontbénperiod that includes the enactment date.

We record foreign withholding tax, whichwithheld by foreign customers from their remittasd¢o us, on a gross basis as a component
income taxes and separate from revenue in the lidataal statement of operations.

We follow the accounting standard on actiogrfor uncertainty in income taxes, which addessthe determination of whether tax
benefits claimed or expected to be claimed on agaxn should be recorded in the financial statgmedJnder this guidance, we may recog
the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position ahlyis more-likely-than-not that the tax postiavill be sustained upon examination by taxing
authorities, based on the technical merits of t&tipn. The tax benefits recognized in the finahstatements from such a position are
measured based on the largest benefit that hasategthan 50% likelihood of being realized upaimate settlement. The guidance on
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes alsor@sgkes deecognition, classification, interest and penaltiesncome taxes, and accountin
interim periods. To the extent that interest anagtées are assessed by taxing authorities on adgrpayment of income taxes, such amounts
are accrued and classified as a component of incaxnexpense.

Fair value of financial instruments: The carrying amounts of cash, accounts recthatid accounts payable approximate fair value
because of the short maturity of these items. Hng/img value of the long-term debt approximatésyvalue because this instrument bears
interest at a variable rate and is at terms cugrew@ilable to the Company. The fair value of tlegivative financial instrument is the estimatec
amount the Company would pay to terminate the ésterate swap agreement at the reporting dategdkio account current interest rates anc
the creditworthiness of the counterparty for aretaad creditworthiness of the Company for a ligbil

Generally accepted accounting principleal#ish a framework for measuring fair value anganded disclosures about fair value
measurements. This guidance enables the readee &ihaincial statements to assess the inputs osgelvelop those measurements by
establishing a hierarchy for ranking the qualitd aeliability of the information used to determifadr values. Under this guidance, assets and
liabilities carried at fair value must be clasdifiend disclosed in one of the following three catess:

Level 1—inputs to the valuation methodology aredjusted quoted prices for identical assets orlligds in active markets that
are accessible at the measurement date.

Level 2—inputs to the valuation methodology inclupimted prices in markets that are not active otepliprices for similar
assets and liabilities in active markets, and ispluat are observable for the asset or liabilityree directly or indirectly, for
substantially the full term of the financial ingmant.

Level 3—inputs to the valuation methodology arehs®vable, reflecting the entity's own assumptasut assumptions
market participants would use in pricing the assdiability.
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The categorization of an asset or liabilthin the valuation hierarchy is based upon thedst level of input that is significant to therfai
value measurement. Valuation techniques used mem@ximize the use of observable inputs and mirerttiz use of unobservable inputs.

Fair value of the Company's derivative fiicial instruments are measured at fair value acarring basis and derived using valuation
models that take into account the contract terroh a8 maturity dates, interest rate yield curves Qompany's creditworthiness as well as tha
of the counterparty and other data. The data sewrikzed in these valuation models that are $iggt to the fair value measurement are
Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. We did not Bany derivative financial instruments outstandih@ecember 31, 2013.

The Company's programming rights and gothéie classified as Level 3 in the fair value hrehy, as they are measured at fair value or
a non-recurring basis and are adjusted to fairevahly when the carrying values exceed their faiugs. For the years ended December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011 there were no adjustmentsrtodiue.

Recent accounting pronouncements: In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 20134htpme Taxes (Topic 740): Presentation of an
Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating Gassyforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Cred&r@/forward Exists This ASU
clarifies guidance on the financial statement pr&g@n of an unrecognized tax benefit when a petrating loss carryforward, a similar tax
loss, or a tax credit carryforward exists. The atmeents in this ASU are effective for fiscal yeansd interim periods within those years,
beginning after December 15, 2013. We are currehiuating the expected effects of this ASU; hasvewe do not anticipate that our
adoption of this ASU will result in a material clygnin our financial statement presentation.

In January 2013, the FASB issued ASU Nd.3201,Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Clarifying the ScopBistlosures about Offsetting
Assets and LiabilitiesASU No. 2013-01 clarifies that ordinary trade reebies and receivables are not in the scope of ASIL2011-11,
Balance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about QffggAssets and Liabilitie'Specifically, ASU No. 2011-11 applies only to datives,
repurchase agreements and reverse purchase agtsgamehsecurities borrowing and securities lentliagsactions that are either offset in
accordance with specific criteria contained inf#B Accounting Standards Codificationsubject to a master netting arrangement or aimil
agreement. Entities were required to apply the amemts in ASU No. 2013-01 for fiscal years begigram or after January 1, 2013, and
interim periods within those annual periods. Anitgnwas required to provide the required disclosuedrospectively for all periods presented.
The effective date is the same as the effective dBASU No. 2011-11. Effective January 1, 2013 imvplemented this ASU without any
impact to our financial statements.

In February 2013, the FASB issued guidaetated to reporting of Amounts Reclassified OufoEumulated Other Comprehensive
Income. The amendments do not change the currgaireenents for reporting net income or other cormpnsive income in financial
statements. These amendments require an entitptide information about the amounts reclassifiatlal accumulated other comprehensive
income by component. In addition, an entity is iegplito present, either on the face of the stat¢mvbnre net income is presented or in the
notes, significant amounts reclassified out of amglated other comprehensive income by the respelitie items of net income but only if the
amount reclassified is required under U.S. GAABdaeclassified to net income in its entirety ia #ame reporting period. For other amounts
that are not required under U.S. GAAP to be reifladsin
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their entirety to net income, an entity is requiteadrossreference to other disclosures required under G/AP that provide additional deta
about those amounts. For public entities, the amemds are effective prospectively for fiscal yearsd interim periods within those years,
beginning after December 15, 2012. The Companytaddpis guidance effective January 1, 2013. Thopton did not have a material effect
on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In July 2012, the Financial Accounting Stards Board ("FASB") issued guidance that is ingehih reduce the cost and complexity of
annual impairment test for indefinite-lived intablgi assets other than goodwill by providing ergit@ option to perform a qualitative
assessment to determine whether a quantitativeiimeat test is necessary. The revised standarffieistize for annual and interim impairment
tests performed for fiscal years beginning aftgrt&mber 15, 2012, but early adoption is permitidee Company adopted this guidance
effective January 1, 2013, and the adoption dichawe any impact upon the Company's consolidatethéiial statements as the Company did
not perform a qualitative assessment.

Use of estimates: In preparing these consolidated financial statets, management had to make estimates and assosnptat affecte
the reported amounts of assets and liabilitiestaadlisclosures of contingent assets and liaksliie of the balance sheets date, and the reg
revenues and expenses for the years then enddueStimates are based on historical experiencetued assumptions that are considered
appropriate in the circumstances. However, aceallts could differ from those estimates.

Note 2. Business Combination

On April 4, 2013, the merger by and amoime@tino, WAPA and Azteca providing for the acdpigs of Cinelatino and the combination
of WAPA and Azteca as indirect, wholly-owned sulesits of Hemisphere (the "Transaction") was consated. The primary purpose of the
Transaction was to create a Spanish-language medipany targeting the Hispanic broadcast and dal#eision network business.

The Transaction was accounted for by apglyine acquisition method, which requires the aeirgaition of the accounting acquirer, the
acquisition date, the fair value of the purchasesimteration to be transferred, the fair value skésand liabilities of the acquiree and the
measurement of goodwill. ASC Topic 805-10, "Busn€®mbinations—Overall" ("ASC 805-10") providesttimidentifying the acquiring
entity in a business combination effected primattiipough an exchange of equity interests, the aegis usually the entity that issues equity
interests but all pertinent facts and circumstameest be considered in determining the acquirdne©Opertinent facts and circumstances to
consider include the relative voting rights of #ieareholders of the constituent companies in thabared entity, the composition of the board
of directors and senior management of the combioedpany, the relative size of each company antktimes of the exchange of equity
interests in the Transaction, including paymerarmf premium. Although Hemisphere issued the equtgrests in the Transaction, since it is a
new entity formed solely to issue these equityrggts to effect the Transaction it would not besidered the acquirer and one of the
combining entities that existed
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before the transaction must be identified as tlygiaer. Based on the following, WAPA is the accangtacquirer and predecessor, whose
historical results are the results of Hemisphere:

i. WAPA shareholders obtained approximately 46.4%heffost-Transaction common shares of stock an@®6f3he voting
rights in the combined entities;

ii. WAPA, through its parent company, InterMedia Partndl, L.P. ("InterMedia Partners"), has the alilio elect or appoint or
remove a majority of the members of the governiodybof the combined entity, as they representdivihe nine directors on
the combined entity board of directors, includihg Chief Executive Officer; and

iii. WAPA's historical revenues represent approxima@lp% of the total revenues of the combined estitie

As WAPA is the accounting acquirer (andalegcquiree), the Transaction is considered to tewerse acquisition. Since WAPA issued nc
consideration in the Transaction, unless the falue of accounting acquirees' equity interestsvaee reliably measurable, the fair value of the
consideration transferred by WAPA would be basethemumber of shares WAPA would have had to issggve owners of the other entities
in the transaction the same percentage ownersliieinombined entities that results from the Tratisa. In this situation, since Azteca's
shares were publicly traded and they are one ofdahgbining entities in this Transaction, the fatue of those shares are considered to be
more reliably measurable than the fair value of \lWAsPshares and therefore were used to determiniithealue of the consideration
transferred for the acquisition of Cinelatino, whis the other operating entity involved in thisafsaction.

Total consideration transferred by WAPAd@nting acquirer) to Cinelatino (accounting aceejrwas $129.4 million based on: (i) cash
consideration of $3.8 million (funded from casht@nd), plus (ii) 12,567,538 shares with a fair eabfi $128.8 million based on the Compa
opening share price of $10.25 per share on thefdéteving the consummation of the Transactiondach share of the Company's common
stock to be received by Cinelatino stockholderthanTransaction, (iii) less contingently returnatdssideration with a fair value of
$3.2 million. The $3.2 million represents the diffiece between the fair value of $11.7 million df4R,504 shares of Hemisphere Class B
common stock that are subject to forfeiture inakient the closing market price of Hemisphere Chassmmon stock does not equal or excee
$12.50 and $15.00 for any twenty trading days wittileast one 30-day trading period (within 36 therof the date of the Transaction) and
the estimated fair value of $8.5 million of thebar®s using a Monte Carlo simulation model. Subsegio the consummation of the
Transaction, 571,252 shares, with fair value o2$iillion, have achieved the $12.50 trading pricerao longer subject to forfeiture and are
included in additional paid-in capital. Significaagsumptions utilized in the Monte Carlo simulatiodel include:

. Stock Price: $10.25
. Volatility: 32.5%

. Risk-Free Rate: 0.69%
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The following table summarizes the estirdd#gr values of the assets acquired and liabsliiesumed in the acquisition of Cinelatino
(amounts in thousands

Cash $ 12,86
Accounts receivabl 4,05:
Programming right 4,46(
Prepaid expenses and other as 94C
Property and equipment, r 21
Other asset 33¢€
Intangible ass—affiliate agreement 37,90(
Current liabilities (6,277)
Deferred tax liabilities (12,59¢)
Long-term debi (32,099
Fair value of identifiable net assets acqu 9,612
Goodwill 119,81.
Total $ 129,42

The estimated fair values of Cinelatindfgiate agreements of $37.9 million, was deterntinesing a discounted cash flow method basec
on expected renewal rates utilizing a 10% discoatet These intangible assets will be amortized straight-line basis over 6 years.

The accounts receivable acquired haverafile of $4.1 million and all contractual recdiles are expected to be collected.

During the three months ended Decembe2@13, the Company finalized its acquisition accogitAs a result, a deferred tax asset
related to tax goodwill recognized in the previagguisition of Cinelatino in 2007 was reversedhia dpening balance sheet, resulting in an
increase in goodwill of $14.3 million.

Goodwill of $119.8 million is the excesstbé net consideration transferred over the fduevaf the identifiable net assets acquired, and
primarily represents the benefits the Company especrealize from the acquisition. The goodwik@siated with the Transaction is not
deductible for tax purposes.
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The number of shares of stock of the Comipssued and outstanding immediately following ¢basummation of the Transaction is
summarized as follow@mounts in thousands

Number of
Shares
Azteca public shares outstanding prior to the Taiatisn 10,00(
Azteca founder shares( 2,50(
Total Azteca shares outstanding prior to the Tretisa 12,50(
Less: Shareholders of Azteca public shares rede (1,259
Less: Azteca founder shares cance (250)
Shares issued to WAPA member 20,43:
Shares issued to Cinelatino stockholder 12,56¢
Total shares outstanding at closing, April 4, 2 43,99

(1) Includes 985,294 shares of Hemisphere Class A comstazk which are subject to forfeiture in the evbe
market price of Hemisphere Class A common stocls cha¢ meet certain levels.

(2) Includes 1,857,496 shares of Hemisphere @asmmmon stock, which were issued in the Transadiip
Hemisphere that are subject to forfeiture in thentthe market price of Hemisphere Class A comntacksdoes
not meet certain levels.

(3) Includes 1,142,504 shares of Hemisphere Class Braomstock, which were issued in the Transaction by

Hemisphere that are subject to forfeiture in thentthe market price of Hemisphere Class A comntacksdoes
not meet certain level

The cash flows related to the Transactiensammarized as followi@mounts in thousands

Amount

Cash in trust at Aztec $ 100,52(
Cash on hand at Cinelatil 12,86"
Less: Redemption of Azteca public she (12,657)
Less: Cash consideration paid to Azteca warrarders (7,339
Less: Cash consideration paid to WAPA member anel@iino

stockholder: (5,000
Less: Payment of Azteca fees and expe (5,967
Total transaction proceeds at closing, April 4,2 $ 82,43
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Pro Forma Informatior

The following table sets forth the unaudipeo forma results of operations assuming thafla@saction occurred on January 1, 2012
(amounts in thousands

Pro Forma
2013 2012

Net revenue 92,10¢ $ 95,00¢
Operating Expense
Cost of revenue 35,00« 37,54"
Selling, general and administrati 19,44( 18,98:
Depreciation and amortizatic 10,34: 10,04¢
Loss (gain) on disposition of ass 19¢ (D

Total operating expens 64,98¢ 66,57
Operating incom: $ 27,12: $ 28,42¢

The unaudited pro forma results of operetiset forth above include the operating resultSinélatino as if the acquisition occurred on
January 1, 2012, and the amortization of intangibleated as a result of the Transaction, and @eslall transaction related fees and expense
non+tecurring expenses (primarily a $3.8 million chaagea result of the termination of a certain seragreement with MVS which is recorc
within selling, general and administrative experieghe consolidated statement of operations),siock-based compensation expense.
Additionally, the 2012 pro forma results do noteef corporate overhead and public company cos$ts.dJompany incurred $5.7 million of
expenses related to the Transaction, and the pgdiuisition of Media World, LLC (see Note 13),iethis recorded within operating
expenses in other expenses in the consolidatezistat of operations.

Note 3. Related Party Transactions
The Company has various agreements with ¥ ®llows:

. An agreement through August 1, 2017 pursuant te¢lviVS provides Cinelatino with satellite and sugis®rvices including
origination, uplinking and satellite delivery ofavweeds of Cinelatino's channel (for U.S. and L&timerica), master control and
monitoring, dubbing, subtitling and close captiapiand other support services (the "Satellite angp8rt Services Agreement
The annual fee for the services is approximately $2llion. Total expenses incurred were $1.6 milli$0 and $0 for the years
ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respsagctarad are included in cost of revenues.

. A ten-year master license agreement through July 2@hich grants MVS the non-exclusive right (exojth respect to pre-
existing distribution arrangements between MVS #irdi party distributors that are effective at time of the consummation of
the Transaction) to duplicate, distribute and eitl@inelatino's service via cable, satellite ordny other means in Latin
America and in Mexico to the extent that Mexicatdiition is not owned by MVS. Pursuant to the agnent, Cinelatino
receives revenue net of MVS's distribution feesictvlis presently equal to 13.5% of all license feelected from distributors
Latin America and Mexico. Total
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revenues recognized were $ 2.7 million, $0 andoB@He years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and B&Hdectively.

. A six-year affiliation agreement through Augs®017 for the distribution and exhibition of Claino's programming service
through Dish Mexico (dba Commercializadora de Feecias Satelitales, S de R.L. de C.V.), an MV Siafé that transmits
television programming services throughout MexiBatal revenues recognized were $1.3 million, $0 $ddior the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 respectively.

. A distribution agreement that gave MVS the exula right to negotiate the terms of the distribntisub-distribution and
exhibition of Cinelatino throughout the United $s&bf America. The agreement stipulated a disiobute of 13.5% of the
revenue received from all multiple system operatdon consummation of the Transaction on Apr@13, the agreement w
terminated effective January 1, 2013. In considemegbr such termination, the Company made a casimgnt to MVS in an
amount equal to $3.8 million, which is reflecteds#lling, general and administrative expensesNgge 2.

. In November 2013, Cine Latino licensed six mevimm MVS. The agreement granted Cinelatino certable television and
free video on demand rights in the United Statsderritories, possessions, and commonwealth&ifimg Puerto Rico), and
Latin America (excluding Brazil). Expenses incurtedler this agreement are included in selling, ggrasd administrative
expenses and amounted to $18,097 for the year édeleeimber 31, 2013. At December 31, 2013, $72 4% luded in
programming rights related to this agreement.

Amounts due from MVS pursuant to the agreets noted above, net of an allowance for doubifabunts, amounted to $ 2.1 million and
$0 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectivelyaemdemitted monthly. Amounts due to MVS pursuarthe agreements noted above
amounted to $0.5 million and $0 at December 313241d 2012, respectively, and are remitted monthly.

We entered into a three-year consultingegpent effective April 9, 2013 with James M. McNama member of the Company's board o
directors, to provide the development, productiod maintenance of programming, affiliate relatiadsntification and negotiation of carriage
opportunities, and the development, identificatml negotiation of new business initiatives inahgdsponsorship, new channels, direct-to-
consumer programs and other interactive initiatiagr to that, Cinelatino entered into a conggltagreement with an entity owned by Jame:
M. McNamara. Total expenses incurred under thesgeatents are included in selling, general and aidirétive expenses and amounted to
$0.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2@kBounts due this related party at December 31, 2042 $0.

The Company also entered into programmgrgements with an entity owned by James M. McNarfarthe distribution of three
specific movie titles. Expenses incurred under éigieement are included in selling, general andradtrative expenses in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations and amotat®d, 850, $0 and $0 for the years ended Decenthe2® 3, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
At December 31, 2013 and 2012, $0.1 million andr&8pectively, is included in other assets in tt@mpanying consolidated balance sheets
as prepaid programming related to these agreements.
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During 2013, Cinelatino engaged Pantelmadsist Cinelatino in the theatrical distributafrNosotros Los Nobles, a feature film licensed
by Cinetino, in the United States. Pantelion isuali® made up of several organizations, includiagamax Films, LLC ("Panamax"), Lions
Gate and Grupo Televisa. Panamax is owned by Jsfolamara, who is also the Chairman of Pantelione@itino agreed to pay to Pantelion
in connection with their services no more than ¥2d all Cinelatino's "rentals" (boaffice proceeds earned by Cinetino during Nososlras
Nobles' theatrical run) and reimbursable experBasl expenses incurred are included in cost oémees in the accompanying consolidz
statements of operations and amounted to $0.3omilor the year ended December 31, 2013. Amourgdduntelion at December 31, 2013
totaled $0.2 million.

In March 2011, WAPA entered into an agreetwéth InterMedia Partners VII, L.P., to provideamagement services, including strategic
planning, assistance with licensing of programnrigbts, and participation in distribution negottats with cable and satellite operators (the
"Management Services Fee"). The Management Serkieess payable so long as no default shall haweroed or would result therefrom.
Pursuant to the loan agreement, the payment dfltreagement Services Fee is expressly subordindtguaror in right of payment and
exercise of remedies to the payment in full o \MAPA term loan. Total expenses for management sesvidmounted to $0.6 million in eacl
the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, rasgectUpon consummation of the Transaction on Mri2013, this agreement was
terminated retroactively to January 1, 2013 anéxpmenses for management services were incurréekipegar ended December 31, 2013.

We entered into a services agreement efeeéipril 4, 2013 with InterMedia Advisors, LLC (MA"), which has officers, directors and
stockholders in common with the Company, to prowdevices including, without limitation, office sy operational support and employees
acting in a consulting capacity. Prior to that, @@mpany reimbursed IMA for payments made on the@my's behalf for similar services.
Amounts due to this related party amounted to ¥EBat December 31, 2013. Such expenses are incindgtling, general and administrative
expenses and amounted to $0.1 million for the gaded December 31, 2013.

Note 4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment at December 31, 2083012 consists of the followiigmounts in thousands

2013 2012
Land and improvemen $ 8,722 $ 8,72
Building 6,821 6,73¢
Equipment 21,88( 21,10¢
Towers 5,26( 5,117

42,69: 41,68(
Less: accumulated depreciati (19,587) (16,08()

23,11( 25,60(
Equipment installations in progre 1,56¢ 1,261

$ 24,67 $ 26,86
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Depreciation expense was $3.8 million, $8ilion and $3.2 million for the years ended Detem31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively
Note 5. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets consisheffiollowing at December 31, 2013 and 20HE2npunts in thousands

December 31

2013 2012
Broadcast licens $ 41,35¢ $ 41,35¢
Goodwill 130,79 10,98
Other intangible: 34,61( 1,67¢
Total intangible asse $ 206,76( $ 54,01°

A summary of changes in the Company's gdlbdnd other indefinite lived intangible assets,anet basis, for the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012 is as follgarmounts in thousands

Net Balance ai Net Balance at

December 31, 2012 Additions Impairment December 31, 2013

Broadcast licens $ 41.35¢ $ — 3 — % 41,35¢

Goodwill 10,98: 119,81: — 130,79:

Other intangible: 70C — — 70C
Total indefinite-lived intangible

asset: $ 53,03¢ $ 119,81: $ — $ 172,85(

Net Balance at Net Balance at

December 31, 2011 Additions Impairment December 31, 2012

Broadcast licens $ 41,35¢ $ — 3 — 3 41,35¢

Goodwill 10,98: — — 10,98:

Other intangible: 70C — — 70C
Total indefinite-lived intangible

asset: $ 53,03¢ $ — $ — $ 53,03¢

A summary of the changes in the Compartyisrcamortizable intangible assets for the yeadedmecember 31, 2013 and 2012 is as
follows (amounts in thousands

Balance at Net Balance at
December 31, 201 Additions Amortization December 31, 201
Affiliate relationships $ 97¢ $ 37,90C $ (4,96¢) $ 33,91(
Balance at Balance at
December 31, 2011 Additions Amortization December 31, 2012
Affiliate relationships $ 1,20¢ $ — 3 (230) $ 97¢
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The aggregate amortization expense of ttrafany's amortizable intangible assets was $5)®mi50.2 million and $0.2 million for the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011. ighted average remaining amortization periodisygars at December 31, 20.

Future estimated amortization expense fslasvs (amounts in thousands):

Year Ending December 31 Amount
2014 $ 6,547
2015 6,547
2016 6,54
2017 6,37
2018 6,31¢
2019 and thereafte 1,57¢
$ 33,9

Note 6. Income Taxes

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 20d2011, income tax expense is composed of tlwviog (amounts in thousands

2013 2012 2011
Current income tax expen $ 2,101 $ 4,566 $ 1,17¢
Deferred income tax expen 1,02¢ 1,71¢ 2,80¢

$ 3,13C $ 6,28: $ 3,984

Current tax expense for the years ende@mbber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 includes $1.9 m|l§36,845 and $74,929 of foreign
withholding tax, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2013, a0d2011, the Company's income tax expense aectigff tax rates were as follows:

2013 2012 2011
Pre-tax book incom—US Only 34.0% 34.0% 34.0(%
Pre-tax book incom—PR Only -3.85%  24.7% —
Permanent item -164.6% 0.3% 0.1%%
Return to provision tri-ups 27.9% -0.11% —
Foreign rate differentic -7.4% -3.81% —
Branch tax benefit and foreign tax crec 90.2% -16.9% —
Current/deferre—rate difference 0.85% 0.43% —
Change in valuation allowan: -212.6% — —
Deferred foreign tax credit offs -20.3% -1.55% —
State rate chang 146.99% — —
Federal rate chang -152.8% -0.8€% —

-261.8%  36.1% 34.12%
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For the year ended December 31, 2013 te¢hnesi that significantly affect the differences bedw the tax provision calculated at the
statutory federal income tax rate and the actuab&mefit recorded relate to permanent differemeksgted to non-deductible expenses in
conjunction with the Transaction, increases in $arePuerto Rico that will not generate offsettin. foreign tax credits and the change in the
valuation allowance. For the years ended Decembe2@®L2 and 2011, the items that significantly effd the differences between the tax
provision calculated at the statutory federal inedax rate and the actual tax benefit recordede Wwereases in taxes in Puerto Rico that will
not generate offsetting U.S. foreign tax creditd parmanent differences for meals and entertainmespectively. The Company may be
audited by federal, state and local tax authoria@sl from time to time these audits could resufirioposed assessments. The Company has
open tax years from 2008 forward for federal amtiestax purposes. The Company believes approppiatésions for all outstanding issues
have been made for all jurisdictions and all opearsy.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net féects of temporary differences between the cag@mounts of assets and liabilities calculated
for financial reporting purposes and the amounksutated for preparing its income tax returns in@dance with tax regulations and the net
tax effects of operating loss and tax credits edrforward. Net deferred tax assets consist ofdt@ving components as of December 31,
2013 and 2012amounts in thousands

2013 2012
Deferred tax asset

Allowances for doubtful accoun $ 884 $ 10:
Interest rate swap agreem — 87
Deferred branch tax bene 17,15¢ 13,55:
Deferred incom 48 58
Accrued expense 3,052 2,88¢
Foreign tax credi 3,05¢ 1,322
Stock compensatio 1,962 —
Intangibles 2,281 1,49¢

28,44t 19,50:
Less: valuation allowanc (2,519 —

25,93: 19,50:

Deferred tax liabilties

Prepaid expenst (16€) (85)
Intangibles (30,600 (12,116
Property and equipme (4,215 (3,389
Amortization expens (1,049 —
Other liabilities (82 —
Total deferred tax liabilitie (36,106 (15,590

$ (10,179 $ 3,91:
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The deferred tax amounts mentioned above haen classified on the accompanying consolidadééghce sheets at December 31, 2013
and 2012 as followsgmounts in thousands

2013 2012
Current assel $ — $ 3,04¢
Noncurrent asse — 86:
$ — $ 3,91
Current liabilities $ 8,13t $ —
Noncurrent liabilities 2,04( —
$ 10,17 $ —

The realization of deferred tax assets dép@n the generation of sufficient taxable incarhthe appropriate character and in the
appropriate taxing jurisdiction during the futureripds in which the related temporary differencesdme deductible. A valuation allowance is
provided to reduce such deferred tax assets to mtmiowre likely than not to be ultimately realiz€dr the year ended December 31, 2013
Company has provided a valuation allowance of ##lkon on the deferred tax assets to reduce tte somount that management believes
be ultimately realized, due to the change in ther@uRico corporate tax rate from 30% to 39% ineJ2@13. For the year ended December 31
2012, the Company believed it was more likely thanhthat it will realize the benefits of all of gedeductible differences and did not provi
valuation allowance.

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Combasyforeign tax credit carryforwards for U.S. fadqurposes totaling $3.1 million and
$1.3 million, respectively, which expire during thears 2018 through 2023.

Upon audit, taxing authorities may prohthi¢ realization of all or part of an uncertain pmsition. While the Company has no history of
tax audits, the Company regularly assesses themetof potential examinations in each of the tabsglictions when determining the adequ
of the amount of unrecognized tax benefit recordéd Company recognizes interest and penaltietetkta uncertain tax positions, if any, in
income tax expense. As of December 31, 2013 and,2B& Company has accrued no uncertain tax posiiserves or related interest and
penalties.

Note 7. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt as of December 31, 20132012 consists of the followingafmounts in thousands

2013 2012
Senior Notes due March 20 $ — $ 57,01
Senior Notes due July 20: 172,48: —
Less: Current portio (1,750 (4,60¢)

$ 170,73. $ 52,40:

Senior Notes due July 2020: On July 30, 2013 certain of our subsidiarie®u into a credit agreement providing for a $Q7billion
senior secured term loan B facility (the "Term Ldacility")
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which matures on July 30, 2020 The Term Loan Rgdliso provides an uncommitted accordion optibe (incremental Facility") allowing
for additional borrowings under the Term Loan Facilip to an aggregate principal amount equal)t$ZD million plus (ii) an additional
amount up to 4.0x 1st lien net leverage. The obbga under the Term Loan Facility are guaranteetlBl TV, LLC, a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and all of the Compaayisting and future subsidiaries (subject to ¢ertxceptions in the case of immaterial
subsidiaries). The Term Loan Facility is securealiyst-priority perfected security interest irbstantially all of the assets of the Company.
Pricing on the Term Loan Facility was set at LIBPIRs 500 basis points (with a LIBOR floor of 1.25%@sulting in an effective interest rate
6.25%, and 1.0% of original issue discount ("OIDe OID of $1.7 million, net of accumulated amzation of $0.1 million at December 31,
2013, is recorded as a reduction to the principadunt of the Term Loan Facility outstanding and Wé amortized as a component of interest
expense over the term of the Term Loan Facilitye Ploceeds of the loan were used to repay in iutidstanding debt obligations at the
Company's subsidiaries (the Senior Notes due M20dié and June 2017), to pay fees and expensedaiesogith the financing, and for
general corporate purposes including potentialreuicquisitions. The Company recorded $3.3 milibdebt issue costs associated with the
Term Loan Facility, net of accumulated amortizatiét$0.2 million at December 31, 2013.

In connection with the repayment of theiSeNotes due March 2016 and June 2017, the Comwaoie off unamortized debt issuance
costs of $1.6 million, which is recorded as a losghe early extinguishment of debt in the accorgpanconsolidated statements of operati

The Term Loan Facility principal payments payable on quarterly due dates commencing Ségted®, 2013 and a final installment on
July 30, 2020.

In addition, pursuant to the terms of tlegri Loan Facility, within 90 days after the endeath fiscal year (commencing with the fiscal
year ending December 31, 2014), the Borrowersaeired to make a prepayment of the loan prindgipah amount equal to 50% of t
excess cash flow of the most recently completezhfigear. Excess cash flow is generally definededsncome plus depreciation and
amortization expense, less mandatory prepaymertederm loan, interest charges, income taxesapial expenditures, and adjusted for the
change in working capital. The percentage of theess cash flow used to determine the amount girifygayment of the loan declines from
50% to 25% and again to 0% at lower leverage ratios

Senior Notes due March 2016: On March 31, 2011, Espafiol and WAPA PR, cdilety referred to in this note as the "Borrowers",
entered into a loan agreement that included a $&éli@n term loan and a $10.0 million revolvingediit line with a maturity of March 31,
2016. The loan was guaranteed by WAPA, the direlttihg company of Esparfiol and WAPA PR, and its Wholvned subsidiaries other than
the Borrowers and secured by a first-priority petéd lien on all capital stock of and equity instsein each of the Borrowers and all other
property and assets (tangible and intangible) @Bbrrowers, whenever acquired and wherever locatdiject to certain exceptions. The loan
was repaid in full in connection with the closinigtloe Term Loan Facility as discussed above. Am®ontstanding under the term loan at
December 31, 2013 and 2012 were $0 and $57.0 miliepectively.
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There was an annual commitment fee of 0,4 quarterly, on the revolving credit line foe unfunded amounts calculated daily as
amount by which the aggregate revolving credit limgét exceeds the aggregate outstanding unpaittimél amount. The commitment fees
were $37,192, $75,000 and $60,000 for the yearsceBecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectiVabyrevolving credit line was
terminated on July 30, 2013 in connection withdlusing of the Term Loan Facility. At December 3013 and 2012, there were no
outstanding balances due under the revolving coeditmitment.

On April 13, 2011, WAPA entered into a tymar interest rate swap agreement with an initélomal amount of $33.0 million to receive
interest at a variable rate equal to three (3) mOhtBOR and to pay interest at a fixed rate o#48%. The interest rate swap agreement ex
on April 15, 2013. At December 31, 2013 and 20hB, interest rate swap agreement had a fair vél$® and $0.1 million, respectively, anc
recognized in other accrued expenses on the cdasedi balance sheets. The Company recognized@uilifinancing income (expense) of
$0.1 million, $0.1 million and ($0.2 million) fohe years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2Ghkatévely, related to the change in the
fair value of the interest rate swap agreementclvis included in interest expense, net on theaaeted statements of operations.

Senior Notes due June 2017: In connection with the Transaction, describellote 2, the Company assumed the outstanding dmlzfi
Cinelatino's credit facility, in the amount of $B0nillion. The loan was repaid in full in connectiwith the closing of the Term Loan Facility
on July 30, 2013 as discussed above.

The carrying value of the long-term delpragimates fair value at December 31, 2013 and 20k& estimated fair value of our variable-
rate debt is derived from quoted market pricesnogpendent dealers (Level 2 in the fair value hodnaunder ASC 82(air Value
Measurements and Disclosur).

Following are maturities of long-term dedtt December 31, 2013aounts in thousands

Year Ending December 31

2014 $ 1,75(
2015 1,75(
2016 1,75(
2017 1,75(
2018 and thereafte 167,12!

$ 174,12¢

Note 8. Stockholders' Equity
Capitalization

On April 4, 2013, the merger by and amomgeatino, WAPA and Azteca providing for the acdigsm of Cinelatino and the combination
of WAPA and Azteca as indirect, wholly-owned sulesits of Hemisphere (the "Transaction") was consated.

In connection with the Transaction (i) tiiders of Cinelatino common stock and the holdenembership interests in WAPA (the
"Cinelatino/WAPA Investors") surrendered their resiive
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interests and received an aggregate of 33,000/@0@s of Hemisphere Class B common stock, par @001 ("Class B common stock"), a
cash payment equal to an aggregate of $5.0 milind,purchased 2,333,334 warrants from Azteca fensnid purchase Hemisphere Class A
common stock, par value $0.0001 (such warrantsytaigs” and such stock, "Class A common stocki)e@ch share of Azteca common st
was automatically converted into one share of CAasemmon stock; (iii) each Amended Azteca Warrastdefined below, was automatically
converted into an equal number of Warrants; andifimediately prior to the consummation of the Baation, Azteca Acquisition

Holdings, LLC and certain existing shareholdersnfeca contributed 250,000 shares of Azteca comsback to Azteca for cancellation and
agreed to subject an additional 250,000 sharedass@\ common stock to certain forfeiture provisigim addition to 735,294 shares of Clas
common stock already subject to forfeiture undergxisting agreements) if the market price of shaféeHemisphere Class A common stock
does not reach certain levels. Following the comsation of the Transaction, there were 10,991,1@0eshof Class A stock outstanding and
33,000,000 shares of Hemisphere Class B stockamdlistg. Subsequent to the Transaction, an additR5300 shares of Class A restricted
stock were issued. From time to time the Compamyissued Class A common stock to certain membarsaofigement and board of directors
as equity compensation, subject to time and pedage vesting conditions, as discussed below.

Voting

Class B common stock votes on a 10 to Islveith the Class A common stock, which means ¢agh share of Class B common stock
have 10 votes and each share of Class A commok witdthave 1 vote.

Equity Incentive Plans

An aggregate of 4.0 million shares of olags A common stock were authorized for issuanckeuthe terms of the Hemisphere Media
Group, Inc. 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (the "20Xfuly Incentive Plan™). During the year ended Deben81, 2013, 1.2 million shares of
restricted Class A common stock and 1.7 milliori@y to purchase shares of Class A common stock awarded under the Plan. At
December 31, 2013, 1.1 million shares remainedaaifor issuance of stock options or other stbaked awards under our Equity Incentive
Plan (including shares of restricted Class A comstogk surrendered to the Company in payment @stagquired to be withheld in respect of
vested shares of restricted Class A common stodlagailable for issuance). The expiration datehef2013 Equity Incentive Plan, on and
which date no awards may be granted, is April 2320he Company's board of directors administee2013 Equity Incentive Plan, and has
the sole and plenary authority to, among othergtiii) designate participants; (ii) determine tyy@e, size, and terms and conditions of award
to be granted; (iii) determine the method by whachaward may be settled, exercised, canceledjtifeor suspended.

The Company's time-based restricted stackds and option awards generally vest in threalegpunual installments beginning on the
first anniversary of the grant date, subject togtentee's continued employment or service withQbmpany. The Company's event- based
restricted stock awards and option awards generally either upon the Company's Class A commork gtttaining a $12.50 or $15.00 closing
price per share, as quoted on the NASDAQ Globakktaon at least 10 trading days, subject to thatge's continued employment or service
with the Company. At December 31, 2013, 250,000i0¢sd stock awards and 275,000 options have hee$12.50 threshold
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and are fully vested. Other event-based restristeck awards granted to certain members of ourdwast on the day preceding the
Company's 2014 annual shareholder meeting.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation expense relatsih¢é options and restricted stock was $7.2 nmijli0 and $0 for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectivelfpesember 31, 2013, there was $4.8 million of totakcognized compensation cost reli
to non-vested stock options, which is expectecetogzognized over weighted-average period of 3atsyeét December 31, 2013, there was
$6.7 million of total unrecognized compensationtecetated to non-vested restricted stock, whiokxisected to be recognized over a weighted
average period of 2.3 years.

Stock Options

The fair value of stock options grantedstimated at the date of grant using the Black-esharicing model for time-based options and
the Monte Carlo simulation model for event-basetiomg. The expected term of options granted isvéerusing the simplified method under
ASC 718-10-S99-1/SEC Topic 14.D for "plain vanil@tions and the Monte Carlo simulation for eveasdd options. Expected volatility is
based on the historical volatility of the Comparggsnpetitors given its lack of trading history. Tiek-free interest rate is based on the U.S.
Treasury yield for a period consistent with theeptpd term of the option in effect at the timelaf grant. The Company has estimated
forfeitures of 1.5%, as the awards are to managefoewhich the Company expects lower turnover, had assumed no dividend yield, as
dividends have never been paid to stock or optaddrs and will not be paid for the foreseeablarfeit

Black-Scholes Option Valuation Assumption: 2013
Risk-free interest rat .93%- 2.03%
Dividend yield —
Volatility 34.4%- 36.7%
Weightec-average expected term (yee 6.C
Monte Carlo Option Valuation Assumptions 2013
Risk-free interest rat 1.78%
Dividend yield —
Volatility 36.7%
Weightec-average expected term (yee 5.4-5.¢
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The following table summarizes stock optativity for the year ended December 31, 2(8ares in thousands)

Weighted-
average
Weighted- remaining Aggregate
Number of average exercise  contractual intrinsic
shares price term value
Outstanding at January 1
2013 — — —
Grantec 1,73C $ 11.2( 9.2 $ 1,15i
Exercisec — — — —
Forfeited — — — —
Expired — — — —
Outstanding at
December 31, 201 1,73C $ 11.2C 9.2 $ 1,15]
Exercisable at
December 31, 201 27 ¢ 10.2( 9.2 $ 45¢

The weighted average grant date fair vafuaptions granted for the year ended Decembe2@13 was $4.21. At December 31, 2013,
300,000 options granted are unvested, event-bgseuhs.

Restricted Stock

Certain employees and directors have beamded restricted stock under the 2013 Equity IticerPlan. The time-based restricted stock
grants vest primarily over a period of three yeds fair value and expected term of eveased restricted stock grants is estimated atréd
date using the Monte Carlo simulation model.

Monte Carlo Restricted Stock Valuation Assumptions 2013

Risk-free interest rat 0.52%
Dividend yield —
Volatility 36.70%
Weightec-average expected term (yee 0.6-1.2

The following table summarizes restrictbdre activity for the year ended December 31, ZGt@ares in thousands

Number of Weighted-average

shares grant date fair value
Outstanding at January 1, 20 — —
Granted 1,19t $ 9.81
Vested (250 8.41
Forfeited — —
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 94t $ 10.1¢

At December 31, 2013, 150,000 shares aficesd stock issued are unvested, event-basedshar
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Warrants

In connection with the capitalization oét@ompany noted above, the Company has issuedriifioh warrants, which qualify as equity
instruments. Each warrant entitles the holder telpase one-half of the number of shares of oursCdasommon stock at a price of $6.00 per
half share. At December 31, 2013, 14.7 million wats were issued and outstanding, which are exdleisnto 7.3 million shares of our
Class A common stock. Warrants are only exercisfbla whole number of shares of common stock ¢indy an even number of warrants n
be exercised at any given time by a registeredenplés a result, a holder must exercise a leastwarrants, at an effective exercise price of
$12.00 per warrant. At the option of the Compar@yQImillion warrants may be called for redemptiprgvided that the last sale price of our
Class A common stock reported has been at leasd@p@r share on each of twenty trading days withénthirtyday period ending on the th
business day prior to the date on which noticeedémption is given. The warrants expire on Apri2@18.

The following table summarizes warrantsvitgtfor the year ended December 31, 2@4Bares in thousands

Weighted-
average
Weighted- remaining Aggregate
Number of average exercise  contractual intrinsic
shares price term value
Outstanding at January 1
2013 — — —
Issuec 7,330 % 12.0C 43 $ —
Exercisec — — — —
Expired — — — —
Outstanding at
December 31, 201 7,33 $ 12.0( 42 $ —

Note 9. Contingencies

The Company is involved in various legdiats, generally related to its operations. Managig@rbelieves, based on advice from legal
counsel, that the outcome of such legal actionksneil adversely affect the financial condition bétCompany.

Note 10. Commitments

The Company has entered into certain rgmtgerty contracts with third parties, which ace@unted for as operating leases. Rental
expense was $0.3 million, $0.2 million and $0.lioml for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2082841, respectively

The Company has certain commitments inolydarious operating leases.
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Future minimum payments for these commitisiand other commitments, primarily programming, @ followgamounts in thousands):

Operating Other

Year Ending December 31 Lease Commitments Total

2014 $ 21€ % 6,481 $ 6,69¢
2015 65 2,74¢ 2,81(
2016 7 1,704 1,711
2017 — 26¢ 26¢
2018 and thereafte — 6 6
Total $ 29C $ 11,20 $ 11,49

Note 11. Retirement Plans

Following is the plan's projected benekitigation for the years ended December 31, 201822hd 2011amounts in thousands

2013 2012 2011

Projected benefit obligatiol
Balance, beginning of the ye $ 2,127 $ 1,807 $ 1,461
Service cos 83 60 46
Interest cos 84 90 84
Actuarial loss (157) 29¢ 142
Benefits paid to participan (23) (12¢) —
Plan amendmer — — 73
Balance, end of ye: $ 2,112 $ 2,127 $ 1,80

At December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, thedd status of the plan was as follovesr(ounts in thousands

2013 2012 2011
Excess of benefit obligation over the value o
plan asset $ (2,119 $ (2,127 $ (1,809
Unrecognized net actuarial ge 472 66€ 38¢
Unrecognized prior service cc 102 122 142
Accrued benefit cos $ (1,53 $ (1,339 $ (1,275

The plan is unfunded. As such, the Compampt required to make annual contributions toptaa.
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At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the amaweisgnized in the consolidated balance sheets elessified as follows &émounts in
thousands):

2013 2012
Accrued benefit cos $ (2,119 $ (2,129)
Accumulated other comprehensive i 57€ 78€
Net amount recognize $ (1,538 $ (1,339

Amounts recorded in accumulated other cetm@nsive loss are reported net of tax.

The benefits expected to be paid in eadh@hext five years and thereafter are as follbamounts in thousands

Year Ending December 31 Amount
2014 $ 40
2015 51
2016 85
2017 124
2018 21C
2019 through 202 80z
$ 1,317

For the years ended December 31, 2013, a0d2011, the following weighted-average ratesswsed:

2013 2012 2011
Discount rate on the benefit obligati 495% 4.05% 5.02%
Rate of employee compensation incre 4.00% 4.00% 4.0(%

Pension expense for the years ended Dec¢e3tb2013, 2012 and 2011, consists of the follgwiamounts in thousands

2013 2012 2011

Service cos $ 83 $ 60 $ 46
Interest cos 84 a0 84
Expected return on plan ass — — —
Recognized actuarial loss (ga — — —
Amortization of prior service co: 19 21 56
Net loss amortizatio 36 21 11

$ 222 $ 192 $ 197

WAPA PR, a 100% owned subsidiary of the @any, makes contributions to the Newspaper Guilerfrational Pension Plan (the "Plan"
or "TNGIPP"), a multiemployer pension plan withlarpyear end of December 31 that provides defiregbfits to certain employees covered
by two collective bargaining agreements (the "CBAwhich expire on July 23, 2015 and June 27, 28d€pectively.
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WAPA PR's contribution rates to the Plan are gdlyedatermined in accordance with the provisionshef CBAS.

The risks in participating in such a plae different from the risks of single-employer gam the following respects:

. Assets contributed to a multiemployer plan bg employer may be used to provide benefits to eyagle of other participating
employer.
. If a participating employer ceases to contributa taultiemployer plan, the unfunded obligationte# plan may be borne by the

remaining participating employer.

Under current law regarding multiemployefided benefit plans, a plan's termination, WAPAsPRIuntary withdrawal, or the mass
withdrawal of all contributing employers from angderfunded multiemployer defined benefit plan woudduire us to make payments to the
plan for our proportionate share of the multiemploplan's unfunded vested liabilities. WAPA PR texived Annual Funding Notices,
Report of Summary Plan Information, Critical StalNtices ("Notices") and a Rehabilitation Plangdafined by the Pension Protection Act of
2006 ("PPA"), from the Plan. The Notices indicdtattthe Plan actuary has certified that the Plam gsitical status, the "Red Zone", as definec
by the PPA, and that a plan of rehabilitation ("&ailitation Plan") was adopted by the TrusteedefRlan ("Trustees") on May 1, 2010. On
May 29, 2010, the Trustees sent WAPA PR a Notideexfuction and Adjustment of Benefits Due to CaitiStatus explaining all changes
adopted under the Rehabilitation Plan, includirggribduction or elimination of benefits referrecago"adjustable benefits." In connection with
the adoption of the Rehabilitation Plan, most ef Bian participating unions and contributing emplsy(including the Newspaper Guild
International and WAPA PR), agreed to one of ttedéslules” of changes as set forth under the Rétadioih Plan. The Company elected the
"preferred schedule" and executed a Memorandungoéément, effective May 27, 2010 (the "MOA") andesgl to the following contribution
rate increases: 3.0% beginning on January 1, 2@i13dditional 3.0% beginning on January 1, 201d;anadditional 3% beginning on
January 1, 2015.

The surcharges and effect of the RehatdditaPlan as described above are not anticipatbate a material effect on the Company's
results of operations. However, in the event otloartributing employers are unable to, or fail teeantheir ongoing funding obligations, the
financial impact on the WAPA PR to contribute tygatan underfunding may be material. In additidra United States multiemployer defined
benefit plan fails to satisfy certain minimum fungirequirements, the Internal Revenue Service mapse a nondeductible excise tax of 5%
on the amount of the accumulated funding deficidiocyhose employers contributing to the fund.

WAPA PR could also be obligated to pay &iddal contributions (known as complete or pasvithdrawal liabilities) due to the unfunded
vested benefits of the Plan, in the event that WAHRwithdrew from the plan during the fiyear period beginning on the effective date ol
MOA. The withdrawal liability (which could be matal) in the event of the foregoing, would equal tb&l lump sum of contributions that
WAPA PR would have been obligated to pay the Riaough the date of withdrawal, under the "defacifteziule” of the Rehabilitation Plan
(5% surcharge in the initial year and 10% for eswtcessive year thereafter the plan is in crigtaius), less any contributions actually paid by
the WAPA PR to the Plan under the "preferred scleetiu
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Further information about the Plan is pnésd in the table belowamounts in thousands

. Expiration
Pension Date of
Protection Funding Improvement WAPA PR's Collective
Act Zone Status Plan/Rehabilitation Plan Contribution Surcharge Bargaining
Pension Fund EIN 2012 Status 2013 2012 2011 Imposed  Agreement:
July 21,
TNGIPP 2015
(Plan 52- June 27,
No. 001) 108266. Red Implementec  $ 144 $ 11 $ 10€ Yes 2016

Note 12. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
(Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)

2013 Quarters Ended(a
March 31 June 30(b) September 3C December 31

Net revenue $ 13,49F § 22,92¢ $ 23,708 $ 25,87¢
Operating (loss) incorr (117 (1,299 4,11( 5,01¢
Net (loss) incomi (52%) (2,42¢) (3,985 2,63¢
(Loss) earnings per shal
Basic $ (52%) % (0.06) $ (0.09) $ 0.0¢
Dilutive $ (525 % (0.06) $ (0.09) $ 0.0¢
2012 Quarters Endec
March 31 June 30 September 3C December 31
Net revenue $ 13,50 $ 17,22¢ $ 17,54: $ 23,09:
Operating incom 2,78¢ 5,451 3,651 8,971
Net income 872 2,651 95¢€ 6,55(
Earnings per shar
Basic $ 87z $ 2651 $ 95¢ $ 6,55(
Dilutive $ 872 $ 2651 $ 95¢ $ 6,55(

(@  On April 4, 2013, the merger by and among CinetatiWAPA and Azteca providing for the combination@helatino,
WAPA and Azteca as indirect wholly-owned subsidiarof Hemisphere (the "Transaction") was consunmunatéhough
Hemisphere issued the equity interests in the Be@titn, since it is a new entity formed solelydsue these equity
securities to effect the Transaction, it would betconsidered the acquirer, and one of the condpimmtities that existed
before the Transaction must be identified as tlygiiaer. Based on the following, WAPA is the accangitacquirer and
predecessor whose historical results are the sefrlHemisphere. The operating results of the imedbusinesses are
included in the Company's consolidated financialeshents as of the date of the Transaction.

(b)  Asdiscussed in Note 1, the Company adjusted pusiyiaeported amount
Note 13. Subsequent Event

On January 22, 2014, the Company entettedaim Asset Purchase Agreement with Media WorldZ (tMedia World"), a Florida limited
liability company, pursuant to which the Company
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acquired the assets of three Spanish-language tedlgsion networks from Media World for approxirely $102.2 million, subject to certain
adjustments, in cash (the "Acquisition"). The thaequired cable networks include (i) PasionesG@htroamerica TV and (iii) TV
Dominicana. The Acquisition is expected to closenmdliately following the close of our first quartér2014.

We are currently in the process of valuimg assets acquired and liabilities assumed ibdilssness combination. Upon the completion of
the valuation analysis, we expect to provide thewms recognized as of the acquisition date formhgr classes of the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed.
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Exhibit 10.9
EXECUTION VERSION

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (the “ Agreemeri) dated as of May 6, 2013, and effective as ofilffar2013, between
Hemisphere Media Group, Inc., a Delaware corpandtiice “ Company), and Alex J. Tolston (* Executivg.

WHEREAS, the Company desires to employ ExecutiveExecutive is willing to serve the Company for gegiod and upo
such other terms and conditions of this Agreememd;

WHEREAS Executive’s agreement to enter into thise®gnent and be bound by the terms hereof, incluttiegestrictive
covenants herein, is a material inducement to hgany’s willingness to grant stock options andrieted stock to Executive and the
Company would not otherwise grant such stock optenmd restricted stock to Executive if Executive bt agree to enter into this Agreement

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agnents, provisions and covenants contained hexethintending to
be legally bound hereby, the parties hereto agestforth below:

1. Term. (a) The term of Executive’s employment undés tkgreement shall commence on a date to be mytuall
agreed by Executive and the Company, but not thter June 17, 2013 (the “ Start D&teand shall continue until April 9, 2016 (theriitial
Expiration Dat€’), provided that on the Initial Expiration Datechaach subsequent anniversary of the Initial ExpineDate, the term of
Executives employment under this Agreement shall be exteadénmatically for one additional year unless @ittty provides written notis
to the other party at least 270 days prior to tiial Expiration Date (or any such anniversaryapplicable) that Executive’s employment
hereunder shall not be so extended (in which caseuEive's employment shall terminate on the Ihiiapiration Date or expiration of the
extended term, as applicable); providdmwever, that Executive’s employment under this Agreenmeay be terminated at any time pursuant
to the provisions of Section 4. The period of tifrean the Start Date through the termination of thgreement and Executive’s employment
hereunder pursuant to its terms is herein refeoes the “ Terni; and the date on which the Term is scheduledfre (i.e., the Initial
Expiration Date or the scheduled expiration oféRtended term, if applicable) is herein referredsdhe “ Expiration Date

(b) Executive agrees and acknowledges that the Compaspo obligation to extend the Term or to continue
Executive’s employment following the Expiration Baand Executive expressly acknowledges that nmiges or understandings to the
contrary have been made or reached. Executiveagiges and acknowledges that, should Executivéhen@ompany choose to continue
Executive’s employment for any period of time feliog the Expiration Date without extending the teshiExecutive’s employment under this
Agreement or entering into a new written employmegreement, Executive’s employment with the Compsrall be “at will”, such that the
Company may terminate Executive’s employment attamg, with or without reason and with or withowutice, and Executive may resign at
any time, with or without reason and with or withowtice.

(c) For purposes of this Agreement, the following terassused herein, shall have the definitions s#t fo
below.

“ Affiliate " means, with respect to any specified Person,cdhgr Person that directly or indirectly, througtewr more
intermediaries, Controls, is Controlled by, or iglar common Control with, such specified Persoayided that, in any event, any business in
which the Company has any direct or indirect ownigrinterest shall be treated as an Affiliate @& @ompany.




“ Change in Control has the meaning set forth in the Plan.

“ Control” (including, with correlative meanings, the tert@ontrolled by” and “under common Control with™)s ased with respect
to any Person, means the direct or indirect pogsess$ the power to direct or cause the directibthe management or policies of such Persor
whether through the ownership of voting securitigscontract or otherwise.

“ Governmental Entity means any national, state, county, local, mumicgy other government or any court of competenisliction,
administrative agency or commission or other goremtal authority or instrumentality.

“ Person” means any individual, firm, corporation, partrigps limited liability company, trust, joint venteirassociation,
Governmental Entity, unincorporated entity or otbetity.

“ Plan” means the Hemisphere Media Group, Inc. 2013 Edaoitentive Plan.

2. Duties and Responsibilities(a) During the Term, Executive agrees to beleyga and devote substantially all of
Executive’s business time and efforts to the Comzard the promotion of its interests and the penforce of Executive’s duties and
responsibilities hereunder as General Counsel amgdfate Secretary, upon the terms and conditibtiiAgreement. Executive shall
perform such lawful duties and responsibilitieglected from time to time by the Board of Direstaf the Company (the_* Boat¥or the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company _(* CEPDthat are customary for a General Counsel angp@Quaitte Secretary of a corporation of the
size and nature of the Company.

(b) During the Term, Executive shall report directlythe CEO or the CEQO’s designee. Executive
acknowledges that Executive’s duties and respditigbishall require Executive to travel on buse&sthe extent necessary to fully perform
Executive’s duties and responsibilities hereundeis anticipated that Executive shall physicdlly on Company premises (or traveling on
Company business) during normal business hourggaradbsent due to vacation, injury, iliness orragipproved leave of absence).

(c) During the Term, Executive shall use Executivieést efforts to faithfully and diligently sernfeetCompan
and shall not act in any capacity that is in cabfivith Executive’s duties and responsibilitieséherder; provided however, Executive may
manage Executive’s personal investments and afiaidsparticipate in non-profit, educational, ctedyie and civic activities, to the extent that
such activities do not interfere with the perforrmaiof Executive’s duties hereunder, and are nobilict with the business interests of the
Company or its Affiliates or otherwise compete vilte Company or its Affiliates. Except as providiedhe immediately preceding sentence,
for the avoidance of doubt, during the Term Exaushall not be permitted to become engaged iertar services for any Person other than
the Company and its Affiliates, and shall not benpted to be a member of the board of directorarof company, in any case without the
consent of the Company (for all purposes underAbigement, any required consent of the Companly lsb@videnced by a duly authorized
resolution of the Board).

3. Compensation and Related Matter) Base Salary During the Term, for all services rendered untesr
Agreement, Executive shall receive an aggregataarase salary (* Base Saldjyat an initial rate of $275,000 (which shall beieased by
5% on each anniversary of April 9, 2013), payabhladcordance with the Company’s applicable paymalttices. Base Salary shall be subject
to review by the Board annually for any furtherrigeeses, but not decreases, deemed necessary or
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appropriate in its sole discretion. ReferencatimAgreement to “ Base Saldrghall be deemed to refer to the most recentlgaiffe annual
base salary rate.

(b) Annual Bonus

() During the Term, subject to Section 4(b), for eaalendar year, Executive shall have the
opportunity to earn an annual bonus (* Annual Bohusased on performance against specified obje¢thauding budgetary or EBITDA-
based) performance criteria_(* Performance G8adstablished by the Board prior to or as sooprasticable following each calendar year (or
within 90 days following April 9, 2013, in the cagkcalendar year 2013), which goals shall be sutiistlly consistent with, but to the extent
applicable, no less favorable than, the performaoeds applicable to the annual bonus for the CR®the Company’s Chief Financial Officer
(“ CEQ™), subject to Executive’s continued employmenttigh December 31 of each such calendar year. Exesutarget annual bonus
(“Target Bonus”) shall be $100,000 if the Compankiaves at least 100% of its Performance Goals;iwbonus shall be pro-rated for
calendar year 2013 and the year of terminatiomyfleyment to reflect in each case the period ofchkee’s employment with the Company
during such year. Notwithstanding the foregoingpject to Executive’s continued employment throlgttember 31 of each such calendar
year, (A) the Annual Bonus for calendar year 28,4 and 2015 shall be not less than $50,000, 88560d $75,000, respectively and (B
the Company achieves greater than 100% of its Fedioce Goals and the CFO therefore receives arehhonus greater than the target bc
prescribed in the CFO’s employment agreement, tiieual Bonus for Executive shall be increased beybadrarget Bonus level by the same
percentage as that by which the CFO’s annual baragsincreased beyond the CFQO’s target bonus level.

(i) Any Annual Bonus payable for any calendar yearldieapaid in cash as soon as practicable
following the determination of the Company’s penfi@nce results for such calendar year, but in natdaéer than March 15th of the calendar
year following the calendar year to which such AalrBBonus relates

(c) Equity. On April 9, 2013, the Company granted Executpugsuant to, and subject to, the terms of the
Plan and an option grant certificate attached beastExhibit A, an option (the * Optiof) to purchase 150,000 shares of Company common
stock (the “_StocR). Each share of Stock subject to the Optiondragxercise price equal to the fair market valua sifiare of Stock on the
date of grant. On April 9, 2013, the Company gedriExecutive pursuant to, and subject to, the teftise Plan and a restricted stock
certificate attached hereto as Exhibit 85,000 restricted shares of Stock.

(d) Benefits and PerquisitesDuring the Term, Executive shall be entitlegbtoticipate in the benefit plans
and programs commensurate with Executive’s positluat are provided by the Company from time tcetiior its senior executives generally,
subject to the terms and conditions of such plansddition, during the Term, the Company shabvinle Executive with life insurance and
disability coverage comparable to Executive’s auirieverages with his prior employer.

(e) Business Expense ReimbursemeniBuring the Term, the Company shall promptly teimse Executive
for Executive’s reasonable and necessary busingenses incurred in connection with performing Exiee’s duties hereunder in accordance
with its then-prevailing policies and proceduresdgpense reimbursement (which shall include apjatgitemization and substantiation of
expenses incurred).

) Vacation. During the Term, Executive shall be entitleddor weeks paid vacation each calendar year, in
accordance with the Company’s vacation policy tedben at such




times as may be mutually agreed by Executive aad€Ctmpany. Unused vacation in any calendar yedr Isé carried over to the next
calendar year; provided that, in no event shallckkige’s eligible vacation time exceed 8 weeksng aalendar year.

(9) Attorney s Fees The Company shall reimburse the Executive withirty (30) days following the
execution of this Agreement his reasonable att@’rfexes incurred in connection with the negotiatidrthis Agreement, up to a maximum of
$5,000, subject to appropriate itemization and wuttstion of expenses incurred.

(h) Relocation ExpensesWithin thirty (30) days of Executive’s relocati®o the Miami, Florida metropolitan
area, or if later, within thirty (30) days of amdursable expense being incurred by ExecutiveCtimapany shall reimburse Executive for all
reasonable costs in connection with such relocatioa fully grossed-up basis, including two (2jhree (3) house hunting trips and broker-
related fees incurred in connection with such hdusaing trips, if any, and Executive’s COBRA caontation coverage expenses through the
end of the calendar month in which Executive relegasubject to appropriate itemization and sulbistitan of expenses incurred.

0] Indemnification. The Company agrees that in the event Execusiveriis threatened to be, made a par
any pending, contemplated or threatened actiot, ahiitration or other proceeding, whether cigiiminal, administrative or investigative, and
whether formal or informal (each a “ Proceedindy reason of the fact that Executive is or washad agreed to become, an officer,
employee, agent, representative or fiduciary of@benpany, or is or was serving at the requestefibmpany as a board member, officer,
employee, agent or fiduciary of another PersonCbmpany shall indemnify and hold Executive harslés the maximum extent permitted
the Company’s governing documents or, if greatgriplicable law (but not in any event in contrai@mof the Company’s governing
documents), against all expenses, damages, liabiind losses incurred by Executive, provitied Executive acted in good faith and in a
manner that he reasonably believed to be in ooppbsed to the best interests of the Company vaitidyespect to any criminal Proceeding,
had no reasonable cause to believe his conductmtag/ful; provided, further, that Executive shall not be entitled to any smclemnification
(A) in respect of any Proceeding based upon obatable to Executive gaining in fact any persqguraffit or advantage to which he is not
entitled or resulting from Executive’s frauduledishonest or willful misconduct, (B) to the ext&xtecutive has already received
indemnification or payment pursuant to the Compamgerating agreement or other governing documbBt§) insurance or otherwise or
(C) in respect of any Proceeding initiated by Exie unless the Company has joined in or the Bbaslauthorized such Proceeding.
Expenses incurred by Executive in defending aniyncihall be paid by the Company in advance of itha tlisposition of such claim upon
receipt by the Company of an undertaking by or elnaif of Executive to repay such amount if it stalultimately determined that Executive
is not entitled to be indemnified by the Companyspant to this Section 3(i). To the extent the @any maintains an insurance policy
covering the errors and omissions of its Board memsind officers, Executive shall be covered by qadicy during the Term and for six
years following Executiv's termination of employment in a manner no les®fable than Board members and other officers ®Qbmpany.

4. Termination of Employment (i) Executive’s employment may be terminateceliier party at any time and for
any reason; providedhowever, that Executive shall be required to give the Canypat least 60 days advance written notice ofvatyntary
resignation of Executive’'s employment hereunded (arsuch event the Company in its sole discretiay elect to accelerate Executive’s date
of termination of employment, it being understobdttsuch termination shall still be treated aslantary resignation for purposes of this
Agreement). Notwithstanding the foregoing, Exeais employment shall automatically terminate upsecutive’s death.
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(b) Following any termination of Executiv@employment, notwithstanding any provision to¢batrary in thi:
Agreement, the obligations of the Company to paprovide Executive with compensation and benefitden Section 3 shall cease, and the
Company shall have no further obligations to prewidmpensation or benefits to Executive hereunxtap (i) for payment of (w) any accrt
but unpaid Base Salary through the date of terimina¢x) any unpaid Annual Bonus for the year ptithe year in which termination occurs,
(y) any accrued but unused vacation days, andhfzuareimbursed expenses under Section 3(e), im&ase accrued or incurred through the
date of termination of employment, payable as sopracticable and in all events within 30 daybfaihg termination of employment, (ii) as
explicitly set forth in any other benefit planspgrams or arrangements applicable to terminatedogm@s in which Executive participates,
other than severance plans or policies, and @iQtherwise expressly required by applicable lavli€ctively, the “ Accrued Obligation3.
For the avoidance of doubt, (A) any Annual Bonustiie year of termination of employment is forfeiié Executive’s employment is
terminated for Cause or resignation by Executiventhan for Good Reason, and (B) in the case etikves death, any payments to be ir
to Executive in accordance with this Section 4 Ildbalpaid to Executive’s beneficiaries, deviseessh legates or estate, as applicable.

(c) 0] Except as otherwise provided herein, if Execusverhployment is terminated (I) by the Comg
without Cause (other than due to death or Disghitis defined below), or due to the Company’s @eatot to extend the Term beyond the
scheduled expiration of the Term on the Expirafdate as contemplated under Section 1(a)), or yithe Executive for Good Reason, then
Executive, in addition to the Accrued Obligatioskall be entitled to receive an aggregate amouwrleq (A) the sum of (x) Executive’'s Base
Salary and (y) the Target Bonus (the * Severangen@at”), plus (B) the product of (x) the actual Annuaiis that Executive would have
been entitled to receive for the year of termimatiad Executive continued to be employed throughetid of the calendar year in which such
termination occurs, and (y) a fraction, the nun@raf which is the number of calendar days Exeeutiias employed in the calendar year of
termination, and the denominator of which is 36 (t Pro Rata Bonuy. The Severance Payment shall be paid duriedl&month period
immediately following such termination in substaiiti equal installments consistent with the Compaumayroll practices, and the Pro Rata
Bonus shall be paid on the date that other exezsiive paid their annual bonuses in respect ofghein which Executive’s termination
occurs.

(i) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrangtifany time within 60 days before, or 12
months following, a Change in Control, Executivefsployment is terminated (1) by the Company withGatise (other than due to death or
Disability, or due to the Company’s election noetdend the Term beyond the scheduled expiratidgheoferm on the Expiration Date as
contemplated under Section 1(a)), or (1) by thedxrive for Good Reason, then Executive, in additiothe Accrued Obligations but in lieu
the payments described in Section 4(c)(i), shakitiled to receive an aggregate amount equaltdwo times the Severance Payment plus
(B) the product of (x) the Target Bonus for theryeftermination, and (y) a fraction, the numeraibwhich is the number of calendar days
Executive was employed in the calendar year ofiteation, and the denominator of which is 365. Nttatanding anything herein to the
contrary, at any time following a Change in ContibExecutive’'s employment is terminated due te @ompany’s election not to extend the
Term beyond the scheduled expiration of the TerrtherExpiration Date as contemplated under Sedtfaj then Executive, in addition to the
Accrued Obligations, shall be entitled to the Semee Payment. All payments described in this 8eet{c)(ii) shall be paid in cash in a lump
sum within 30 business days following the executibthe Release that has become irrevocable hgritss; provided, that to the extent any
portion of such lump sum payment would violate ®ectt09A (as




defined below), then such portion shall be paidrapthe 12-month period immediately following suehmination in substantially equal
installments consistent with the Company’s paypaddictices.

(iii) If Executive’s employment is terminated due to Heatby the Company due to Disability, or due
to the Company’s election not to extend the Tergohd the scheduled expiration date of the TermherBxpiration Date as contemplated
under Section 1(a), then Executive, in additiothenAccrued Obligations, shall be entitled to reegiayment of the Pro Rata Bonus, payable
no later than March 15 of the calendar year foltaythe calendar year in which Executive’s termmatf employment occurs. In addition to
the foregoing, if Executive’s employment is termethdue to the Company’s election not to extendléren beyond the scheduled expiration
of the Term on the Expiration Date as contemplateder Section 1(a) prior to a Change in Contra@ntExecutive shall be entitled to
continued payment of Executive’s Base Salary duttieg6-month period immediately following such tération, in substantially equal
installments consistent with the Company’s paypaddictices.

(iv) Any payments or benefits under Section 4(c)(i))@ijoor 4(c)(iii) shall be (A) conditioned upon
Executive and the Company having executed a mutuaypocable waiver and general release of clambs®ntially in a form attached hereto
as_Exhibit C(the “ Releasé) that has become effective in accordance witheitms, (B) subject to Executive’s continued comaupdie with the
terms of this Agreement and (C) subject to Sec@®n

(v) For purposes of this Agreement, “ Catisgeans: (A) Executive’s willful refusal to perforhis
duties for the Company, which refusal or failurmaéns uncured for 15 days after he receives writtaice from the Board demanding cure;
(B) in carrying out his duties under the employmegteement, Executive engages in willful miscondacgross neglect, that in either case
causes material economic harm to the Company’'sibsisior reputation; or (C) Executive is convictédoenters a plea of guilty molo
contendereo, a felony and such conviction or plea has a rnatadverse effect on his ability to perform hitids for the Company or causes
material harm to the Company or its Affiliates.

(vi) For purposes of this Agreement, * Disabifitypneans Executive would be entitled to long-term
disability benefits under the Company’s long-terisedility plan as in effect from time to time, watlit regard to any waiting or elimination
period under such plan and assuming for the purpbsech determination that Executive is actualytigipating in such plan at such time. If
the Company does not maintain a long-term disghplian, “ Disability” means Executive’s inability to perform Executisaluties and
responsibilities hereunder due to physical or melt@ss or incapacity that is expected to lastd@onsecutive period of 90 days or for a
period of 120 days in any 365 day period as detethby the Board in its good faith judgment.

(vii) For purposes of this Agreement, * Good Redssimall mean the occurrence of any of the
following events without Executive’s prior expragstten consent: (A) any reduction in Executive'adg Salary or Target Bonus, or any
material diminution in Executive’authorities, titles or offices, or the assignnterttim of duties that materially impair his ahjltb perform th
duties normally assigned to the General CounselCaorgorate Secretary of a corporation of the simkreature of the Company; (B) any cha
in the reporting structure so that Executive repother than to the CEO or the CEO’s designeea(@)relocation of Executive’s principal
place of employment, to a location outside of thiar, Florida metropolitan area; (D) any materigdch by the Company, or any of its
Affiliates, of any material obligation to Executiver (E) the failure of the Company to obtain tlsswmption in writing of its obligation to
perform this Agreement by any successor to alubstantially all of the business and assets oCihvpany within 15 days after any merger,
consolidation, sale or




similar transaction; provideldowever, that prior to resigning for Good Reason, Exeaushall give written notice to the Company of thet$
and circumstances claimed to provide a basis foin seisignation not more than thirty (30) days felleg his knowledge of such facts and
circumstances, and the Company shall have thify qays after receipt of such notice to cure sacisfand circumstances (and if so cured
Executive shall not be permitted to resign for GBmdson in respect thereof).

(d) Upon termination of Executive’s employment for aegson, upon the Compasyequest Executive agre
to resign, as of the date of such termination gbleyment or such other date requested, from thedBaad any committees thereof (and, if
applicable, from the board of directors (and anycattees thereof) of any Affiliate of the Compang)the extent Executive is then serving
thereon.

(e) The payment of any amounts accrued under any ligi@fi, program or arrangement in which Executive
participates shall be subject to the terms of fhieable plan, program or arrangement, and argtieles Executive has made thereunder.
Except as prohibited by the terms of any Compamefieplan, program or arrangement, the Company affsgt any amounts due and pay:
by Executive to the Company or its subsidiariedresjany amounts the Company owes Executive hesguptbvided, however, no offsets
shall be permitted against amounts that constiteferred compensation subject to Section 409A.efixas set forth in this Section 4(e),
Executive shall be under no obligation to seek roémeployment or to otherwise mitigate the obligati@f the Company under this Agreement
and there shall be no offset against amounts ceflismue to Executive under this Agreement or wtise on account of any claim (other than
any preexisting debts then due in accordance Wwélhr terms) the Company or its affiliates may hagainst him or any remuneration or other
benefit earned or received by the Executive afiehgermination.

5. Noncompetition and NonsolicitatianFor purposes of Sections 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10 dndf this Agreement, references
to the Company shall include its subsidiaries affdidtes.

(a) Executive agrees that Executive shall not, whilemployee of the Company and during the one-year
period following termination of employment (sucHleotive duration, the * Restriction Peridy directly or indirectly, without the prior writte
consent of the Company:

0] (A) engage in activities or businesses (includinthaut limitation by owning any interest in,
managing, controlling, participating in, consultiwgh, advising, rendering services for, or in angnner engaging in the business of owning,
operating or managing any business) anywhere imtrkl that are principally or primarily in the bness of producing Spanish language
media content, or owning or operating Hispanicvisien networks (* Competitive Activiti€3 or (B) assisting any Person in any way to do, ot
attempt to do, anything prohibited by this Sectiga)(i)(A) above; or

(i) perform any action, activity or course of condutiieh is substantially detrimental to the
businesses or business reputations of the Compaiyding (A) soliciting, recruiting or hiring (attempting to solicit, recruit or hire) any
employees of the Company or Persons who have wddtgtle Company during the 12-month period immedyapreceding such solicitation,
recruitment or hiring or attempt thereof; (B) silitgy or encouraging (or attempting to solicit mceurage) any employee of the Company to
leave the employment of the Company; (C) intentigriaterfering with the relationship of the Compawith any Person who or which is
employed by or otherwise engaged to perform sesviwe or any customer, client, supplier, licendieensor or other business relation of, the
Company; or (D) assisting any Person in any wajotoor attempt to do, anything prohibited by Settga)(ii)(A), (B) or (C) above.
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The Restriction Period shall be tolled during (ahdll be deemed automatically extended by) anyg@en which Executive
is in violation of the provisions of this Sectioah

(b) The provisions of Section 5(a) shall not be deebredched as a result of (i) Executs@assive ownersh
of less than an aggregate of 3% of any class afrgexs of a Person engaged, directly or indiredtlyCompetitive Activities, so long as
Executive does not actively participate in the bess of such Person; provideldowever, that such stock is listed on a national securitie
exchange or (ii) Executive’s rendering servicetofeing termination of employment with the Comparsyaelawyer at a law firm to such law
firm’s clients in the normal course of its businéssluding without limitation any such clients exgged in Competitive Activities) (for the sake
of clarity, Executive shall remain bound by theesthestrictive covenants in this agreement, inclgdiut not limited to Section 6 hereof).

(c) Without limiting the generality of Section 11, ndtisstanding the fact that any provision of this tBet5 is
determined not to be specifically enforceable,Gloaenpany may nevertheless be entitled to recoveretaonpdamages as a result of Executive’
material breach of such provision.

(d) Executive acknowledges that the Company has drfesgi# business interest and right in protecting its
Confidential Information (as defined below), busisstrategies, employee and customer relationghigggoodwill, and that the Company
would be seriously damaged by the disclosure offi@ential Information and the loss or deterioratifrits business strategies, employee and
customer relationships and goodwill. Executivermsidedges that Executive is being provided wittgigant additional consideration (to
which Executive is not otherwise entitled), incliglistock options and restricted stock, to inducedskive to enter into this Agreement.
Executive expressly acknowledges and agrees tbhtaa every restraint imposed by this Agreemergasonable with respect to subject
matter, time period and geographical area. Exeelttirther acknowledges that although Executivetmgliance with the covenants contained
in Sections 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9 may prevent Execltam® earning a livelihood in a business similattte business of the Company, Executive’s
experience and capabilities are such that Exechtigeother opportunities to earn a livelihood ashelate means of support for Executive an
Executive’s dependents.

6. Nondisclosure of Confidential Information(i) Executive acknowledges that Executive id ahall become familii
with the Company’s Confidential Information (asidefl below), including trade secrets, and that Htiee's services are of special, unique
and extraordinary value to the Company. Execudsknowledges that the Confidential Information oisd by Executive while employed by
the Company is the property of the Company. TleegfExecutive agrees that Executive shall notlasgcto any unauthorized Person or use
for Executive’s own purposes any Confidential Imfiation without the prior written consent of the Guany, unless and to the extent that the
aforementioned matters become generally known doeaailable for use by the public other than assalt of Executive’s acts or omissions in
violation of this Agreement; providechowever, that if Executive receives a request to disclosgafidential Information pursuant to a
deposition, interrogatory, request for informat@mrdocuments in legal proceedings, subpoena, ioiwdstigative demand, governmental or
regulatory process or similar process, (i) Exeauskiall promptly notify in writing the Company, aoginsult with and assist the Company in
seeking a protective order or request for other@mpate remedy, (ii) in the event that such prttecorder or remedy is not obtained, or if the
Company waives compliance with the terms hereoéchtive shall disclose only that portion of the Gaential Information which, in the
written opinion of Executive’s legal counsel, igddly required to be disclosed and shall exera@sswonable best efforts to provide that the
receiving Person shall agree to treat such Contildnformation as confidential to the extent dbks (and permitted under applicable
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law) in respect of the applicable proceeding ocpss and (iii) the Company shall be given an opitst to review the Confidential
Information prior to disclosure thereof.

(b) For purposes of this Agreement, “ Confidential mfiation” means information, observations and data
concerning the business or affairs of the Comparmjyding, without limitation, all business infortian (whether or not in written form) whic
relates to the Company, or its customers, suppiec®ntractors or any other third parties in respé which the Company has a business
relationship or owes a duty of confidentiality,tbeir respective businesses or products, and whinbt known to the public generally other
than as a result of Executive’s breach of this &grent, including but not limited to: technical infwation or reports; formulas; trade secrets;
unwritten knowledge and “know-how”; operating ingttions; training manuals; customer lists; customsfing records and habits; product
sales records and documents, and product develdpmarketing and sales strategies; market survagsketing plans; profitability analyses;
product cost; long-range plans; information relgtio pricing, competitive strategies and new prodigvelopment; information relating to any
forms of compensation or other personnel-relatéatimation; contracts; and supplier lists. Confidaninformation will not include such
information known to Executive prior to Executivérsolvement with the Company or information righity obtained from a third party (other
than pursuant to a breach by Executive of this Agrent). Without limiting the foregoing, Executiggrees to keep confidential the existence
of, and any information concerning, any disputeMeein Executive and the Company, except that Exexuatay disclose information
concerning such dispute to his immediate familyth®court that is considering such dispute ortedative’s legal counsel and other
professional advisors (provided that such counseéladher advisors agree not to disclose any suifomiration other than as necessary to the
prosecution or defense of such dispute).

(c) Except as expressly set forth otherwise in thisegrent, Executive agrees that Executive shall isotabe
the terms of this Agreement, except to Executiv@imediate family and Executive’s financial and legdvisors, or as may be required by law
or ordered by a court. Executive further agreasahny disclosure to Executive’s financial or legdVisors shall only be made after such
advisors acknowledge and agree to maintain thadremifality of this Agreement and its terms.

(d) Executive further agrees that Executive will nopiaperly use or disclose any confidential inforroator
trade secrets, if any, of any former employersnyr @her Person to whom Executive has an obligaifaronfidentiality, and will not bring
onto the premises of the Company any unpublishedrdents or any property belonging to any formerleygr or any other Person to whom
Executive has an obligation of confidentiality sdeconsented to in writing by the former employreother Person.

7. Return of Property Executive acknowledges that all notes, memoraspicifications, devices, formulas, records,
files, lists, drawings, documents, models, equipimgroperty, computer, software or intellectualgedy relating to the businesses of the
Company, in whatever form (including electronia)daall copies thereof, that are received or crebyeBxecutive while an employee of the
Company or its subsidiaries or Affiliates (includibut not limited to Confidential Information armaventions (as defined below)) are and shall
remain the property of the Company, and Executiadl smmediately return such property to the Compapon the termination of Executive’s
employment and, in any event, at the Company’sestjuExecutive further agrees that any propettyated on the premises of, and owned by
the Company, including disks and other storage aéiling cabinets or other work areas, is subjedhspection by the Company’s personnel
at any time with or without notice.

8. Intellectual Property Rights (i) Executive agrees that the results and mds®f Executive’s services for the
Company (including, but not limited to, any tragerets, products, services,
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processes, know-how, designs, developments, iniomgatanalyses, drawings, reports, techniques,ftasy methods, developmental or
experimental work, improvements, discoveries, itiegrs, ideas, source and object codes, prograntsemmaf a literary, musical, dramatic or
otherwise creative nature, writings and other warkauthorship) resulting from services performddlgran employee of the Company and
works in progress, whether or not patentable osteable under copyright or similar statutes, thate made, developed, conceived or reducet
to practice or learned by Executive, either alonpintly with others (collectively, “ Invention§, shall be works-made-for-hire and the
Company shall be deemed the sole owner througheuirtiverse of any and all trade secret, patepyraght and other intellectual property
rights (collectively, “ Proprietary Right$ of whatsoever nature therein, whether or not mokereafter known, existing, contemplated,
recognized or developed, with the right to usesdmae in perpetuity in any manner the Company détesin its sole discretion, without any
further payment to Executive whatsoever. If, foy a&eason, any of such results and proceeds shidikgally be a work-made-for-hire and/or
there are any Proprietary Rights which do not az¢touthe Company under the immediately precedintgesee, then Executive hereby
irrevocably assigns and agrees to assign any aoflEkecutive’s right, title and interest theretogluding any and all Proprietary Rights of
whatsoever nature therein, whether or not now cedfter known, existing, contemplated, recognizedeveloped, to the Company, and the
Company shall have the right to use the same ipgbeity throughout the universe in any manner deitezd by the Company without any
further payment to Executive whatsoever. As to lawgntion that Executive is required to assigne&rive shall promptly and fully disclose
to the Company all information known to Executivecerning such Invention.

(b) Executive agrees that, from time to time, as mayeheested by the Company and at the Company’s sole
cost and expense, Executive shall do any andiatjsithat the Company may reasonably deem usefigsirable to establish or document the
Company’s exclusive ownership throughout the Un8éates of America or any other country of any alhéroprietary Rights in any such
Inventions, including the execution of appropried@yright and/or patent applications or assignmeftsthe extent Executive has any
Proprietary Rights in the Inventions that cannoabsigned in the manner described above, Exeautizenditionally and irrevocably waives
the enforcement of such Proprietary Rights. Tleisti®n 8(b) is subject to and shall not be deeroduinit, restrict or constitute any waiver by
the Company of any Proprietary Rights of ownersbiphich the Company may be entitled by operatiblaw by virtue of the Company’s
being Executive’s employer. Executive further agréhat, from time to time, as may be requestethéyCompany and at the Company’s sole
cost and expense, Executive shall assist the Coyripaavery proper and lawful way to obtain and frome to time enforce Proprietary Rights
relating to Inventions in any and all countriesxe€itive shall execute, verify and deliver suchutnents and perform such other acts
(including appearances as a witness) as the Compagyeasonably request for use in applying fotaioing, perfecting, evidencing,
sustaining, and enforcing such Proprietary Rightsthe assignment thereof. In addition, Execusivall execute, verify and deliver
assignments of such Proprietary Rights to the Compaits designees. Executive’s obligations uridex Section 8 shall continue beyond the
termination of Executive’s employment with the Canp.

(c) Executive hereby waives and quitclaims to the Camgzmy and all claims, of any nature whatsoevex, th
Executive now or may hereafter have for infringetdrany Proprietary Rights assigned hereundengéddompany.

9. Nondisparagement Executive shall not, whether in writing or oyalinalign, denigrate or disparage the Company
or its predecessors and successors, or any ofithent or former directors, officers, employeesrsholders, partners, members, agents or
representatives of any of the
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foregoing, with respect to any of their respecpast or present activities, or otherwise publishdther in writing or orally) statements that
tend to portray any of the aforementioned partieasn unfavorable light; provided that nothing herghall or shall be deemed to prevent or
impair Executive from, in the course of and comsiswvith his duties for the Company, making pubbienments which include good faith,
candid discussions, or acknowledgements regarim@bmpany’s performance or business, or discusshey officers, directors, and
employees in connection with normal performancduatmns, or otherwistestifying truthfully in any legal or administraéproceeding whe
such testimony is compelled, or requested or frimervise complying with legal requirements. Therany shall not, and shall instruct its
senior executives not to, whether in writing orligramalign, denigrate or disparage Executive, tireowise publish (whether in writing or
orally) statements that tend to portray Executivan unfavorable light; provided that nothing herghall or shall be deemed to prevent or
impair the Company or any such executives discgdskecutive in connection with normal performanealeations or from testifying
truthfully in any legal or administrative proceegliwhere such testimony is compelled, or requestdécm otherwise complying with legal
requirements.

10. Notification of Subsequent EmployerExecutive hereby agrees that prior to accepingloyment with, or agreeil
to provide services to, any other Person duringperiod during which Executive remains subjectrig af the covenants set forth in Section 5
Executive shall provide such prospective employign written notice of such provisions of this Agneent, with a copy of such notice
delivered simultaneously to the Company.

11. Remedies and Injunctive ReliefExecutive acknowledges that a violation by Exieeuwf any of the covenants
contained in Section 5, 6, 7, 8 or 9 would caussparable damage to the Company in an amount thaltvibbe material but not readily
ascertainable, and that any remedy at law (inclytie payment of damages) would be inadequateordiwly, Executive agrees that,
notwithstanding any provision of this Agreementtte contrary, the Company shall be entitled (wittthe necessity of showing economic loss
or other actual damage) to injunctive relief (irdihg temporary restraining orders, preliminary igtions and/or permanent injunctions) in
court of competent jurisdiction for any actual loretatened breach of any of the covenants setifoSection 5, 6, 7, 8 or 9 in addition to any
other legal or equitable remedies it may have. fdileeeding sentence shall not be construed asvema the rights that the Company may
have for damages under this Agreement or othenaise all of the Company’s rights shall be unretgdc




12. Representations of Executive; Advice of Counséh) Executive represents, warrants and coverthat as of the
date hereof: (i) Executive has the full right,tearity and capacity to enter into this Agreemerd parform Executive’s obligations hereunder,
(ii) Executive is not bound by any agreement thoatflicts with or prevents or restricts the full flmance of Executive’s duties and
obligations to the Company hereunder during o dfte Term and (iii) the execution and deliventtu Agreement shall not result in any
breach or violation of, or a default under, anysérg obligation, commitment or agreement to whistecutive is subject.

(b) Executive represents that, prior to execution f &greement, Executive has been advised by amatfo
of Executive’s own selection regarding this AgreatmeExecutive acknowledges that Executive hasredtimto this Agreement knowingly and
voluntarily and with full knowledge and understamglof the provisions of this Agreement after bajingen the opportunity to consult with
counsel. Executive further represents that inrergeanto this Agreement, Executive is not relyioig any statements or representations ma
any of the Company’s directors, officers, employaeagents which are not expressly set forth heesid that Executive is relying only upon
Executive’s own judgment and any advice providedEkgcutive’s attorney.
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13. Cooperation Executive agrees that, upon reasonable notidevithout the necessity of the Company obtaining a
subpoena or court order, Executive shall providseoeable cooperation in connection with any suattpa or proceeding (or any appeal from
any suit, action or proceeding), and any investigeand/or defense of any claims asserted agamnysbfaExecutive and the Company, its
respective Affiliates, their respective predecessod successors, and all of the respective cusrdotmer directors, officers, employees,
shareholders, partners, members, agents or repa&igen of any of the foregoing, which relateserts occurring during Executive’s
employment with the Company and its Affiliates asvhich Executive may have relevant informatiorciiiling but not limited to furnishing
relevant information and materials to the Companiysodesignee and/or providing testimony at defpmwss and at trial), provided that with
respect to such cooperation occurring followingnieation of employment, the Company shall reimbiEgecutive for expenses reasonably
incurred in connection therewith, and further pded that any such cooperation occurring afterehmination of Executive employment sh
be scheduled to the extent reasonably practicabés :i10t to unreasonably interfere with Executiveisiness or personal affairs.

14, Withholding Taxes The Company may deduct and withhold from any am payable under this Agreement suct
Federal, state, local, non-U.S. or other taxegasemuired or permitted to be withheld pursuarang applicable law or regulation.

15. Assignment (a) This Agreement is personal to Executive aitdout the prior written consent of the Company
shall not be assignable by Executive, except ferassignment by will or the laws of descent anttibigion of any accrued pecuniary interest
of Executive, and any assignment in violation @ thgreement shall be void. The Company may ag$ignAgreement, and its rights and
obligations hereunder, to any of its Affiliates.

(b) This Agreement shall be binding on, and shall irnarthe benefit of, the parties to it and theipegive
heirs, legal representatives, successors and pednaissigns (including, without limitation, sucaassby merger, consolidation, sale or similar
transaction, and, in the event of Executive’s delaiecutive’s estate and heirs in the case of ayynents due to Executive hereunder).

(c) Executive acknowledges and agrees that all of Bkexs covenants and obligations to the Company, as
well as the rights of the Company hereunder, shallin favor of and shall be enforceable by the @any and its successors and assigns.

16. Governing Law; No Construction Against DrafteThis Agreement shall be deemed to be made iGthie of
Delaware, and the validity, interpretation, constian, and performance of this Agreement in alpeeds shall be governed by the laws of the
State of Delaware without regard to its principdésonflicts of law. No provision of this Agreentesr any related document will be construed
against or interpreted to the disadvantage of amntyfhereto by any court or other governmentaudidial authority by reason of such party
having or being deemed to have structured or diafteh provision.

17. Consent to Jurisdiction; Waiver of Jury Tria{a) Except as otherwise specifically provideddin, Executive and
the Company each hereby irrevocably submits t@¥etusive jurisdiction of the United States Didti@ourt for the District of Delaware (or, if
subject matter jurisdiction in that court is notdable, in any state court located within the &t Delaware) over any dispute arising out of o
relating to this Agreement. Except as otherwiscBgally provided in this Agreement, the partieslertake not to commence any suit, action
or proceeding arising out of or relating to thisrdgment in a forum other than a forum describetiimSection 17(a); providechowever, that
nothing herein shall preclude the Company fromdirig any suit, action or proceeding in any otharrto
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for the purposes of enforcing the provisions of théction 17 or enforcing any judgment obtainetheyCompany.

(b) The agreement of the parties to the forum desciitb&akction 17(a) is independent of the law thay iva
applied in any suit, action, or proceeding andphies agree to such forum even if such forum oraer applicable law choose to apply non-
forum law. The parties hereby waive, to the fullegent permitted by applicable law, any objectidrich they now or hereafter have to
personal jurisdiction or to the laying of venueaoly such suit, action or proceeding brought ingplieable court described in Section 17(a),
and the parties agrees that they shall not attéorggny or defeat such personal jurisdiction byiomor other request for leave from any such
court. The parties agree that, to the fullestrxpermitted by applicable law, a final and non-egdpble judgment in any suit, action or
proceeding brought in any applicable court desdribeSection 17(a) shall be conclusive and bindipgn the parties and may be enforced in
any other jurisdiction.

(c) The parties hereto irrevocably consent to the serof any and all process in any suit, action oceeding
arising out of or relating to this Agreement by thailing of copies of such process to such parguah party’s address specified in Section 22

(d) Each party hereto hereby waives, to the fullestrpermitted by applicable law, any right it mayé to ¢
trial by jury in respect of any suit, action or peeding arising out of or relating to this Agreemegach party hereto (i) certifies that no
representative, agent or attorney of any othelygaas represented, expressly or otherwise, thét jgaty would not, in the event of any action,
suit or proceeding, seek to enforce the foregoiagy@r and (ii) acknowledges that it and the othatyphereto has been induced to enter into
this Agreement by, among other things, the mutw@l@r and certifications in this Section 17(d).

(e) Each party shall bear its own costs and expensekidiing reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses)
incurred in connection with any dispute arising olbr relating to this Agreement; provided thhg Company shall reimburse the Executive
for reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses textieat that Executive substantially prevails aa toaterial issue with respect to any matters
subject to dispute hereunder.

18. Amendment; No Waiver No provisions of this Agreement may be amendeatjified, waived or discharged exc
by a written document signed by Executive and & duthorized officer of the Company (other than&xive). The failure of a party to insist
upon strict adherence to any term of this Agreerardny occasion shall not be considered a waivench partys rights or deprive such pa
of the right thereafter to insist upon strict adime to that term or any other term of this Agrestm@lo failure or delay by either party in
exercising any right or power hereunder will opera$ a waiver thereof, nor will any single or @antixercise of any such right or power, or
abandonment of any steps to enforce such a righdwer, preclude any other or further exercisedbior the exercise of any other right or
power.

19. Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement isatid, illegal or incapable of being enforced byan
applicable law or public policy, all other conditand provisions of this Agreement shall nonetisetemain in full force and effect so long as
the economic and legal substance of the transactiontemplated by this Agreement is not affecteghiyy manner materially adverse to any
party; provided however, that if any term or provision of Section 5, 687r 9 is invalid, illegal or incapable of beingferced by any
applicable law or public policy, all other condit®and provisions of this Agreement shall nonetisetemain in full force and effect to the
fullest extent permitted by law; providéatther, that in the event that any court of competenisgliction shall finally
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hold in a non-appealable judicial determinatiort tivay provision of Section 5, 6, 7, 8 or 9 (whetimewhole or in part) is void or constitutes an
unreasonable restriction against Executive, suckigion shall not be rendered void but shall bentkxd to be modified to the minimum extent
necessary to make such provision enforceable éolafigest duration and the greatest scope as suchmay determine constitutes a
reasonable restriction under the circumstance$jesuto the foregoing, upon such determination émgy term or other provision is invalid,
illegal or incapable of being enforced, the partieseto shall negotiate in good faith to modifystAgreement so as to effect the original intent
of the parties as closely as possible in a mutwadbeptable manner in order that the transactionsemplated hereby be consummated as
originally contemplated to the fullest extent pbksi

20. Entire Agreement This Agreement, including the Exhibits heretonstitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the Company and Executiveregipect to the subject matter hereof and supessabprior agreements and
understandings (whether written or oral), betweredttive and the Company, relating to such subyetter. None of the parties shall be
liable or bound to any other party in any manneaby representations and warranties or covenalattingto such subject matter except as
specifically set forth herein.

21. Survival. The rights and obligations of the parties urilerprovisions of this Agreement shall survive, asmain
binding and enforceable, notwithstanding the exjpineof the Term, the termination of this Agreemehe termination of Executive’'s
employment hereunder or any settlement of the Gimights and obligations arising from Executve@mployment hereunder, to the extent
necessary to preserve the intended benefits of mushisions.

22. Notices. All notices or other communications requiregermitted to be given hereunder shall be in writing
shall be delivered by hand or sent by facsimilelectronic image scan (pdf) or sent, postage pdepgiregistered, certified or express mail or
overnight courier service and shall be deemed giveen so delivered by hand or facsimile, or if mdjlthree days after mailing (one business
day in the case of express mail or overnight cowgevice) to the parties at the following addressefacsimiles or email addresses (or at suct
other address for a party as shall be specifielikbynotice):

If to the Company Hemisphere Media Group, In
405 Lexington Avenue, 48th Flo
New York, NY 1017¢
Attention: Legal Departmel

With a copy (which shall not constitute notice herder) to:

Paul, Weiss, Rifkind, Wharton & Garrison LI
1285 Avenue of the Americ:

New York, NY 1001-6064

Fax: (212) 75-3990

Attention: Jeffrey D. Marell, Est

Email: jmarell@paulweiss.col

If to Executive: Alex J. Tolstor
At the most recent address and fax or email in Gompersonnel recort

14




With a copy (which shall not constitute notice herder) to:

Venable LLP

1270 Avenue of the Americ:
New York, NY 1002(

Fax: (212) 30-5598
Attention: Brian Turoff, Esq
Email: bturoff@venable.col

Notices delivered by facsimile shall have the séamal effect as if such notice had been delivenggerson

23. Headings and Referenced he headings of this Agreement are inserted¢dorenience only and neither constitu
part of this Agreement nor affect in any way theamiag or interpretation of this Agreement. Whewefarence in this Agreement is made to a
Section, such reference shall be to a SectionigfAtgreement unless otherwise indicated.

24, Counterparts This Agreement may be executed in one or mouatesparts (including via facsimile and electronic
image scan (pdf)), each of which shall be deemdsttan original, but all of which together shalhsttute one and the same instrument and
shall become effective when one or more countespeate been signed by each of the parties andedetito the other parties.

25. Section 409A

(a) For purposes of this Agreement, “ Section 409Aeans Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Cdde o
1986, as amended (the “ Cdleand the Treasury Regulations promulgated thadleu (and such other Treasury or Internal Reverunei&
guidance) as in effect from time to time. The jgarintend that any amounts payable hereundecthad constitute “deferred compensation”
within the meaning of Section 409A will be compliavith Section 409A or exempt from Section 409AotWithstanding the foregoing, the
Company shall not be liable to, and the Executhadlde solely liable and responsible for, any sagepenalties that may be imposed on such
Executive under Section 409A of the Code with respeExecutive’s receipt of payments hereunder.

(b) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to tlomtrary, the following special rule shall applyaifid to
the extent required by Section 409A, in the evkat (i) Executive is deemed to be a “specified @&ygé” within the meaning of Section 409A
(a)(2)(B)(i), (i) amounts or benefits under thigi@ement or any other program, plan or arrangewfahe Company or a controlled group
affiliate thereof are due or payable on accourtseparation from service” within the meaning of dsary Regulations Section 1.4094h) anc
(i) Executive is employed by a public companyaocontrolled group affiliate thereof: no paymemseunder that are “deferred compensatiol
subject to Section 409A shall be made to Execytii@ to the date that is six (6) months afterdlage of Executive’s separation from service
or, if earlier, Executive’s date of death; followiany applicable six (6) month delay, all such gethpayments will be paid in a single lump
sum on the earliest permissible payment date.

(c) Any payment or benefit due upon a termination oé&trive’'s employment that represents a “deferral of
compensation” within the meaning of Section 409Alsbommence to be paid or provided to Executivel@éys following a “separation from
service” as defined in Treas. Reg. § 1.409A-1(hyvided that Executive executes, if required byti®ecs(c)(ii), the release described therein,
within 60 days following his “separation from sex®i” Each payment made under this
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Agreement (including each separate installment gangrim the case of a series of installment paymeshizll be deemed to be a separate
payment for purposes of Section 409A. Amounts pkyander this Agreement shall be deemed not t ‘deferral of compensation” subject
to Section 409A to the extent provided in the exiogg in Treasury Regulation 8§ 1.409A-1(b)(4) @ethterm deferrals”) and (b)

(9) (“separation pay plans,” including the exceptimder subparagraph (iii)) and other applicabterigions of Section 409A. For purposes of
this Agreement, with respect to payments of anywartsthat are considered to be “deferred compeamsaubject to Section 409A, references

to “termination of employment”, “termination”, orawds and phrases of similar import, shall be deetoedfer to Executive’'sseparation fron
service” as defined in Section 409A, and shallrterpreted and applied in a manner that is comgistéh the requirements of Section 409A.

(d) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in thisrAgment, any payment or benefit under this Agre¢men
or otherwise that is exempt from Section 409A pansuo Treasury Regulation § 1.409A-1(b)(9)(v)(AXG) (relating to certain
reimbursements and in-kind benefits) shall be paidrovided to Executive only to the extent that éxpenses are not incurred, or the benefit:
are not provided, beyond the last day of the secatehdar year following the calendar year in wHinecutive’'s “separation from service”
occurs; and provided further that such expenseseardbursed no later than the last day of the tbaéndar year following the calendar year ir
which Executive’s “separation from service” occuii® the extent any indemnification payment, expeaeémbursement, or the provision of
any in-kind benefit is determined to be subjecémtion 409A (and not exempt pursuant to the méoitence or otherwise), the amount of any
such indemnification payment or expenses eligibieéimbursement, or the provision of any in-kirehéfit, in one calendar year shall not
affect the indemnification payment or provisionimkind benefits or expenses eligible for reimbumne@t in any other calendar year (except fo
any life-time or other aggregate limitation appliato medical expenses), and in no event shaliradgmnification payment or expenses be
reimbursed after the last day of the calendar fabxwing the calendar year in which Executive inead such indemnification payment or
expenses, and in no event shall any right to indiération payment or reimbursement or the provisidmny in-kind benefit be subject to
liquidation or exchange for another benefit. Aay gross-up payment or benefit under this Agreemiéhbe treated as providing for payment
at a specified time or on a fixed schedule of payi& the extent that the payment is made by nideoé Executive’s taxable year next
following Executive’s taxable year in which Exemetiremits the related taxes.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been dulscexed by the parties as of the date first writtbave.

HEMISPHERE MEDIA GROUP, INC

By: /s/ Alan J. Soko

Name: Alan J. Sokc
Title: President and Chief Executive Offic

ALEX J. TOLSTON

/sl Alex J. Tolstor
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Exhibit 10.10
EXECUTION COPY

AMENDED AND RESTATED EMPLOYMENT AND ADVISORY SERVIES AGREEMENT (the “ Agreemeri} dated a
of September 30, 2013, and effective as of AugRsPR13, by and among Televicentro of Puerto Ritd;, a Delaware limited liability
company (the * Company, Hemisphere Media Group, Inc., a Delaware coagion and indirect parent of the Company (* Hemespefi), and
Jose E. Ramos (* ExecutiVe

WHEREAS, Executive and the Company previously euaténto that certain Employment and Advisory Sessiégreement
dated as of November 2, 2010 (the “ Previous Ages#i);

WHEREAS, the Company desires to amend and restat@ic terms of the Previous Agreement and Exeetisiwvilling to
serve the Company for the period and upon suclr t¢hms and conditions of this Agreement; and

WHEREAS Executive’s agreement to enter into thisefgnent and be bound by the terms hereof, incluttiegestrictive
covenants herein, is a material inducement to Hameise's willingness to grant stock options andrietstd stock to Executive and Hemisphere
would not otherwise grant such stock options astticted stock to Executive if Executive did notegyto enter into this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agnents, provisions and covenants contained hexethintending to
be legally bound hereby, the parties hereto aggestaforth below:

1. Term. (a) The term of Executive’s employment undés fkgreement shall commence on August 22, 2013“(the
Effective Date'’) and shall continue until December 31, 2016 (tgnployment Expiration Dat®; provided, however, that Executive’s
employment under this Agreement may be terminat@satime pursuant to the provisions of SectiornTtie period of time from the Effective
Date through the termination Executive’s employntfereunder pursuant to its terms is herein refaoes the “ Employment Terfhiand the
combined period of time with the Advisory Servié&riod (defined below), unless sooner terminatetereinafter referred to as the “Term.”

(b) Executive agrees and acknowledges that the Comp#inyot extend the Employment Term or to continue
Executives employment following the Employment Expirationt®aand Executive expressly acknowledges that amises or understandin
to the contrary have been made or reached.

(c) For purposes of this Agreement, the following terassused herein, shall have the definitions sét fo
below.

“ Affiliate " means, with respect to any specified Person,cdhgr Person that directly or indirectly, througtemr more
intermediaries, Controls, is Controlled by, or ilar common Control with, such specified Persooyigied that, in any event, any business in
which the Company has any direct or indirect owiigrinterest shall be treated as an Affiliate &f @ompany.

“ Control” (including, with correlative meanings, the terf@ontrolled by” and “under common Control with”)s ased with respect
to any Person, means the direct or indirect porses$ the power to direct or cause the directibthe management or policies of such Persor
whether through the ownership of voting securitigscontract or otherwise.




“ Governmental Entity means any national, state, county, local, mumicgy other government or any court of competenisliction,
administrative agency or commission or other goremtal authority or instrumentality.

“ Person’ means any individual, firm, corporation, partrtéps limited liability company, trust, joint venteirassociation,
Governmental Entity, unincorporated entity or otbetity.

“ Plan” means the Hemisphere Media Group, Inc. 2013 Edaoitentive Plan.

2. Duties and Responsibilities(a) During the Employment Term, Executive agreebe employed and devote
substantially all of Executive’s business time affdrts to the Company and its Affiliates (includirwithout limitation, oversight of television
networks, WAPA America and WAPA 2 Deportes and \iteh¥VAPA.TV) and the promotion of its and theitarests and the performance of
Executive’s duties and responsibilities hereunddPi@sident and General Manager of WAPA-TV, a dimi®f the Company, upon the terms
and conditions of this Agreement. Executive shalform such lawful duties and responsibilitiesiaiscted from time to time by the Chief
Executive Officer of the Hemisphere (* CEPor his designee that are customary for PresidaedtGeneral Manager of a division of a
corporation of the size and nature of the Company.

(b) During the Term, Executive shall report directlythe CEO or the CEO’s designee. Executive
acknowledges that Executive’s duties and respditgbishall require Executive to travel on busm&sthe extent necessary to fully perform
Executive’s duties and responsibilities hereundetcept as otherwise provided herein, it is antitgp that Executive shall physically be on
Company premises (or traveling on Company busirdhgsig normal business hours (unless absent duacation, injury, illness or other
approved leave of absence).

(c) During the Term, Executive shall use Executivieést efforts to faithfully and diligently senfetCompan
and shall not act in any capacity that is in catflvith Executive’s duties and responsibilitieséherder; provided however, Executive may
manage Executive’s personal investments and afiaidsparticipate in non-profit, educational, ctedyie and civic activities, to the extent that
such activities do not interfere with the performaiof Executive’s duties hereunder, and are nobidlict with the business interests of the
Company or its Affiliates or otherwise compete viltle Company or its Affiliates. Except as providiedhe immediately preceding sentence,
for the avoidance of doubt, during the Term Exaushall not be permitted to become engaged iertar services for any Person other than
the Company and its Affiliates, and shall not benpted to be a member of the board of directorarof company, in any case without the
consent of the Company (for all purposes underAgieement, any required consent of the Company Isavidenced by a duly authorized
resolution of the Company’s board of directors @ad”)); provided however, that Executive may continiaeserve on any boards of directors
on which Executive is currently serving as of tHge&tive Date and set forth on Exhibit.A

3. Compensation and Related Matter6) Base Salary During the Employment Term, for all servicesdered unde
this Agreement, Executive shall receive an aggeegahual base salary (“ Base Salargt an initial rate of $650,000 through DecemBgr
2013; thereafter, beginning on January 1, 2014¢cixee shall receive a Base Salary at a rate o0 38D through December 31, 2014 (which
shall be increased to $650,000 on January 1, 26d%3a00,000 on January 1, 2016), payable in acooelaith the Company’s applicable
payroll practices. Base Salary shall be subjeot¥tew by the Board annually for any further irases, but not decreases, deemed necessary
appropriate in its sole discretion. ReferencatimAgreement to “ Base Saldrghall be deemed to refer to the most recentlgaiffe annual
base salary rate.




(b) Advisory Services Following Expiration of the Empinent Term.

0] Provided that Executive’s employment has not beeliee terminated pursuant to Section 4,
commencing on January 1, 2017 and ending Decemh@038 (the “ Advisory Services Perityd Executive’s employment with the Company
hereunder shall have terminated, and Executivé gtmlide certain “Advisory Services” (as definegeldw) to the Company on the terms
contained in this Section 3(b).

(i) During the Advisory Services Period, Executive bpadvide to the Company, as a consultant an
not as an employee, advice and recommendationg@gtiect to (i) existing and potential programmlingnses for the television station
WAPA-TV located in San Juan, Puerto Rico (the ti&t&"); (ii) pricing for advertising and other servicemndered by the Station; (iii) hiring
and personnel matters relating to the Station (ialg the hiring of the Station’s general manague general sales manager); and (iv) such
other matters relating to the business and operafithe Station as requested by the Company ¢feeybing, collectively, the * Advisory
Services'). Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contd herein, in no event shall Executive be requinezpend or devote more than
thirty six (36) hours per calendar month to thefgmenance of the Advisory Services except as Exeewtnd the Company shall otherwise a
in writing.

(iii) Executive shall not be required to be based inJs@n, Puerto Rico during the Advisory Services
Period in connection with the performance of theviddry Services, except that Executive agreeshbatill travel to the Station’s facilities
upon the reasonable request of the Company, &dahgany’s reasonable expense, consistent withagltand expense polices, in connectior
with the Advisory Services.

(iv) Subject to Section 4 hereof, in consideration efAllvisory Services, the Company shall pay
Executive during the Advisory Services Period cdiirsy fees at an annual rate of $250,000 (the “i8dwy Service Fe®), which shall be
earned and paid pro-rata on a bi-weekly basis mficzmity with the Company’s salary payment policies

(v) During the Advisory Services Period, Executive amkledges and agrees that (i) Executive wi
an independent contractor of the Company and netgsloyee of the Company or any of its Affiliatasd n othing contained in this
Agreement shall be construed to imply a joint vestpartnership or principal-agent or employmetfgtienship between the Company or any
of its Affiliates, on the one hand, and Executier,the other hand, (ii) Executive shall not have aght to act for, represent or otherwise bind
the Company or any of its Affiliates in any mannarless he receives prior express written permmssiao so from the Company as necessar
to perform the Advisory Services; (iii) neither Exgive nor any of his employees or service proadadrall be entitled to participate in any
employee benefit plans or programs of the Comparang of its Affiliates, and (iv) Executive shak besponsible for the payment of his
portion of any and all required federal, stateal@nd foreign taxes (including self-employmengegxincurred, or to be incurred, in connectior
with any amounts payable to Executive under thiss&ment, and Executive hereby agrees to indemnidyhald harmless the Company anc
Affiliates in relation to Executive’s failure to pany and all federal, state, local and foreigretague in any country, tax withholding and tax
deductions, and any interest and penalties appiier@on, on any earnings, payments or other comaiensmade with respect to this
Agreement and the Advisory Services provided heteun

(c) Equity. On August 22, 2013, Hemisphere granted Execupivesuant to, and subject to, the terms of the
Plan and an option grant certificate attached beastExhibit B, an option (the * Optiof) to purchase 60,000 shares of Hemisphere common
stock (the “ StocK). Each share




of Stock subject to the Option has an exerciseeprqual to the fair market value of a share of IStotthe date of grant. On August 22, 2013,
Hemisphere granted Executive pursuant to, and sutgjethe terms of the Plan and a restricted steckficate attached hereto as Exhibit C
60,000 restricted shares of Stock.

(d) Benefits and PerquisitesDuring the Employment Term, Executive shall hétked to participate in the
employee benefit plans and programs, including paiitions, generally available to other non-ur@oployees of the Company, except that
Executive shall not be entitled to receive a Chrést bonus or to participate in any other bonusraraghat may hereafter be provided to
Company employees. In addition, during the EmplegtiTerm, the Company shall provide Executive aihmedical benefits in accordance
with the terms of the Company’s medical benefinpdarrently entitled Triple SSS Group Medical Pérd (b) a company car (to be approved
by Hemisphere) and an appropriate level of inswgariexecutive shall be responsible for all requirantenance and gasoline expenses.
Executive further agrees that the vehicle will bieeh only by Executive or other authorized Compgaysonnel and that such vehicle will at
all times be maintained in a good condition, subjecormal wear and tear.

(e) Business Expense Reimbursemeni3uring the Term, the Company shall promptly teimse Executive
for Executive’s reasonable and necessary busingenses incurred in connection with performing Exise’s duties hereunder in accordance
with its then-prevailing policies and proceduresdrpense reimbursement (which shall include apjatgitemization and substantiation of
expenses incurred).

) Indemnification. The Company agrees that in the event Executiveriis threatened to be, made a par
any pending, contemplated or threatened actioh, athitration or other proceeding, whether cigiiminal, administrative or investigative, and
whether formal or informal (each a “ Proceedingdoy reason of the fact that Executive is or washad agreed to become, an officer,
employee, agent, representative or fiduciary of@Gbenpany and/or Hemisphere, or is or was servirtgeatequest of the Company as a board
member, officer, employee, agent or fiduciary ofther Person, the Company or Hemisphere shall indfgrand hold Executive harmless, to
the maximum extent permitted by the Comparyoverning documents or, if greater, by applicédohe (but not in any event in contravention
the Company'’s or Hemisphere’s governing documeatginst all expenses, damages, liabilities argebmcurred by Executive, providetht
Executive acted in good faith and in a manner tieateasonably believed to be in or not opposeledeést interests of the Company or
Hemisphere, and, with respect to any criminal Pedogy, had no reasonable cause to believe his comdis unlawful,_providedfurther, that
Executive shall not be entitled to any such inddiretion (A) in respect of any Proceeding basednupioattributable to Executive gaining in
fact any personal profit or advantage to whichsheat entitled or resulting from Executive’s fraleht, dishonest or willful misconduct, (B) to
the extent Executive has already received inderatifin or payment pursuant to the Company’s or ldpheére’s operating agreement or othel
governing documents, D&O insurance or otherwis@3)rin respect of any Proceeding initiated by Exieey unless the Company or
Hemisphere has joined in or the Board or Hemispbédmard of directors has authorized such Procgedixpenses incurred by Executive in
defending any claim shall be paid by the Companylemisphere in advance of the final dispositioswéh claim upon receipt by the Comp.
or Hemisphere of an undertaking by or on behalxdcutive to repay such amount if it shall be udtiely determined that Executive is not
entitled to be indemnified by the Company or Herée pursuant to this Section 3(i). To the extkatCompany or Hemisphere maintains ar
insurance policy covering the errors and omissaifriss Board members, members of Hemisphere’s bobdirectors and officers, Executive
shall be covered by such policy during the Emplogtieerm and for six years following Executive’srténation of employment
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in a manner no less favorable than Board membessibars of Hemisphere'’s board of directors and aifferers of the Company or
Hemisphere. Any amounts paid by Hemisphere oCivapany pursuant to this Section 3(f) shall be d=bto be paid by the other party, to
the extent required to avoid the duplication of @ayments hereunder.

4, Termination of Employment or Servicedi) Executive’s employment or the Advisory Sees may be terminated
by either party at any time and for any reasonvigied , however, that Executive shall be required to give the Camypat least 90 days
advance written notice of any voluntary resignatibiExecutive’s employment or termination of Adwig&ervices hereunder (and in such
event the Company in its sole discretion may dleetccelerate Executive’s date of termination opliyment or the Advisory Services, it
being understood that such termination shalllséltreated as a voluntary resignation for purpo$élsis Agreement). Notwithstanding the
foregoing, Executive’s employment or the Advisosn8ces shall automatically terminate upon Exe@isivdeath.

(b) Following any termination of Executiv@employment or Advisory Services, notwithstanding provisior
to the contrary in this Agreement, the obligatiofithe Company to pay or provide Executive with p@msation and benefits under Section 3
shall cease, and the Company shall have no fudthlegations to provide compensation or benefitExecutive hereunder except (i) for
payment of (x) any accrued but unpaid Base SalaAdwisory Service Fees, as applicable, throughdtite of termination, (y) any accrued but
unused vacation days, and (z) any unreimbursedneggainder Section 3(e), in each case accruedwréa through the date of termination of
employment or services, payable as soon as prhtdiead in all events within 30 days following ténation of employment or services, (ii) as
explicitly set forth in any other benefit planspgrams or arrangements applicable to terminatedoym®@s in which Executive participates,
other than severance plans or policies, and §idtherwise expressly required by applicable laviléctively, the “_Accrued Obligation.
For the avoidance of doubt, in the case of Exeeigideath, any payments to be made to Executimedordance with this Section 4 shall be
paid to Executive’s beneficiaries, devisees, hédgates or estate, as applicable.

(c) 0] Except as otherwise provided herein, if Executiveigployment is terminated by the Company
without Cause (other than due to death or Disglitis defined below), then Executive, in additiortite Accrued Obligations, shall be entitled
to receive an amount equal to Executive’s Baserg#iat Executive would have been entitled to reediad Executive continued to be
employed through the Employment Expiration Date (tseverance Paymeht The Severance Payment shall be paid duriegeimaining
portion of the Employment Term as if Executive ltadtinued to be employed through such date in anbatly equal installments consistent
with the Company’s payroll practices. If Executsvemployment is terminated by the Company with@atise during the Employment Term,
then Executive shall be entitled to one-half of Mtvisory Service Severance Payment (defined below)

(i) Except as otherwise provided herein, if the Compelagts to terminate the Advisory Services
without Cause (other than due to death or Disgbiliten Executive, in addition to the Accrued Odatigns, shall be entitled to receive an
amount equal to the Advisory Service Fee that Etvegwvould have been entitled to receive had Exeewtontinued to be engaged by the
Company through the expiration of the Advisory $&@s Period (the “ Advisory Service Severance Payt)e The Advisory Service
Severance Payment shall be paid during the rengapontion of the Advisory Services Period as if Exive had continued to be engaged
through such date in substantially equal instalitmeonsistent with the Company’s payroll practices.
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(iii) If Executive’s employment is terminated due to Hettiten Executive, in addition to the Accrued
Obligations, shall be entitled to receive the Eximets Base Salary through the end of the montihiich Executive’s death occurred. If
Executive’s employment is terminated by the Compdung to Disability, then Executive, in additiontbe Accrued Obligations, shall be
entitled to receive Executive’s Base Salary, thiotige earlier of (A) the Employment Expiration Dat®) 180 days after the date of Disability
or (C) the date of Executive’s death, which in eaabe shall be subject to offset on a dollar-fdfaddpasis for any amounts paid to Executive
under any Company benefit plan which provides inedatisability benefits.

(iv) If Executive’s Advisory Services are terminated dueeath, then Executive, in addition to the
Accrued Obligations, shall be entitled to receive Advisory Service Fee through the end of the momtvhich Executive’s death occurred. If
Executives Advisory Services are terminated by the Compargytd Disability, then Executive, in addition te@tAccrued Obligations, shall
entitled to receive the Advisory Service Fee, tigtothe earlier of (A) the termination of the Advig&ervices Period, (B) 180 days after the
date of Disability or (iii) the date of Executivedeath, which in each case shall be subject t@béfis a dollar-for-dollar basis for any amounts
paid to Executive under any Company benefit plaicivprovides income-disability benefits.

(v) Any payments or benefits under Section 4(c)(i))dijc 4(c)(iii) or 4(c)(iv) shall be
(A) conditioned upon Executive and the Company hguéxecuted a mutual, irrevocable waiver and génelease of claims substantially in a
form attached hereto as Exhibit(ihe “ Releasé) that has become effective in accordance withetms, (B) subject to Executive’s continued
compliance with the terms of this Agreement andgi@)ject to Section 25.

(vi) For purposes of this Agreement, “ Calisgeans: (A) Executive’s willful refusal to perforhis
duties for the Company, which refusal or failurmeéns uncured for 15 days after he receives writtgite from the CEO or the Board
demanding cure; (B) in carrying out his duties urttle Agreement, Executive engages in willful misdoct, or neglect, that in either case
causes material economic harm to the Company’'seonisphere’s business or reputation; (C) Executiweserial failure to comply with
Company policies, as now in existence or as magditar be modified or promulgated in writing andyided to Executive; (D) Executive’s
engagement in conduct which (x) constitutes a cranoffense, or (y) is or may be unlawful, to tresgible detriment of the Company, any of
its Affiliates or Executive’'s own reputation; or)(Executive’s indulgence in a pattern of impropedisorderly conduct, Executive’s failure to
perform his work in an efficient manner, or Exeeats performance or work belatedly, negligentlyroviolation of the Company’s standards

(vii) For purposes of this Agreement, “ Disabilitpneans Executive would be entitled to long-term
disability benefits under the Company’s long-terisedility plan as in effect from time to time, watlit regard to any waiting or elimination
period under such plan and assuming for the purpbsech determination that Executive is actuadiytigipating in such plan at such time. If
the Company does not maintain a long-term disghplian, “ Disability” means Executive’s inability to perform Executigeluties and
responsibilities hereunder due to physical or mélr&ss or incapacity that is expected to lastd@onsecutive period of 90 days or for a
period of 120 days in any 365 day period as detegthby the Board in its good faith judgment.

(d) Upon termination of Executive’s employment or seegi for any reason, upon the Company’s request
Executive agrees to resign, as of the date of ®rohination of employment or services or such ottade requested, from the Board and any
committees thereof (and, if applicable, from thadoloof directors (and any committees thereof) of Affiliate of the Company) to the extent
Executive is then serving thereon.




(e) The payment of any amounts accrued under any ligria@fi, program or arrangement in which Executive
participates shall be subject to the terms of fh@ieable plan, program or arrangement, and argtieles Executive has made thereunder.
Except as prohibited by the terms of any Compamefieplan, program or arrangement, the Company afsgt any amounts due and pay:
by Executive to the Company or its subsidiariedrejany amounts the Company owes Executive hesupdbvided, however, no offsets
shall be permitted against amounts that constitaferred compensation subject to Section 409A.eftxas set forth in this Section 4(e),
Executive shall be under no obligation to seek roémeployment or to otherwise mitigate the obligati@f the Company under this Agreement
and there shall be an offset on a dollar-for-ddiasis against amounts or benefits due to Executider this Agreement or otherwise on
account of any claim (other than any preexistingtgl¢hen due in accordance with their terms) then@my or its affiliates may have against
him or any remuneration or other benefit earnectoeived by the Executive after such termination.

5. Noncompetition and NonsolicitatianFor purposes of Sections 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10 dndfthis Agreement, references
to the Company shall include its subsidiaries affdidtes.

(a) Executive agrees that Executive shall not, whilerployee of the Company or serving as a consultant
during the Advisory Services Period and duringdhe-year period following termination of employmenthe Advisory Services, as
applicable, (such collective duration, the “ Resioin Period’), directly or indirectly, without the prior wrigh consent of the Company:

@ (A) engage in activities or businesses (includinthaut limitation by owning any interest in,
managing, controlling, participating in, consultwgh, advising, rendering services for, or in angnner engaging in the business of owning,
operating or managing any business) anywhere itk that are principally or primarily in the basss of producing or distributing Spanish
language media content, or owning or operating afigptelevision networks (* Competitive ActivitiBsor (B) assisting any Person in any way
to do, or attempt to do, anything prohibited bytBection 5(a)(i)(A) above; or

(i) perform any action, activity or course of condutiiah is substantially detrimental to the
businesses or business reputations of the Compariyding (A) soliciting, recruiting or hiring (attempting to solicit, recruit or hire) any
employees of the Company or Persons who have wddtgtle Company during the 12-month period immedyapreceding such solicitation,
recruitment or hiring or attempt thereof; (B) silitgy or encouraging (or attempting to solicit mceurage) any employee of the Company to
leave the employment of the Company; (C) intentigriaterfering with the relationship of the Compawith any Person who or which is
employed by or otherwise engaged to perform sesviwe or any customer, client, supplier, licendieensor or other business relation of, the
Company; or (D) assisting any Person in any wajotoor attempt to do, anything prohibited by Settga)(ii)(A), (B) or (C) above.

The Restriction Period shall be tolled during (ahdll be deemed automatically extended by) anyg@en which Executive
is in violation of the provisions of this Sectiotah

(b) The provisions of Section 5(a) shall not be deebredched as a result of (i) Executs@assive ownersh
of less than an aggregate of 3% of any class afrgexs of a Person engaged, directly or indiredtlyCompetitive Activities, so long as
Executive does not actively participate in the bass of such Person; providegldowever, that such stock is listed on a national secritie
exchange.




(c) Without limiting the generality of Section 11, ndtisstanding the fact that any provision of this tBet5 is
determined not to be specifically enforceable,Glaenpany may nevertheless be entitled to recoveretaonpdamages as a result of Executive’
material breach of such provision.

(d) Executive acknowledges that the Company has arfeagit business interest and right in protecting its
Confidential Information (as defined below), busisstrategies, employee and customer relationghigggioodwill, and that the Company
would be seriously damaged by the disclosure offi@ential Information and the loss or deterioratifrits business strategies, employee and
customer relationships and goodwill. Executiveresidedges that Executive is being provided wittngigant additional consideration (to
which Executive is not otherwise entitled), incluglistock options and restricted stock, to inducedakive to enter into this Agreement.
Executive expressly acknowledges and agrees tbhtaa every restraint imposed by this Agreemergasonable with respect to subject
matter, time period and geographical area. Exeelttirther acknowledges that although Executivetmgliance with the covenants contained
in Sections 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9 may prevent Execttv® earning a livelihood in a business similathte business of the Company, Executive’s
experience and capabilities are such that Exechtigeother opportunities to earn a livelihood ashelate means of support for Executive an
Executive’s dependents.

6. Nondisclosure of Confidential Information(i) Executive acknowledges that Executive id ahall become famili:
with the Company’s Confidential Information (asidefl below), including trade secrets, and that Htiee's services are of special, unique
and extraordinary value to the Company. Execudisknowledges that the Confidential Information aisd by Executive while employed by
the Company or serving as a consultant during tisdry Services Period is the property of the Camp Therefore, Executive agrees that
Executive shall not disclose to any unauthorizeg®&eor use for Executive’s own purposes any Centidl Information without the prior
written consent of the Company, unless and to xtene that the aforementioned matters become giyn&reown to and available for use by
the public other than as a result of Executivets ac omissions in violation of this Agreement; yided, however, that if Executive receives a
request to disclose Confidential Information purdua a deposition, interrogatory, request for infation or documents in legal proceedings,
subpoena, civil investigative demand, governmemtaégulatory process or similar process, (i) Exeeushall promptly notify in writing the
Company, and consult with and assist the Compasgéking a protective order or request for other@miate remedy, (ii) in the event that
such protective order or remedy is not obtainedf, the Company waives compliance with the termsbg Executive shall disclose only that
portion of the Confidential Information which, ing written opinion of Executive’s legal counsellegally required to be disclosed and shall
exercise reasonable best efforts to provide theataheiving Person shall agree to treat such Centiia Information as confidential to the
extent possible (and permitted under applicablg lawespect of the applicable proceeding or preeasl (iii) the Company shall be given an
opportunity to review the Confidential Informatiprior to disclosure thereof.

(b) For purposes of this Agreement, “ Confidential nfiation” means information, observations and data
concerning the business or affairs of the Compartjyding, without limitation, all business infortian (whether or not in written form) whic
relates to the Company, or its customers, suppdiecentractors or any other third parties in respé which the Company has a business
relationship or owes a duty of confidentiality,tbeir respective businesses or products, and whiobt known to the public generally other
than as a result of Executive’s breach of this Agrent, including but not limited to: technical infwation or reports; formulas; trade secrets;
unwritten knowledge and “know-how”; operating ingttions; training manuals; customer lists; customsying
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records and habits; product sales records and demtgirand product development, marketing and s#laegies; market surveys; marketing
plans; profitability analyses; product cost; loragrge plans; information relating to pricing, conipet strategies and new product
development; information relating to any forms ofrgpensation or other personnel-related informationtracts; and supplier lists.
Confidential Information will not include such infoation known to Executive prior to Executive’s aiwement with the Company or
information rightfully obtained from a third parfgther than pursuant to a breach by ExecutiveisfAlyreement). Without limiting the
foregoing, Executive agrees to keep confidentialgkistence of, and any information concerning, dgisgute between Executive and the
Company, except that Executive may disclose inféionaconcerning such dispute to his immediate fand the court that is considering such
dispute or to Executive’s legal counsel and othefgssional advisors (provided that such counselather advisors agree not to disclose any
such information other than as necessary to theegrdion or defense of such dispute).

(c) Except as expressly set forth otherwise in thisegrent, Executive agrees that Executive shall isotabe
the terms of this Agreement, except to Executivie@snediate family and Executive’s financial anddegdvisors, or as may be required by law
or ordered by a court. Executive further agreas dhny disclosure to Executive’s financial or legdvisors shall only be made after such
advisors acknowledge and agree to maintain thademifality of this Agreement and its terms.

(d) Executive further agrees that Executive will nopiaperly use or disclose any confidential inforroator
trade secrets, if any, of any former employersnyr @her Person to whom Executive has an obligasfaronfidentiality, and will not bring
onto the premises of the Company any unpublishedrdents or any property belonging to any formerleygr or any other Person to whom
Executive has an obligation of confidentiality sdeconsented to in writing by the former employreother Person.

7. Return of Property Executive acknowledges that all notes, memoraspizcifications, devices, formulas, records,
files, lists, drawings, documents, models, equipimgroperty, computer, software or intellectualgedy relating to the businesses of the
Company, in whatever form (including electronia)daall copies thereof, that are received or crebyeBxecutive while an employee of the
Company or its subsidiaries or Affiliates or a adtent during the Advisory Services Period (inchglbut not limited to Confidential
Information and Inventions (as defined below)) amd shall remain the property of the Company, axetHtive shall immediately return such
property to the Company upon the termination ofdtxi@e’s employment and, in any event, at the Camjzarequest. Executive further
agrees that any property situated on the premisesd owned by, the Company, including disks athéiostorage media, filing cabinets or
other work areas, is subject to inspection by tbe@any’s personnel at any time with or without ceti

8. Intellectual Property Rights (i) Executive agrees that the results and mds®f Executive’s services (including
consulting services) for the Company (includingt, tot limited to, any trade secrets, products,isesy processes, know-how, designs,
developments, innovations, analyses, drawings rtgpechniques, formulas, methods, developmentakperimental work, improvements,
discoveries, inventions, ideas, source and objebts, programs, matters of a literary, musicalnaitéc or otherwise creative nature, writings
and other works of authorship) resulting from seegiperformed while an employee or consultant®Qbmpany and any works in progress,
whether or not patentable or registrable under ggpt/or similar statutes, that were made, develppenceived or reduced to practice or
learned by Executive, either alone or jointly watthers (collectively, * Inventiony, shall be works-made-for-hire and the Companrgliste
deemed the sole owner throughout the universey#fad all trade secret, patent, copyright and atitetlectual property rights (collectively, “
Proprietary Right8) of whatsoever nature therein, whether or not mowereafter known, existing, contemplated,
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recognized or developed, with the right to usesdm@e in perpetuity in any manner the Company détesrin its sole discretion, without any
further payment to Executive whatsoever. If, foy aeason, any of such results and proceeds shidikgally be a work-made-for-hire and/or
there are any Proprietary Rights which do not az¢touthe Company under the immediately precedintgsee, then Executive hereby
irrevocably assigns and agrees to assign any aofiEkecutive’s right, title and interest theretagluding any and all Proprietary Rights of
whatsoever nature therein, whether or not now cedfter known, existing, contemplated, recognizedeveloped, to the Company, and the
Company shall have the right to use the same ipgpeity throughout the universe in any manner deitezd by the Company without any
further payment to Executive whatsoever. As to lawgntion that Executive is required to assigne&rive shall promptly and fully disclose
to the Company all information known to Executivencerning such Invention.

(b) Executive agrees that, from time to time, as mageheested by the Company and at the Company’s sole
cost and expense, Executive shall do any andiatjsithat the Company may reasonably deem usefiggirable to establish or document the
Company’s exclusive ownership throughout the Un8éates of America or any other country of any alh@roprietary Rights in any such
Inventions, including the execution of appropriedg@yright and/or patent applications or assignmeftsthe extent Executive has any
Proprietary Rights in the Inventions that cannoabsigned in the manner described above, Exeautiwenditionally and irrevocably waives
the enforcement of such Proprietary Rights. Tleisti®n 8(b) is subject to and shall not be deeroduirit, restrict or constitute any waiver by
the Company of any Proprietary Rights of ownersbiphich the Company may be entitled by operatiblaw by virtue of the Company’s
being Executive’s employer. Executive further agréhat, from time to time, as may be requestethéyCompany and at the Company’s sole
cost and expense, Executive shall assist the Coyripavery proper and lawful way to obtain and frome to time enforce Proprietary Rights
relating to Inventions in any and all countriesxe€itive shall execute, verify and deliver suchutnents and perform such other acts
(including appearances as a witness) as the Compagyeasonably request for use in applying fotaioing, perfecting, evidencing,
sustaining, and enforcing such Proprietary Rightsthe assignment thereof. In addition, Execusivall execute, verify and deliver
assignments of such Proprietary Rights to the Compaits designees. Executive’s obligations untier Section 8 shall continue beyond the
termination of Executive’s employment or servicathvwhe Company.

(c) Executive hereby waives and quitclaims to the Camzmy and all claims, of any nature whatsoevex, th
Executive now or may hereafter have for infringet@rany Proprietary Rights assigned hereundengéddompany.

9. Nondisparagement Executive shall not, whether in writing or oyalinalign, denigrate or disparage the Company,
its respective predecessors and successors, avfdlad respective current or former directorsiceifs, employees, shareholders, partners,
members, agents or representatives of any of tiegding, with respect to any of their respectivstga present activities, or otherwise publish
(whether in writing or orally) statements that teéagortray any of the aforementioned parties inafavorable light; provided that nothing
herein shall or shall be deemed to prevent or impa¢cutive from, in the course of and consisteiti Wis duties for the Company, making
public comments which include good faith, candiscdissions, or acknowledgements regarding the Coyigoparformance or business, or
discussing other officers, directors, and employe&®nnection with normal performance evaluati@mrptherwise testifying truthfully in any
legal or administrative proceeding where suchrestiy is compelled, or requested or from otherwmamlying with legal requirements. The
Company shall not, and shall instruct its seni@ceives not to, whether in writing or orally, ngadi denigrate or disparage Executive, or
otherwise publish (whether in writing or orallyatgments
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that tend to portray Executive in an unfavoralgéti provided that nothing herein shall or shalideemed to prevent or impair the Company ¢
any such executives discussing Executive in comoreetith normal performance evaluations or frontifgmg truthfully in any legal or
administrative proceeding where such testimonympelled, or requested or from otherwise complyisitl legal requirements.

10. Notification of Subsequent Employdexecutive hereby agrees that prior to accegmgloyment with, or agreeit
to provide services to, any other Person duringperiod during which Executive remains subjectrig af the covenants set forth in Section 5
Executive shall provide such prospective employign written notice of such provisions of this Agneent, with a copy of such notice
delivered simultaneously to the Company.

11. Remedies and Injunctive RelidExecutive acknowledges that a violation by Exieeuof any of the covenants
contained in Section 5, 6, 7, 8 or 9 would caussparable damage to the Company in an amount thaltvibe material but not readily
ascertainable, and that any remedy at law (inclytie payment of damages) would be inadequateordiwly, Executive agrees that,
notwithstanding any provision of this Agreementtte contrary, the Company, shall be entitled (wititbe necessity of showing economic
or other actual damage) to injunctive relief (irdihg temporary restraining orders, preliminary igtions and/or permanent injunctions) in
court of competent jurisdiction for any actual loretatened breach of any of the covenants setifoSection 5, 6, 7, 8 or 9 in addition to any
other legal or equitable remedies it may have. dileeeding sentence shall not be construed asvema the rights that the Company may
have for damages under this Agreement or othenaise all of the Company’s rights shall be unretgdc

12. Representations of Executive; Advit€ounsel. (a) Executive represents, warrants and coveribat as of the
date hereof: (i) Executive has the full right,tearity and capacity to enter into this Agreemerd parform Executive’s obligations hereunder,
(ii) Executive is not bound by any agreement ttoaiflicts with or prevents or restricts the full figmance of Executive’s duties and
obligations to the Company hereunder during orr afte Term and (iii) the execution and deliventtig Agreement shall not result in any
breach or violation of, or a default under, anysérg obligation, commitment or agreement to wHitecutive is subject.

(b) Executive represents that, priorteaition of this Agreement, Executive has beensaivby an attorney
of Executivé s own selection regarding this Agreement. Exeeutitknowledges that Executive has entered intcMisement knowingly an



voluntarily and with full knowledge and understamglof the provisions of this Agreement after bajigen the
opportunity to consult with counsel. Executivethi@r represents that in entering into this Agredirexecutive is not relying on any statem
or representations made by any of the Companyézttirs, officers, employees or agents which arerptessly set forth herein, and that
Executive is relying only upon Executive’s own judignt and any advice provided by Executive’s attprne

13. Cooperation Executive agrees that, upon reasonable notidevithout the necessity of the Company obtaining a
subpoena or court order, Executive shall providseoeable cooperation in connection with any sattpa or proceeding (or any appeal from
any suit, action or proceeding), and any investigaand/or defense of any claims asserted aganysbfaExecutive and the Company, its
respective Affiliates, their respective predecessod successors, and all of the respective cusrdntmer directors, officers, employees,
shareholders, partners, members, agents or repatisen of any of the foregoing, which relatesergs occurring during Executive’s
employment or services with the Company and itdliAfés as to which Executive may have relevantrimfation
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(including but not limited to furnishing relevamformation and materials to the Company or itsglese and/or providing testimony at
depositions and at trial), provided that with repe such cooperation occurring following terminatof employment or services, the
Company shall reimburse Executive for expensesredmy incurred in connection therewith, and furtpevided that any such cooperation
occurring after the termination of Executive’'s enyphent or services shall be scheduled to the eréasonably practicable so as not to
unreasonably interfere with Executive’s businesgaysonal affairs.

14. Withholding Taxes The Company may deduct and withhold from anyam®payable under this Agreement such
Federal, state, local, non-U.S. or other taxegasaguired or permitted to be withheld pursuarang applicable law or regulation.

15. Assignment (a) This Agreement is personal to Executive witbdout the prior written consent of the Company
shall not be assignable by Executive, except feratssignment by will or the laws of descent antfidigtion of any accrued pecuniary interest
of Executive, and any assignment in violation @ thgreement shall be void. The Company may adsignAgreement, and its rights and
obligations hereunder, to any of its Affiliates.

(b) This Agreement shall be binding amd ahall inure to the benefit of, the parties tant their respective
heirs, legal representatives, successors and pednaissigns (including, without limitation, sucagssby merger, consolidation, sale or similar
transaction, and, in the event of Executive’s delaiecutive’s estate and heirs in the case of ayynents due to Executive hereunder).

(c) Executive acknowledges and agreesathaf Executive’s covenants and obligationste €Company, as
well as the rights of the Company and its Affilateereunder, shall run in favor of and shall beer@able by the Company or its Affiliates and
its successors and assigns.

16. Governing Law; No Construction AgaiBsafter. This Agreement shall be deemed to be made iSthie of
Delaware, and the validity, interpretation, constien, and performance of this Agreement in alpeeds shall be governed by the laws of the
State of Delaware without regard to its principtésonflicts of law. No provision of this Agreentasr any related document will be construed
against or interpreted to the disadvantage of amiy hereto by any court or other governmentalidigial authority by reason of such party
having or being deemed to have structured or dtafteh provision.

17. Consent to Jurisdiction; Waiver ofyJiirial . (a) Except as otherwise specifically provideddin, Executive, the
Company and its Affiliates each hereby irrevocahlpmits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Unitethtes District Court for the District of
Delaware (or, if subject matter jurisdiction in tltaurt is not available, in any state court lodatéthin the State of Delaware) over any dispute
arising out of or relating to this Agreement. Bxtcas otherwise specifically provided in this Agremt, the parties undertake not to commenc
any suit, action or proceeding arising out of datiag to this Agreement in a forum other than mufo described in this Section 17(a);
provided, however, that nothing herein shall preclude the Compaasnfbringing any suit, action or proceeding in attyeo court for the
purposes of enforcing the provisions of this Secfi@ or enforcing any judgment obtained by the Camyp

(b) The agreement of the parties to tmarh described in Section 17(a) is independerth®idaw that may be
applied in any suit, action, or proceeding andpthrties agree to such forum even if such forum oraer applicable law choose to apply non-
forum law. The parties hereby waive, to the fullegent permitted by applicable law, any objectidrich they now or hereafter have to
personal jurisdiction or to the laying of venueaofy such suit, action or proceeding brought in an
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applicable court described in Section 17(a), aedpdrties agrees that they shall not attempt ty dedefeat such personal jurisdiction by
motion or other request for leave from any suchrtcolihe parties agree that, to the fullest expentnitted by applicable law, a final and non-
appealable judgment in any suit, action or proaggtrought in any applicable court described inti8acl7(a) shall be conclusive and binding
upon the parties and may be enforced in any othiediiction.

(c) The parties hereto irrevocably conserthe service of any and all process in any; suiion or proceeding
arising out of or relating to this Agreement by thailing of copies of such process to such parguah party’s address specified in Section 22

(d) Each party hereto hereby waivesh&ftllest extent permitted by applicable law, aigit it may have to
trial by jury in respect of any suit, action or peeding arising out of or relating to this Agreemenach party hereto (i) certifies that no
representative, agent or attorney of any otheypes represented, expressly or otherwise, that gaty would not, in the event of any action,
suit or proceeding, seek to enforce the foregoiagy@r and (ii) acknowledges that it and the othatyphereto has been induced to enter into
this Agreement by, among other things, the mutw@l@r and certifications in this Section 17(d).

(e) Each party shall bear its own cosats expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fedeapenses)
incurred in connection with any dispute arising olbr relating to this Agreement; provided thhg Company shall reimburse the Executive
for reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses textieat that Executive substantially prevails aa toaterial issue with respect to any matters
subject to dispute hereunder.

18. Amendment; No WaiverNo provisions of this Agreement may be amendweajified, waived or discharged exc
by a written document signed by Executive and & duthorized officer of the Company (other than&xive). The failure of a party to insist
upon strict adherence to any term of this Agreernardany occasion shall not be considered a waiveunch partys rights or deprive such pa
of the right thereafter to insist upon strict adimee to that term or any other term of this Agresim@lo failure or delay by either party in
exercising any right or power hereunder will opera$ a waiver thereof, nor will any single or @antixercise of any such right or power, or
abandonment of any steps to enforce such a righdwer, preclude any other or further exercisedbior the exercise of any other right or
power.

19. Severability If any term or provision of this Agreement isatid, illegal or incapable of being enforced byan
applicable law or public policy, all other condit®and provisions of this Agreement shall nonettsetemain in full force and effect so long as
the economic and legal substance of the transactiontemplated by this Agreement is not affecteaihiyn manner materially adverse to any
party; provided however, that if any term or provision of Section 5, 687r 9 is invalid, illegal or incapable of beingferced by any
applicable law or public policy, all other condit®and provisions of this Agreement shall nonetisefemain in full force and effect to the
fullest extent permitted by law; provided furthehat in the event that any court of competerisgliction shall finally hold in a non-appealable
judicial determination that any provision of Sentl, 6, 7, 8 or 9 (whether in whole or in party@d or constitutes an unreasonable restric
against Executive, such provision shall not be eeed void but shall be deemed to be modified tariemum extent necessary to make such
provision enforceable for the longest duration Hredgreatest scope as such court may determindtatess a reasonable restriction under the
circumstances. Subject to the foregoing, upon sietbrmination that any term or other provisiomislid, illegal or incapable of being
enforced, the parties hereto shall negotiate irddaith to modify this Agreement so as to effee triginal intent of the
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parties as closely as possible in a mutually aed¥@tmanner in order that the transactions contateglhereby be consummated as originally
contemplated to the fullest extent possible.

20. Entire AgreementThis Agreement, including the Exhibits heretonstitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the Company and Executiveregipect to the subject matter hereof and supessabprior agreements and
understandings (whether written or oral), betweredttive and the Company (including, without lintida, the Previous Agreement), relating
to such subject matter; for the avoidance of dokécutive shall not be entitled to any amounts ithay have been previously due, owed,
payable, or hereafter earned, under the headinigptition Bonus” set forth in Section 4 of the\Roes Agreement. None of the parties shall
be liable or bound to any other party in any maroyeany representations and warranties or covemalatng to such subject matter except as
specifically set forth herein.

21. Survival The rights and obligations of the parties urtberprovisions of this Agreement shall survive, aghain
binding and enforceable, notwithstanding the exisineof the Term, the termination of this Agreemehe termination of Executive’s
employment or services hereunder or any settlewfaht financial rights and obligations arisingrfr&&xecutive’s employment or services
hereunder, to the extent necessary to preseniatdreled benefits of such provisions.

22. Notices All notices or other communications requiregermitted to be given hereunder shall be in writingl
shall be delivered by hand or sent by facsimilelectronic image scan (pdf) or sent, postage pdepgiregistered, certified or express mail or
overnight courier service and shall be deemed giviaen so delivered by hand or facsimile, or if redjlthree days after mailing (one business
day in the case of express mail or overnight cowégvice) to the parties at the following addressefacsimiles or email addresses (or at suct
other address for a party as shall be specifielikbynotice):

If to the Company Hemisphere Media Group, In
2000 Ponce de Leon Blvd, Suite £
Coral Gables, FL 3314
Attention: Legal Departmel

With a copy (which shall not constitute notice hader) to:

Paul, Weiss, Rifkind, Wharton & Garrison LI
1285 Avenue of the Americ:

New York, NY 1001-6064

Fax: (212) 75-3990

Attention: Jeffrey D. Marell, Est

Email: jmarell@paulweiss.col

If to Executive: Jose E. Ramc
At the most recent address and fax or email in Gompersonnel recort
Notices delivered by facsimile shall have the s#gal effect as if such notice had been delivenggakeirson

23. Headings and ReferenceBhe headings of this Agreement are inserted¢dovenience only and neither constitu
part of this Agreement nor affect in any way theamiag or
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interpretation of this Agreement. When a referandhis Agreement is made to a Section, such eefsg shall be to a Section of this
Agreement unless otherwise indicated.

24, CounterpartsThis Agreement may be executed in one or mou@teoparts (including via facsimile and electronic
image scan (pdf)), each of which shall be deemdsttan original, but all of which together shalhstitute one and the same instrument and
shall become effective when one or more countespeate been signed by each of the parties andedetivto the other parties.

25. Section 409A

€) For purposes of this Agreement, “tBac409A” means Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Cdde o
1986, as amended (the “ Cdjeand the Treasury Regulations promulgated thedeu (and such other Treasury or Internal Revemuei&
guidance) as in effect from time to time. The jgarintend that any amounts payable hereundecthad constitute “deferred compensation”
within the meaning of Section 409A will be compliavith Section 409A or exempt from Section 409A0thithstanding the foregoing, the
Company shall not be liable to, and the Executhadlde solely liable and responsible for, any sa@epenalties that may be imposed on such
Executive under Section 409A of the Code with respeExecutive’s receipt of payments hereunder.

(b) Notwithstanding anything in this Agreent to the contrary, the following special riialsapply, if and to
the extent required by Section 409A, in the evkat (i) Executive is deemed to be a “specified eygd” within the meaning of Section 409A
(@)(2)(B)(i), (i) amounts or benefits under thigil®ement or any other program, plan or arrangewfahie Company or a controlled group
affiliate thereof are due or payable on accouriseparation from service” within the meaning of dsary Regulations Section 1.4094k) anc
(iii) Executive is employed by a public companyaocontrolled group affiliate thereof: no paymemtseunder that are “deferred compensatiol
subject to Section 409A shall be made to Execuyiii@ to the date that is six (6) months afterdiage of Executive’s separation from service
or, if earlier, Executive’s date of death; followiany applicable six (6) month delay, all such gethpayments will be paid in a single lump
sum on the earliest permissible payment date.

(c) Any payment or benefit due upon aiieation of Executive’s employment or services tlegiresents a
“deferral of compensation” within the meaning otsen 409A shall commence to be paid or provideBixecutive 61 days following a
“separation from service” as defined in Treas. Ref.409A-1(h), provided that Executive executesequired by Section 4(c)(v), the release
described therein, within 60 days following hisgaeation from service.” Each payment made underAgreement (including each separate
installment payment in the case of a series oélmsént payments) shall be deemed to be a sepaagiteent for purposes of Section 409A.
Amounts payable under this Agreement shall be dderoeto be a “deferral of compensati@ubject to Section 409A to the extent provide
the exceptions in Treasury Regulation 88 1.409A{#)(“short-term deferrals”) and (b)(9) (“sepaaatipay plans,” including the exception
under subparagraph (iii)) and other applicable igious of Section 409A. For purposes of this Agreat, with respect to payments of any
amounts that are considered to be “deferred conagiens subject to Section 409A, references to “feation of employment”, “termination”,
or words and phrases of similar import, shall bended to refer to Executive’s “separation from seaVias defined in Section 409A, and shall
be interpreted and applied in a manner that isistam with the requirements of Section 409A.

(d) Notwithstanding anything to the camyrin this Agreement, any payment or benefit uridisr Agreement
or otherwise that is exempt from Section 409A pandio Treasury Regulation 8§ 1.409A-1(b)(9)(v)(AXG) (relating to certain
reimbursements and in-kind
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benefits) shall be paid or provided to Executiveyda the extent that the expenses are not incumethe benefits are not provided, beyond the
last day of the second calendar year followingddlendar year in which Executive’s “separation freenvice”occurs; and provided further tt
such expenses are reimbursed no later than theédgsif the third calendar year following the calenyear in which Executive’s “separation
from service” occurs. To the extent any indematfion payment, expense reimbursement, or the poovaf any in-kind benefit is determined
to be subject to Section 409A (and not exempt @msto the prior sentence or otherwise), the amotiahy such indemnification payment or
expenses eligible for reimbursement, or the prowisif any in-kind benefit, in one calendar yeaidlshat affect the indemnification payment or
provision of in-kind benefits or expenses eligifidereimbursement in any other calendar year (eixfmmny life-time or other aggregate
limitation applicable to medical expenses), andarevent shall any indemnification payment or exsgsrbe reimbursed after the last day of
calendar year following the calendar year in wiisfecutive incurred such indemnification paymengxpenses, and in no event shall any 1
to indemnification payment or reimbursement orgthevision of any in-kind benefit be subject to lidation or exchange for another benefit.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been dulscexed by the parties as of the date first writtbave.

TELEVICENTRO OF PUERTO RICO, LLC

By: /s/ Alan J. Soko

Name: Alan J. Sokc
Title: Presiden

HEMISPHERE MEDIA GROUP, INC

By: /s/ Alan J. Soko

Name: Alan J. Sokc
Title: President and Chief Executive Offic

JOSE E. RAMOS

/sl Jose E. Ramc
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Exhibit 10.11

EXECUTION COPY

_.-'

HEM _SPHERE

MEBIA GROUPR

October 10, 2013

Mr. Nicolas J. Valls
5801 Suncrest Drive
Pinecrest, FL 33156
njvalls@gmail.com

Re: Offer of Employment
Dear Mr. Valls:

This letter sets forth the terms and conditiongafr employment with Hemisphere Media Group, lad}elaware corporation (the “
Company’). If these terms and conditions are agreeabl@tg please sign and date a copy of this lettéhénspace provided below and return
it to me. Certain capitalized terms used heredall $tave the meaning set forth in the “Appendix’thés letter (attached hereto).

1. You will be initially employed as &sutive Vice President, Advertising Sales, commamoin or about October 22, 2013.
Your duties will initially include overseeing althaertising sales for the Company, including, withtimitation, any advertising supported
television networks now or hereafter owned, in veha in part, and/or controlled (directly or inditly) by the Company (other than local sales
for Televicentro of Puerto Rico, LLC (* WARAV ). With respect to WAPAFV, you shall be responsible for overseeing natispat sales
You shall devote substantially all of your busintse and efforts to the Company and its Affiliatexl perform youduties and responsibiliti
consistent with the policies, procedures and prastof the Company. You shall report directlytte €hief Executive Officer of the Company
(* CEO") or the CEO'’s designee and perform such lawfuletuand responsibilities as directed from timértee by the CEO or his designee.

2. Your annual base salary will be patid rate of US$300,000 per year, payable in decme with the Company’s applicable
payroll practices as are in effect from time todinmAt this time, salaries are paid on a bi-montidgis.

3. During your employment with the Camnp, you shall have the opportunity to earn (i)rtgrdy bonuses (for the Company’s
fiscal quarters ended March 31, June 30, SepteBhand December 31 (each a “ Quarterly Bdhuand (ii) and an annual bonus (the “
Annual Bonus). A Quarterly Bonus shall be based on your penfance against specified objective performanceriait* Quarterly
Performance Goal3 established by the CEO or the CEO’s designeedimsultation with you) prior to or as soon as ficable following each
fiscal quarter, subject to your continued employhweith the Company through March 31, June 30, Sep&r 30 and December 31, as
applicable, of each such calendar year. Your targe
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Quarterly Bonus for each fiscal quarter ended M&thJune 30, September 30 and December 31 ofedendar year shall be US$18,750
(increasing to US$28,125 from and after the dageQbmpany acquires additional ad-supported tetavisetworks or the date on which Cine
Latino, Inc. is converted to an ad-supported tslewvi network). An Annual Bonus shall be based erfiqgmance against specified objective
performance criteria (* Annual Performance Gdalsstablished by the CEO or the CEO’s designeedimsultation with you) prior to or as
soon as practicable following each calendar yednjest to your continued employment with the Comyptimough December 31 of each such
calendar year. Your target Annual Bonus shallfdd$$25,000 (increasing to US$37,500 from and dfterdate the Company acquires
additional ad-supported television networks ordage on which Cine Latino, Inc. is converted tadrsupported television network).

Any Quarterly Bonus payable for any fiscal quadieall be paid in cash as soon as practicable follgpthe determination of the
Company’s performance results for such fiscal graltut in no event later than seventy five (75)sdallowing the end of a fiscal quarter to
which such Quarterly Bonus relates. For the avaidaf doubt, you shall not be entitled to a QuirtBonus for the quarter ended
December 31, 2013.

Any Annual Bonus payable for any calendar yearldfeapaid in cash as soon as practicable followlgdetermination of the
Company'’s performance results for such calendar, Y& in no event later than March 15th of theendhr year following the calendar year to
which such Annual Bonus relates. For the avoidari@®ubt, you shall not be entitled to an AnnuahBs for the year ended December 31,
2013.

4, The Company shall grant to you (sabfo the approval of the Company’s Board of Dimes), pursuant to, and subject to,
the terms of the Plan and an option grant certéican option (the “ Optiot) to purchase 40,000 shares of the Company’s comsiack (the “
Stock™). Each share of Stock subject to the Optiondrasxercise price equal to the fair market value siare of Stock on the date of grant.

5. You will also be eligible to parpieite in such benefit programs as the Company mats discretion, from time to time
maintain for employees of your level. The Compargressly reserves the right to modify, substituteliminate such benefits at any time.

6. You will be eligible to accrue fifte (15) days of vacation during your first yeaeofployment and take such vacation in
accordance with Company policy.

7. You will be expected to abide by@dimpany policies and will be required to acknowledeceipt of the basic employment
policies handbook as well as various Company mamamhre in effect from time to time.

8. You acknowledge that in the courSgonr employment with the Company, you shall beedamiliar with the Company’s
Confidential Information, including trade secregad that your services are of special, unique axtra@)rdmary value to the Company. You
acknowledge that the Confidential Information obéal by you while employed by the Company is theerty of the Company. Therefore,
you agree that you shall not disclose to




unauthorized Person or use for your own purposeCamfidential Information without the prior writteronsent of the Company, unless and to
the extent that the aforementioned matters becanerglly known to and available for use by the fulither than as a result of your acts or
omissions in violation of this letter.

9. You agree that you shall not diseltd®e contents of this letter, except to your imiaedfamily and your financial and legal
advisors, or as may be required by law or ordeyed tourt. You further agree that any disclosargaur financial or legal advisors shall only
be made after such advisors acknowledge and agreaihtain the confidentiality of this letter aridl ierms.

10. You further agree that you will notgraperly use or disclose any confidential inforroator trade secrets, if any, of any
former employers or any other Person to whom youe lzan obligation of confidentiality, and will notibbg onto the premises of the Company
any unpublished documents or any property belontgirany former employer or any other Person to wiyomhave an obligation of
confidentiality unless consented to in writing b former employer or other Person.

11. You acknowledge that all notes, memdaa specifications, devices, formulas, recordss fiists, drawings, documents,
models, equipment, property, computer, softwari@teflectual property relating to the businessethefCompany, in whatever form (including
electronic), and all copies thereof, that are nesior created by you while an employee of the Camgpor its subsidiaries or Affiliates
(including but not limited to Confidential Informan and Inventions (as defined below)) are and skadain the property of the Company, and
you shall immediately return such property to tltempany upon the termination of your employmentdioy reason and, in any event, at
Company’s request. You further agree that any gntgsituated on the premises of, and owned byCtirapany, including disks and other
storage media, filing cabinets or other work ar&asubject to inspection by the Company’s persbanany time with or without notice.

12. You agree that the results and prazeégour services for the Company (including, boit limited to, any trade secrets,
products, services, processes, know-how, desigvelapments, innovations, analyses, drawings, tepchniques, formulas, methods,
developmental or experimental work, improvemenitscaleries, inventions, ideas, source and objed¢soprograms, matters of a literary,
musical, dramatic or otherwise creative naturetimgs and other works of authorship) resulting freanvices performed while an employee or
consultant of the Company and any works in progneblsther or not patentable or registrable undpyight or similar statutes, that were
made, developed, conceived or reduced to practi@mamed by you, either alone or jointly with athécollectively, “ Inventions), shall be
works-made-for-hire and the Company shall be deeimedole owner throughout the universe of anyahiiade secret, patent, copyright and
other intellectual property rights (collectivelyPtoprietary Right8) of whatsoever nature therein, whether or not mowereafter known,
existing, contemplated, recognized or developeth thie right to use the same in perpetuity in amyner the Company determines in its sole
discretion, without any further payment to you veotver. If, for any reason, any of such resultsmceeds shall not legally be a work-
made-for-hire and/or there are any Proprietary Rigthich do not accrue to the Company under
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the immediately preceding sentence, then you hdredyocably assign and agree to assign any araf gtur right, title and interest thereto,
including any and all Proprietary Rights of whatssrenature therein, whether or not now or here&ftemwn, existing, contemplated,
recognized or developed, to the Company, and tlregaay shall have the right to use the same in paitpehroughout the universe in any
manner determined by the Company without any funtla@ment to you whatsoever. As to any Inventiat {/ou are required to assign, you
shall promptly and fully disclose to the Companlirgfiormation known to you concerning such InventioYou hereby waive and quitclaim to
the Company any and all claims, of any nature vdeatsr, that you now or may hereafter have for mgeiment of any Proprietary Rights
assigned hereunder to the Company.

13. You shall not, whether in writing aally, malign, denigrate or disparage the Compésyespective predecessors and
successors, and all of the respective currentrandodirectors, officers, employees, shareholgmgners, members, agents or representative:
of any of the foregoing, with respect to any ofitlespective past or present activities, or othigevpublish (whether in writing or orally)
statements that tend to portray any of the afor¢imeed parties in an unfavorable light; providedtthothing herein shall or shall be deeme
prevent or impair you from, in the course of andsistent with his duties for the Company, makinglijpucomments which include good faith,
candid discussions, or acknowledgements regarim@bmpany’s performance or business, or discusshrey officers, directors, and
employees in connection with normal performancduatmns, or otherwise testifying truthfully in alggal or administrative proceeding wh
such testimony is compelled, or requested or frimervise complying with legal requirements. Youlfier agree to keep confidential the
existence of, and any information concerning, aspute between you and the Company, except thamayudisclose information concerning
such dispute to your immediate family, to the cahat is considering such dispute or to your legainsel and other professional advisors
(provided that such counsel and other advisorseagoéto disclose any such information other theinecessary to the prosecution or defen
such dispute)

14, You represent, warrant and covenaattdh of the date hereof: (i) you have the fglhtj authority and capacity to perform
your obligations hereunder, (ii) you are not bobgdany agreement that conflicts with or preventsestricts the full performance of yo
duties and obligations to the Company hereundef(i@ijpthe execution and delivery of this letteradlimot result in any breach or violation of,
a default under, any existing obligation, commitin@nagreement to which you are subject.

15. The Company may deduct and withhaddhfany amounts payable to you such Federal, $batd, nonU.S. or other taxes
are required or permitted to be withheld pursuararty applicable law or regulation.

16. You acknowledge that your employmeitithve atwill . This means that either you or the Company malyyenr
employment at any time, with or without cause, waifitth or without notice and without any obligatiamytou except to pay you for your salary
through the date of termination. You further acktemige and agree that nothing is this letter isrided to or does create a contract of
employment.




17. Your employment is contingent uporatisgactory background check, and your having aathtaining authorization to wol
in the United States. The Company reserves ti tigterminate your employment should you faipssess or maintain such work
authorization, or if such work authorization expire

18. You represents that, prior to executibthis letter, you have been advised by an métpof your own selection regarding t
letter. You acknowledges that you have enteramithit letter knowingly and voluntarily and withlifunowledge and understanding of the
provisions of this letter after being given the ogpnity to consult with counsel. Your further repents that in entering into this letter, you are
not relying on any statements or representatiordenby any of the Company’s directors, officers, Exyges or agents which are not expressly
set forth herein, and that you are relying onlyrugou own judgment and any advice provided by yaitorney.

19. This letter shall be governed by thed of the State of Florida without regard to itisigiples of conflicts of law. No
provision of this letter or any related documernit bé construed against or interpreted to the diaathge of any party hereto by any court or
other governmental or judicial authority by reasésuch party having or being deemed to have stradtor drafted such provision. You, the
Company and its Affiliates each hereby irrevocahlipmits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Unitethtes District Court for the Southern
District of Florida (or, if subject matter jurisdiicn in that court is not available, in any stabeit located within the State of Florida). The
parties hereto irrevocably consent to the serviang and all process in any suit, action or prdaagarising out of or relating to this letter by
the mailing of copies of such process to such parguch party’s address specified in Section4ch party hereto hereby waives, to the
fullest extent permitted by applicable law, anyhtig may have to a trial by jury in respect of at, action or proceeding arising out of or
relating to this letter. Each party hereto (i)tifis that no representative, agent or attornegmyf other party has represented, expressly or
otherwise, that such party would not, in the exadriny action, suit or proceeding, seek to enfthesforegoing waiver and (ii) acknowledges
that it and the other party hereto has been indt@edter into this letter by, among other thirths, mutual waiver and certifications in this
Section 20. Each party shall bear its own costiseaqpenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fedegpenses) incurred in connection with
any dispute arising out of or relating to thisdett

20. For purposes of Sections 8, 9, 10121and 13 of this letter, references to the Comsdnall include its subsidiaries and
Affiliates.
21. All notices or other communicationguieed or permitted to be given hereunder shalhberiting and shall be delivered by

hand or sent by facsimile or electronic image qgpalf) or sent, postage prepaid, by registeredifieattor express mail or overnight courier
service and shall be deemed given when so delivgrdtind or facsimile, or if mailed, three day®afhailing (one business day in the case o
express mail or overnight courier service) to thdips at the following addresses or facsimilesroail addresses (or at such other address fol
party as shall be specified by like notice)




If to the Company Hemisphere Media Group, In
2000 Ponce de Leon Blvd, Suite £
Coral Gables, FL 3314
Attention: Alex J. Tolston, Est

With a copy (which shall not constitute notice harger) to:

Paul, Weiss, Rifkind, Wharton & Garrison LI
1285 Avenue of the Americ:

New York, NY 1001-6064

Fax: (212) 75-3990

Attention: Jeffrey D. Marell, Est

Email: jmarell@paulweiss.col

If to Employees Nicolas J. Valls
At the most recent address and fax or email in Gompersonnel recort

22. If any term or provision of this latte invalid, illegal or incapable of being enfodclky any applicable law or public policy,
all other conditions and provisions of this leball nonetheless remain in full force and effectomg as the economic and legal substance of
the transactions contemplated by this letter ateaffected in any manner materially adverse to@anyy; provided however, that if any term
or provision of Sections 8, 9, 10, 11, 12 and 1i8vslid, illegal or incapable of being enforceddayy applicable law or public policy, all other
conditions and provisions of this letter shall niveess remain in full force and effect to thedatlextent permitted by law; provided further
that in the event that any court of competent glicison shall finally hold in a non-appealable jcidi determination that any provision
of Sections 8, 9, 10, 11, 12 and 13 (whether inlevbo in part) is void or constitutes an unreasdmadstriction against you, such provision
shall not be rendered void but shall be deemee tmddified to the minimum extent necessary to nsalah provision enforceable for the
longest duration and the greatest scope as suchroay determine constitutes a reasonable restnictnder the circumstances. Subject to the
foregoing, upon such determination that any termtber provision is invalid, illegal or incapablel®ing enforced, the parties hereto shall
negotiate in good faith to modify this letter sat@aeffect the original intent of the parties asselly as possible in a mutually acceptable mann
in order that the transactions contemplated hebebgonsummated as originally contemplated to thestuextent possible.

23. You acknowledge that a violation byiyd any of the provisions in Sections 8, 9, 10,12and 13 would cause irreparable
damage to the Company in an amount that would lierfabbut not readily ascertainable, and that mmyedy at law (including the payment of
damages) would be inadequate. Accordingly, yoeegthat, notwithstanding any provision of thiteleto the contrary, the Company, shall
entitled (without the necessity of showing econolosgs or other actual damage) to injunctive rdfie¢luding temporary restraining orders,
preliminary injunctions and/or permanent injuncEpm any court of competent jurisdiction for argtual or threatened breach of any of the
covenants set forth in Sections 8, 9, 10, 11, II&hin addition to any other legal or equitablmeéies it may have. The preceding
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sentence shall not be construed as a waiver afghts that the Company may have for damages uhéeletter or otherwise, and all of the
Company’s rights shall be unrestricted.

24, No provisions of this letter may beeaitled, modified, waived or discharged except byitiem document signed by you and
a duly authorized officer of the Company (othemtlyau). The failure of a party to insist uponatadherence to any term of this letter on any
occasion shall not be considered a waiver of siactys rights or deprive such party of the righerafter to insist upon strict adherence to the
term or any other term of this letter. No failaredelay by either party in exercising any righpower hereunder will operate as a waiver
thereof, nor will any single or partial exerciseaofy such right or power, or any abandonment ofst@gs to enforce such a right or power,
preclude any other or further exercise thereohereaxercise of any other right or power.

25. This letter may be executed in onmore counterparts (including via facsimile and &tatic image scan (pdf)), each of
which shall be deemed to be an original, but alvbich together shall constitute one and the sarsteliment and shall become effective when
one or more counterparts have been signed by ddhb parties and delivered to the other parties.

26. This letter, including any appendixeghibits hereto, constitutes the entire understanletween the Company and you with
respect to the subject matter hereof and supersdidesor agreements and understandings (whethigiew or oral), between you and the.
None of the parties shall be liable or bound to atfer party in any manner by any representatiodsiaaarranties or covenants relating to s
subject matter except as specifically set fortrehmer

27. The rights and obligations of the igartinder the provisions of this letter shall sugyiand remain binding and enforceable,
notwithstanding the termination of this letter, teemination of your employment or services hereurad any settlement of the financial rights
and obligations arising from your employment ovgsss hereunder, to the extent necessary to preseevintended benefits of such provisi

Sincerely,

/s/ Alan J. Soko
Alan J. Soko
President and Chief Executive Offic

Accepted and agreed

By: /s/Nicolas J. Valls
Nicolas J. Valls

Date: October 10, 201




Appendix
Defined Terms

“ Affiliate " means, with respect to any specified Person,cdhgr Person that directly or indirectly, througtemr more
intermediaries, Controls, is Controlled by, or iglar common Control with, such specified Persoayided that, in any event, any business in
which the Company has any direct or indirect owigrinterest shall be treated as an Affiliate &f @ompany.

“ Confidential Informatior’ means information, observations and data conngrtiie business or affairs of the Company, inclgdin
without limitation, all business information (whettor not in written form) which relates to the Gmany, or its customers, suppliers or
contractors or any other third parties in respéettich the Company has a business relationshgwas a duty of confidentiality, or their
respective businesses or products, and which ikmawn to the public generally other than as alteswyour breach of this letter, including t
not limited to: technical information or reportsrinulas; trade secrets; unwritten knowledge anavkihow”; operating instructions; training
manuals; customer lists; customer buying recordshabits; product sales records and documentspraiict development, marketing and
sales strategies; market surveys; marketing pfanaditability analyses; product cost; long-rangarnd; information relating to pricing,
competitive strategies and new product developniefarmation relating to any forms of compensatiwrother personnel-related information;
contracts; and supplier lists.

“ Control” (including, with correlative meanings, the tert@ontrolled by” and “under common Control with™)s ased with respect
to any Person, means the direct or indirect pogsess$ the power to direct or cause the directibthe management or policies of such Persor
whether through the ownership of voting securitigscontract or otherwise.

“ Governmental Entity means any national, state, county, local, mumicgy other government or any court of competenisliction,
administrative agency or commission or other gomwermtal authority or instrumentality.

“ Person’ means any individual, firm, corporation, partrtéps limited liability company, trust, joint venteirassociation,
Governmental Entity, unincorporated entity or otbetity.

“ Plan” means the Hemisphere Media Group, Inc. 2013 Edaoitentive Plan.
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HEMISPHERE MEDIA GROUP, INC.

LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES

Name

HMTV, LLC

Hemisphere Media Holdings, LLE
WAPA Holdings, LLC (f/k/a InterMedia Espafiol Holdjs, LLC)?2
Cine Latino, Inc2

HMTV Cable, Inc2

WAPA America Inc3

InterMedia Espafiol, Iné.
Televicentro of Puerto Rico, LL&
HMTV Pasiones US, LLC

HMTV Pasiones LatAm, LLC
HMTV Pasiones LatAm II, LLC
HMTV Centroamerica TV, LLC
HMTV TV Dominicana, LLC®

1 Subsidiary of HMTV, LLC

2 Subsidiary of Hemisphere Media Holdings, LLC
3 Subsidiary of WAPA Holdings, LLC

4 Subsidiary of InterMedia Espafiol, Inc.

5 Subsidiary of HMTV Cable, Inc.

Jurisdiction of

Incorporation
Delaware

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

Exhibit 21.1
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by refeecimcRegistration Statement (No. 333-187846) omT88 of Hemisphere Media Group, Inc.
our report dated March 28, 2014, relating to ouitgwf the consolidated financial statements, Whippears in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K of Hemisphere Media Group, Inc. for tleayended December 31, 2013.

/sl McGladrey LLP

West Palm Beach, Florida
March 28, 2014
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EXHIBIT 31.1
SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION
[, Alan J. Sokol, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Kemisphere Media Group, Inc. (the "registrant");
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtée a material fact

necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in théport, fairly presentin all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented
in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}Hhd 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

€) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned und
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entitiestigularly during the period in which this rep@tbeing prepared,;

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantdassire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discibsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in thastegnt's internal control over financial reportithgit occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regig's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evally affect, the registrant's internal contrgko financial reporting; ar

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrhave disclosed, based on our most recent el@tuaf internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditansl éhe audit committee of the registrant's boardirgctors (or persons performi
the equivalent functions):

(&) Al significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contraéiofmancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inked management or other employees who have aisattifole in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Date: March 28, 2014 By: /s/ Alan J. Sokol

Alan J. Sokol
Chief Executive Officer and Preside
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EXHIBIT 31.2
SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION
I, Craig D. Fischer, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Kemisphere Media Group, Inc. (the "registrant");
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtée a material fact

necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementswade, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in théport, fairly presentin all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented
in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a}Hhd 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

€) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned und
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entitiestigularly during the period in which this rep@tbeing prepared,;

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantdassire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discibsantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in thastegnt's internal control over financial reportithgit occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regig's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evally affect, the registrant's internal contrgko financial reporting; ar

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrhave disclosed, based on our most recent el@tuaf internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant's auditansl éhe audit committee of the registrant's boardirgctors (or persons performi
the equivalent functions):

(&) Al significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contraéiofmancial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inked management or other employees who have aisattifole in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Date: March 28, 2014 By: /s/ Craig D. Fischer

Craig D. Fischer
Chief Financial Office
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EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Hsphere Media Group, Inc. (the "Company") on FofrKlfor the period ending
December 31, 2013 as filed with the Securitiesxethange Commission on the date hereof (the "R8pgrAlan J. Sokol, certify, pursuant
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant taoBead6 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, in mypamaty as an officer of the Company

that, to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremesit$Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of teewBities Exchange Act of 1934;
and

2. The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations
of the Company.

/sl Alan J. Sokol

Alan J. Sokol
Chief Executive Officer and Preside

Date: March 28, 201

The foregoing certification is being furiméxl solely to accompany the Report pursuant to.83@J § 1350, and is not being filed for
purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchargef\1934, as amended, and is not to be incorpdray reference into any filing of the
Company, whether made before or after the dateohergardless of any general incorporation languagsuch filing.

A signed original of this written statemesadjuired by Section 906 has been provided to Hamei® Media Group, Inc. and will be retai
by Hemisphere Media Group, Inc. and furnished &Skcurities and Exchange Commission or its sfaghuequest.
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EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Hsphere Media Group, Inc. (the "Company") on FofrKlfor the period ending
December 31, 2013 as filed with the SecuritiesExethange Commission on the date hereof (the "R8prCraig D. Fischer, certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedipnt$o Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act @22 my capacity as an officer of the
Company that, to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremesit$Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExafeAct of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations
of the Company.

/s/ Craig D. Fisher

Craig D. Fischer
Chief Financial Office

Date: March 28, 201

The foregoing certification is being furiméxl solely to accompany the Report pursuant to.83@J § 1350, and is not being filed for
purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchargef\1934, as amended, and is not to be incorpdray reference into any filing of the
Company, whether made before or after the dateohergardless of any general incorporation languaguch filing.

A signed original of this written statemesadjuired by Section 906 has been provided to Hamei® Media Group, Inc. and will be retai
by Hemisphere Media Group, Inc. and furnished &Skcurities and Exchange Commission or its sfaghuequest.
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